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Business Model

An individual with care
requirements requires a home.

The local authority designs a care
package. identifying & care provider
and property for the individual.

The care provider is paid the full
amount for the care package and
pays rent to the Approved Provider,
or the Approved Provider is paid
the rent directly.

The Approved Provider pays Civitas
amounts due under the lease.

What We Do

Social Housing Pioneers
C54 15 a leading prowvider of care-based community
housing in the UK.

CS5- beleves rthart access To a decen: home 18 a basic
human right from which so much more can be achleved,
paricdlarly for people who are iving with a life-long
digabilizy. With millions of people stuck on housing
warting hsts across the UX, or trapped in long stay
hospitals, CS¥ became the firs: public company o bring
large scale squity Invesimen: 1IN0 the secion

The Company has the dual objecnives of achieving both
positive financial returns and large scale measurable
social 1mpact.
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Our Portfolio
as at 31 March 2023

Company Overview
. as at 31 March 2023
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# Alternanve Pertormance Measures TeIms are detined in the Glossan ¢
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Financial Highlights
as at 31 March 2023

How We Performed

Basic and
Diluted EPS: -42.0%

Pitiew
2023

A037
7.2%
2021

5.80

Profit Before Tax
£25.5m -43.1%

fnelolan

44.8

~an

56.1

EPRA EPS*
4.43p -8.1%

Pence

NAV per share*
109.16p -1.0%

NAV
£661.9m -2.0%

NAYV increase since
IPO* -9.5%

Pone iy owon Purcen.
2023 2023 2023
6619 |
110.30 5%5.5 12.6
oG A | P |
108.50 673.5 10.6
Investment Dividends declared Total Shareholder

property?
?978.1m +1.0%
2023- \

9781

968 8
e

9156

(Ordinary shares)
5.70p +2.7%

Pouce

2023

# Alietpanyve Performandce Measutes Terms are debned in the Glossary
1ondn Qedinary shate held since launch (percentadge not annudlised)
Inernan Tt popenly odepenidenty vatued Se2 note 15 0 of the Consolikdated Pinandcial Stalements tol detaiis of the valuanon

Return#*
-16.5%

Foronn

2023

1.6

26.5
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CIVITAS SOCLAL HOUSING PLU

EEPORT AND ACCOUNTS 20024

Key Achievements

Operational Highlights

697 mronenies £835 million 4594 tenants ;rased on supportad oy across 178 local
aé;]\;tredi wvested: witn dependab.e ong term 131 care authority partners
ceommadation leases signed with providers
19 Approved
Providers

The Good Economy, the social impact advisory firm, in its serni annual independent
Social Impact Report in November 2022 on Civitas, has classified Civitas' assets

as Contributes to Solutions’ according to the internationally recognised Impact
Management Project (IMP) dimensions of impact. TGE also notes that Civitas'
funding contributes to increasing the supply of specialist housing, easing the
burden on residential or inpatient facilities.

1 over the life ol the Company as al 31 March 2023

Levered IRR* since IPO

Fast performdnue s not a telable indcaror ol uiire pecformdnee
* Alternative Pertormance Measurs See Appendix 1 Lol the catculation

Share price performance (pence)
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This 1s our s1xh Annual Report, covenng the year to

31 March 2023. 7 am pleased ‘o repor: that, despie a
difficul: economic backdrop i the U<, our portfoho has
conunued o perform swrongly. delivering an average a
5% increase in rental income denved from our inflanon
adjusred leases,

Our nvesimen: Adviser, Civitas ‘nvesimen: Managemen:
aimirted ("CTVT), has continued o work closely with our
Approved Providers 1o enhance further the quality of the
por:folio and o assig: where needed 1n the process of
ensurnng our rental iIncome 18 recerved on a aumely hasis.

The net asse: value of the Company at 3 March 2023 was
"09.16 pence, a small decrease of 1.03% from 7:0.30 pence
per share as at 37 March 20722

The 3oard declared a final dividend of ©.425p. bnnging
~he full year dividend 1o 5 70p, i ine with the minimum
srared intention.

A difficuls challengs durning the year was the sharp
Increase 1N interest rates | am pleased "hatin Tebruary
2023 the Company entered into a new deh: facilicy for
f70.9m. which was parly used o repay the loan faciity
with loyds n addition, we also Iixed our interes: rate
exposdre 1o provide grealer cerainty. ~owever, the
overall re-financing was achisved at a maenal increase
In ongoing interes: costs, ~Jll detalls are included 1n he
nvestmen: Advisers Xepor:.

Our share price has been disappoiniing over the year
dander review, reflecting i par- the broad derazing of
real esiate investments, higher interes: rates and invesor
concern alour odr gecor The 3oard has been reviewing
a number of possikle actiong *o address “his position
The Company has connnued o kuy back shares - over
“he pas A4 months it has acguired 6,050 000 shares at an
average of 76 89 pence per share for a otal invesmen:
of ¥4 65 million. This has enhanced the MV by O 30% and
kenefized the =234 earnings

Continuation Vote

A "he annaal general meeling on 'y Sepember 2022,
93 354 of those shareholders who vorted have vortedin
favour of the conunuation of “he Company.

Offer for the Company

Following “he vear end, on 9 May 2023 the 3oard

announced a recammended offer for the Company at 8Cp

per share 1n cash, from a subsidiary of CK Asser Holdings '
Limited (CXA).

Whils: the Board believes that the Qffer undervalues the
long-term prospects of Civitas as expressed by ner asse:
value we also recognise tha: Cwitas, and 17s sector as a
whole, faces a number of challenges 1n senttmen: which
*he public marka:s are unhkely 10 overcome n the shor 1o
medram erm.

The Offer provides higuindity o shareholders with the
opporanty o X1t n full and in cash at a sigmifican®
premium o the curren: share price, in a ume of
MAactroeconomic Jnceramny.

Moreover, CKA. a8 a current inves-or in the social housing
sactol has a detalled underszanding of -he arraciive
fundamentalz of the real estaie and the expertise of the
managemer: :eam. CXA does not expect there 2o be

any disruphion o tenants as a result of the Offer and wall
be focused on ~he conunuation of relationships with
Approved Providers, care providers and the Requlator

of Socal =ousing following ~he compleion of the Offer
The Board -herefore considers the terms of the Offer o be
fair and reasonable and we have recommended 17 70 our
sharehiolders.

Outlook

Jemand for “he wype of nroperiies wi-hin the Company's
porfolio remains sirong with independen: forecas:s
predicing sha: there will be conninued growsh far

many years 10 come in the need for additonal unrs

of adapied accommodanon The 3oard remains
confiden: in the sirength of the porffolio and 12s potenual
revernie generaton

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

28 June 2025
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Our Portfolio
By UK Region as at 31 March 2023

South West

London 26 128 13.8
Ez@a@ T us s
Yorkshlre and the Humberr Dé TD.! E‘r'
Twaes 34 w0 106
_Norm_WeT' 7w w1 wa
Southfast 65 104 9.8
EastMidlands 58 8.6 8.8
NorthEast 64 58 6.4

lEastofEngland 32 ap 39

Market Value (%)

Suulh West
Lw.dun

West Mldland&

Ymkshu; and 1he
Humbs
Nurlh Wes'

South EdSY

East Midlands

Noith East

l Eas1 ot England

697 properties

Tenancies

4,594

00’

South West

Yorkshite and the
Humbﬂ

Nur(h West
*’ West Mmldnds

Nullh EdSl |

Sonth East |

East Midlands
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Our Portfolio
By Approved Provider as at 31 March 2023

Annualised Contracted Rent Roll (%) Properties
a7
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Investment Adviser’s Report
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in the 'ﬁr to March 2023, CIM continued to Work'aosely with the Board tcTrTlariagg
a high-performing portfolio.

- Partfolic :
i 40% of residents living in Civitas properties receve over 50 hours of ¢dre per week.
High acuity porifolio '
Provide homes to those who need long-term quality accommodarion
Largest portfolic of 85H in England & Wales
Premiutn Fitch rating retained at "A” secured and "A-" unsecured
Average rental growth of ¢.5%

Sacial Impact
e 4594 high-qua

- “he pabiho parse

Phase two work with E.ON
Contntsd work ac

Tarcpening M res

Experienced Team
managemen: eam se C wead Sroviders have
ms from:

1 Soures The Good Eoonomy Civitas Social Housing PLC Annual Impact Report 2021, June 2021



Introduction

Civriaas Investmen: Managemen: _imtred ("CV7 is the nvesimen: Adwiser 1o Crvitas Soctal Aousing ?LC {/CSe7 and s

‘he leading provider of care-based housing i the UX CiM compnses a ream of 39 individaals with a range of experuse
n specialis: supported housing, real estate management and complex care needs CV has the capacity and specialis:
knowledge o manage the C3= porfolio at a granular level and has cultivated strong professional relationships across

~he secror over the last decade.

Overview of Results

In the UK prnior to the launch of the Company. equty

and privaze capral played a very small par: in the social
housing secior. Over 1me, UL demoegraphics changed and
the number of adults with long-rerm, complex care needs
has been sieadily increasing.

Thiss reflected 1n a number of insutanonal Inves:ors
including aspects of soclal housing within Their
investmen: sirateqias.

Results Highlights

e Si¥ yvears of consisten: rental grow'h and progressive
drvidend payments tha: have increased from an ninal
3.00p per share o 570p per share for the year ended
3" March 2625

e A reramed high-gualizy mvesiment credit raung from
firch Ratings of A secured and A- unsecured sinice
March 2020, which C8H was the {Irs: 1o secura i
“his seciorn

s Anacuvely managed porifoho of operanonal real
estate with a secior-leading team of professionals
assisung and enabhng high gquality and longewvity of
homes and income

¢ rofessional suppor: to enable Approved froviders o
enhance the quahy of their delivery and demonsirate
long-term financal and operational independence

¢ Targeing inves'men's and homes which enable
‘he dehvery of migher end care as thig 1s where the
greates: need existe and where “he apphealnhsy of
exempt rents s clearly demonsirated.

e Anacuve and comilnuing programme working
with =.ON 0 permanently red.ce carlzon emissions
across the por:foho, leading o lower energy costs for
residents and a more carbon neutral portfoho.

e Secror-leading parnerships with natonal and local
charimes dehvening real change and continuing o
enhance CSH's reputanon as “he mos: expenenced
nvestor m soclal infrastructure in the L

e OV has a highly expernienced asser managemen:
zeam which has overseen some £25 million of physical
improvemeants to the poriffolio since incepnon, largely
paid for by “he vendors of the properues.

Sector-Leading Social OQutcomes
ESG

Our 883G 2olicy g located at wwwoiviassocialhousimg.com.
T provides an overview of the Company’s invesiment
procedures and sets out The Board's commiimen: 1o a
CONINUOUS IMPTOVEIMENT process in 1's approach o
=5Gntegraton.

ESG Rating Providers

CIV engages with the leading =5G raang providers o
set our the acovinies thar are anderzaken by CSH and

o ensure these are profiled and evaluated correcty.
Nomably, active paricipaton 1n the 2022 GRESE 2ubhc
Meclosure Assessmen: has resulled i C5= retaiming

an A score previously atamed in 202, whils: the peer
group average score has moved up (o 3. G55 18 up

o second pogsrion within itg Companson Group (LK
2emidenual). Meanwhile, the sk Raung Score for C3F by
Sustamalynies remains at 4.9 {Low R1sk) as was reponied
in ebraary 2023

POV NV LEOdHY
D1 IV RS SVALAID
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Investment Adviser’s Report
Continued

The latest independent repor: by The Good t¢onomy
on CSH was published 1n November 2022 and notes
CS='s conunued progress in delivenng measurable
social impact. Social value analysis by The Good
Tconomy. carned ousin March 2021, foand that. overall,
the por:foho generated £ 27 million of social value

per year, including fiscal savings to public budgers of
£75.9 milhon per year.

Of parucular note with respec: 10 The por:folio:

e 7% of C8='s 697 properties have been brough: o
‘he specilalist houging sector for he first ame

e CSH continues regular engagemen: with 1:s Approved
Providers o mantor the quahty of 118 stock

s mprovemen: works have enhanced -he energy
efficiency of homes

e B7% of respondents o the survey of residen:s carned
ou: by C.van March 2071 reported that they were
satusfled with the gualry of their home

e CSH Approved 2rovider pariners have reporied 99%
statutory comphance - congiderably beer than the
wider affordable housing sector.

Environmental: Carbon Reduction/
Energy Cost Savings

CV conunues ro work with = ON (a leading UK energy
and solunons company? under a national framework
agreementin parnership with C5-7 tenanis tomprove
“he environmen:al performance of the porfoho, The
fabnic firss' approach o reducing the porfoho’s
carbon foorprnint inclades the imstallanion of cavity wall
insualation, lof: ingulation, exsernal wall insulanon, air
source hear pumps and solar ?V and batery storage 0
idennfied properies within ~he porffohio. The installation
of These enargy efficient measures, unihsing availlable
governmen: grantg and other funding sources, will
opamise value for the Company. OUr counierparies
and our shareholders The collaboration with 50N 18
dehvenng significan: environmen-al enhancemen:s
withouT any cos: to our Approved “roviders.

The hase 2 rerofi- surveys will help o refine “he
implemaentation programme and idenafy the es:
methad for reducing The otal carbon dioxide
emissiong jand fusl cosst associated wirh individual
propernes ovear the medium or long term The overall
enerdgy performance of “he porifoho as iden-ified

on “mnronmental Jerformance Cernhicaras (5200
repor s data has improved over thelas® "2 months The
proporion of properaes with 22C Raung A-C s carren-ly
= 55% and ‘he carlon foompnn iesumased from propery
characrensucs) has reduced by 2% per Civiras tenancy
from 265 connes of CO f~enancy in Zarch 2072 o

28T ronnes of CO/enancyy The whaole socal housing

sector, and indeed the whole housing secior, continies
<0 require significant pubhic invesimen: if 1t 15 10 meet the
current governmen: gutdehnes on achieving ne: zero
carbon ermissions by 2050,

Government Policy and Regulation
Reforming the Mental Health Act

Curren: men:al healh legislation resuls in marny people
with mental heal:h 1ssues or learning disability needs being
deramned n large insutanions thart are ofen mmappropnate
for the individuals T1s estimated by N=S Jigiral tha: there
was a rise In annual mental health detennions from 4586410
2018/26°7 to over 53239 1n 2020/2040

Onee people are secuoned into an nsatalion - becomeas
very difficul and cosly 1o move them inio a suppored
Iving comMmanity Semimng.

Ag a result of these concerns, the Govemmen: commussionsd
an independen: body chaired by Professor Sir Simon
Wessley 1n 2077, Carrently in draft form i the =ouses

of Pathamens, the Mental zealth Reform Act seeks 0

raise the threshold for dezaining people with a learning
disabnliry and/or aunsm unless They have a coexisiing
psychiatric disorder.

We Lelieve that -his Act wnll drnive even more demand for
community housmg and care seings which are already in
shor: supply. furher securing he value and Imporsance of
“he C3= porfolio.

The C3= porffoho wall further beneh: from the followineg
broader marke: dynamics:

Social Housing Regulation Bill 2023

The overall regulanoen of social housing 1s under review
with the main objecuve of delivering rransformanonal
change for soclal housing residents and fulfiling ~he
Governmen:s 20°9 mantfes o pladge 1o "empower residents,
provide greater redress, beter regulanon and improve the
crualy of social housing”

The implicanon of shis revievs for C5=s porfolio s
expecied 10 be posiive as 1 aims o kring landlords closer
o therr -enanss and more focused on addressing therr
needs quickly Our Approved ?roniders are very close 1o
“hetr residents needs and vrork in parmnership with care
nroviders 1o ensure good qaality service ouicomes, all
suppored by the granular asser managemen: pronded by
C/oevery day



Investment Adviser’s Report
Continued

Supported Housing (Regulatory Oversight) Bill

This bill, which 15 under review, seeks 10 improve

the reqilation and ouscornes of supporred exemp:
accommodaton This follows reported cazes, parcularly
of remporary housing, that should not quahfy as

exermnp: accommodation.

Financial Review

As at 31 March 2023 the Net Asge: Value of the Company was
£66".9 million. being 109.16 pence per share, a 1.03% decrease
on the ©10.50 pence per share at 3 March 2022 A net

fair value gain on invesimen: properues of £2.6 miliien

(2022 £12.3 mllion} was 1ecorded in “he year

Operational cash flows increased moderazely "o

£39.5 mulhon (2022 £59.0 rillion) Ongoing renzal collecions
-hroughous the year supporied the Company's healthy
operanng cash flows despiie furher increases o the cost of
debr as all faciinies were put onto a fixed basis,

Rental Growth and Dividend

The portfolio generated renal income {exchuding
any msuarance and service charge rechargeables)
of £55.. muhon, representing ¢ 5% increass over the
corresponding penod last year.

The contracted rens roll now increases Through imdexation
only as no new equizy has been raised and therefore no
new nvesiments have been made 1n the perod.

Jurning the yvear, the Company declared and paid four
dwvidend dimmibunons including one dindend of L3875k
and three insalments of “4250p.

Debt Fixing and Reducing Risk

C_M arranged -he followinmg deb: facihues which fixes debr
on the por:folio at an average rate of 3.92% unnl Augquis: 2024
a5 15 pridentin che carrent interest rate environmen:.

Remaining

Tetm at Loan
31 Mar 23 PHncipal
Lendes o Facily —  (years) __ Euno All i rate
Scotish Widows Fixed 1.59 32,500 2499%
Deutscne Bank Fixed 4.85 70875 5.509%
AG, London
Branch
HSRC Fixed by 267 105,000 1.80%
Interest
Ta.e can
MNatwaost Fixed oy 138 G000 2607
Inzerest
ra.e swap
84.550 3.14%

MEG Fixed 491

3.67 367,925 3.92%

We have recewved terms from lenders o refinance he
Na-Wes: facihiy which s due to expire in Augnast 2024

Governance

'V connmues 1o engage acnvely with the Company's
Approved Provider parners and care providers, offenng
advice and shared learming.

The 3oard, compnsed of five iIndependen: non-execulve
Hrectors, carrnes o4t an annual 3oard performance
evaluanon exaercise and hogE penodic sraeqy Sess510Ns
m addimon o regalar planned Joard meeings

Summary

CIM conunues ro closely and proactively asse: manage
-he largest porifolio of specialist care-based housing in
“he UK.

There s demonsrable demand 1in excess of supply
and significant further legislanon that s likely to
conuniue 1o increase demand for the properues in the
Company's portfolo.

We contnue to anderake our work with a view o both
enhancing the value of the por:ifoho and protecing the
meres: of our underlying tenants.

Civitas Investment Management Limited

‘nvestmen: Adviser

28 June 2023
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Asset Management Initiatives

The Asset Management Team underssand the value of a good home. Wih nearly 160 years' expenence belween them
working in the housing field, there 1s a lot of knowledge we can share.

As part of our acuve asse: management of the C35 portfolio, we work with and suppoer: our parmners tackling issues and
finding solaions 10 help sustain the renancies of the most valnerakble people iving 1n our homes,

A recen: example of this was with Cole Stree: and “ampden Road. These properies are managed by Trinity =ousing
Associaton and are papular proper:ies wirh long standing residents, =owever, Tnmy had siruggled 0 meet i's housing
benefi: potental. Officers from the team worked closely with Irinity and supported them o put the mformanon and
evidence togeher for inbunal. Trimisy won the tnbunal and the matier was resalved with a full backdate and ren:
agreed This was a great result for the ream and for the tenan:s at the schemes.

Case Study

York Mews, Clacton-on-Sea

A detached ~wo storey block of zeven self-contamned flats Before After
constracted around the 1930s. Some external works were |
idencified as beng reqinred and a review was underaken  J1870 D I D
at “he assetl Assessmen: reports obiained sugges:ed

-ha: replacing the heaters within the flats and other
minor works would improve the energy efficiency and

11 MOST Cases. IMprove the =2C ratings a: “he same ume.
We therefore tenderad a programme of works over Two
phases - the first phase jusr before “he previous Winer
period o replace the exisung heazers with high hea:
retenion siorage heaters - the second phase duning the
following Spring/Summer penod was -0 underake the
external works To remove the exisuing render, replace and
decorate o improve the extenor of the bullding.

AND ACCCUNTS 202%

S SOUTAL THOUSTNG PLC
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Sustainability

The business modal of the Company is to provide long-
term sulzable homaes for indwviduals with care needs:
acting @ sustattiable manner s Key 10 achieving

<his aim. 2roperues that are owned by the Company
are 1ailored 10 mee: the future needs of the tenants
and. where required, are acuvely asge: managed

to provide long-term functuonalizy and value 1o the
wider commuanity.

Environment

Duaning the invesimen: due diligence phase, the Company
looks closely at the environmental impac: of each
potential acquisiian, and encourages a sus:amabte
approach for maintenance and upgrading properues.
Through collaboranng with specialist developers and
vendors, the high standards the Company expects from
each investment i1l the care-based housing secior s
adopred by other companies In the secior

Omnce within the por:folio, the properiies of the Company
are acuvely manaded, and “he nvesimen: Adviser
assesses whether there are opporninines 1o improve the
environmental efficiency of the properues, in addimion o
other asse: management iniilaives The Company has an
Lnvironmens: $0c1al and Governance “olicy which can be
found on the Company's website This goes into further
detall abour the Company's 285G approach and how 12
mregrates with imvesimen: srateqy. “urther details on the
Comparny's 3G apbroach can also be found on pages 37
0 46

The 3oard has considered ‘he requiremens to disclose
“he annual quanity of emissions: furher desail on “his s
mcladed in the Repor of ~he Directors on page 572

Diversity

The Company does not have any employess or office
space and, as such, the Company does not operate a
cdiverstty policy with regards 1o any adminms:raive and
managemen: funciions

Whilst recognising the imporance of diversity in the
boardroom. the Company does no: consider 1710 be

i1 the inzeres: of the Group and 1is shareholders <o se:
prescripive diversiiy criteria or argess. The 3oard has
adopied a diversi®y policy in respec: of appoinimen:s

10 be made 0 the 3pard and will centinue "o monior
dwversity, taking such sieps as 11 considers appropriare
O Mainain 1:s pPosInen ag a merocraic and diverse
businass. The 3card's objecive 1s 10 mainiam effecive
decision making. including the impac: of successgion
planmng. A1l 3oard appoimmen:s will e made on mer:
and have regard o diversity regarding faciors such as
gender. ethniclty. skills, background and expenience
This includes Director appointmenss o the Audiz and
Yanagemen: sngagemen: Commitee and MNominaon
and Remunerasion Commitea See Corporate Governance
Siaternent on padge 56

The Board comprses three male and rwo

female non-executive Directors. Throughout the year,
the Company complied with the Fampton-Alexander
Review's rarge: of a mimimum $3% represen:anon of
women on “TSR 350 boards.

The 3oard 15 aware of the recommendarions of the
Parker Review, which will be taken into consideration as
par: of the Board's succession planning. See Corporate
Governance S:atement on page 56

The 3oard of Jirectors of the Company's subsidianes,
which are non-operatonal, @ach comprise one female
and up o four male Directors.

Human Rights

Given the Company's rurnover for the year under review,
17 now falls within the scope of the Modern Slavery

Act 208 The Company pubhshed g modermn slavery
staremen: on ZZ September 2G7L

The Board s sansfied that 1o the bes: of 112 knowledge,
“he Company's principal advisers, which are listed in
“he Company ‘nformation section, comply with the
provisions of the UK Modern Slavery Act 2075

The Company’'s business 1s solely in the U< and sherefore
18 considerad o be low nisk with regards o human
rights abruses

Community and Employees

The Company's properies enakle the provision of care
0 same of the most vulnerakle people in the community,
ensunng safe and secure accommodation, tallored o
mee: Individial care needs The Company has increased
~he provision of care-based housing, bninging new
supply 0 the sector and providing homes o over 1.5C0
peaple. All of -he Company's properaes enalkle the
provigion of high levels of care, generating local jobs and
helping 1o suppor: local economies

The Company has no employees and accordingly no
requlrement 1o separasely repor: on this area.

The nvesimean: Adviser 1s an equial opporainiiies
employer who respec:s and geeks to empower each
indrvidual and the diverse cukures, perspecnves, skills
and expenences within ts workforce



Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Overview

The Directors overarching duty 15 to act in good faith and
N a way that1s most hkely o promote the success of the
Company as set out 1in secuon 72 of the Compantes Act
2006, In doing so, Directors must take 1into consideration
the interes:s of the vanous gtakeholders of the Company,
the impac: the Company has on the commumnity and the
environmen:, 1ake a long-term vigw on Consaaquences

of the decisicns they make, ag well ag aim 0 maintain a
reputation for high standards of business conduct and
fair rreatmens: besween the members of the Company.

Culfilling this duty nasarally supports the Company

in achleving 1ts investmen: objectuve and helps 10
ensure that all decigions are made 1n a responsible and
sustainable way. in accordance with the requiremen:s
of rhe Companies (Miscellaneous Reporiung) Regulaiions
2018, the Company explains how the Directaors have
discharged their duties under section /2 below.

To ensure that the Jrectors are aware of, and
uanderstand, their dunes, they are provided with the
perinen: informasion when they firs: join the Board

as well ag receiving regular and ongoing updates and
ramung on the relevant maters. induction and access
o traming 1s provided for new Direcrors. They also
have continued access 1o the advice and services of
the Company Secretary and, when deemed necessary,
the Direciors can seek independen: professional advice
at the Company's expense. The Schedule of Maters
Reserved for the Board, as well as the Terms of Reference
of 1's commiiiees, are reviewed regularly and further
describe Direciors responsibihines and obhgatons and
mclude any statusory and regulatory duaes, Thea Aadis
and Managemen: kngagemen: Committee has the
regponsibiliy for the ongoing review of the Company's
nsk managemer: sysiems and internal controls and,

o the exten: thatthey are apphcealkle nsks related o
*he matters se” out 1in section /2 are included in the
Company's nsk requster and are subject ‘o penodic and
reguilar reviews and monizonng

Long-term Success

The strazeqgv of the Company can be found on pages
72610 29. Any deviation from. or amendmen: To, *ha:
sTraleqy 18 subject to Board and, if necessary, shareholder
approval The Company's business mode], which can be
found on page 26, provides thar the Board considers the
long-term consequences of 1's investment decisions

The Company gran: long-term leases, generally 20 years
in length, to 158 tenants. The Company seeks to main:ain
lasung relationships with 1's tenants and supports 1:s
cenants in adapning propertes to mee: their needs,
paricularly improving and enhancing properiies. “urther
detalls can ke found on pages 37 1o 46

Stakeholders

A company's stakeholders are normally considered o
comprise 118 shareholders, 11s employees, 178 CUsIomers
and 1s supphers as well as the wider communizy in
which the company operates and impacts. The Company
15 different in that as an investmen? rust 11 has no
employees and. In terms of suppliers, the Company
receives professional services from a number of differen:
providers, principal amang them being the ‘nvesimen:
Mdwviser.

Through regular engagemen: with 175 stakeholders,

*he 3oard aims o gain a roanded and balanced
undersianding of thempact of 128 decisions. feedback
from stakeholders 15 gathered by the investmen: Adviser
in the firss instance and commuanicazed 1o the 3oard in s
regular guarserly meeungs and otherwise as required

The imporiance of stakeholders s zaken in-o accouns

at every 3oard meenng, with discussiens involving
careful consideration of the longer-ierm consequences
of any decigsions and heir implicanions for stakeholders.
The following section explams why thege stakeholders
are considered of imporiance "o the Company and he
acuons taken ro ensure that their interests are taken into
accouan: by the Board as pars of 175 decision making.

DV UNY Ld0dE




D
e
=
z
<

Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Qur stakenolders

Shareholders
Contnued
shareholder
support and
engagement are
critical 1o the
existence of the
business and the
delhivery of the
long-term strategy
of the business.

Xey areas of interest

How we engage

Current and
future financial
performance on
both a NAV and
share price basis
Srategy and
business model
Corporate
governance

=8G performance
and sustaimnakbility
Chimate Change
Dridend

The Board we.comes shareno.ders’ views and places greal imporiance

ON communication witn the snareholders of the Company. The Board is
responsible for the conten: of communicaton regarding corpora:e issues
and for communicating i:s views to sharenholders. The Board aims o ensure
‘nat shareholders are provided wizh sulficient information to understand
tne risk/reward balance 10 which they are exposed by the holding of

shares in ihe Company. Active engagement witn sharehelders is carried ou:
“aroughout the vear and reguiar communicasion is andertaken 1o ensure tha:
ney understand the performance of the business. The Board is commitied
O mainsaining cpen channe!s of commLnication and to engaging witn
sharenowders 1n a manner which they find most meaningf.l., in order to gain
an unders:anding of the views of sharsholders. These channels include:

Annual General Meeting The Company welcomes and encourages
attendance, voling and participanon from shareno:ders a: the AGM, at waich
sharenolders have the oppormunity 1o meet thc Directors and Investment
Adviger and 10 address guestions o then directy Tnae Invesiment Adviser
attends the AGM and provides a presen:a:ion on ine Group's performance and
its future outlook. The Company va.ucs any [eedpac and questions it may
raceive from snareholders ahead of and during the AGM and tazes action,

as appropriate. The Board was pieased 1o note tnat a.. reso.utlions proposed at
e Company's AGM on 18 September 2022 were approved by sharenolders,

Publications The Annual Repor: and Haf-Year Resul's arc made availabic

on 1ne Company's website. These repors provide sharenolders with a c.ear
understanding of the Group's pertfolio and financial position. In addiiion 1o tne
Ann.al and Ha {-Year Reporis. rege.ary wpdaed information is avalaple on

e Company wenpsite, inciuding guarier.y facisnee s, key po.cies. ne investor
re.atons poicy and detaiis of the invesiment properiy portfo:io Feedback and/
or quesiions the Company receives from the shareho.ders help mne Company
evolve Its reporing aiming o render the renorts and upda‘es [rangparent and
Jnderstandaole

Shareholder meetings - Shareho!ders are able ‘o mee: with (he Invesimen:
Adwviser and the Company’s Joint Brokers inroughou: ine year and the {nvesin:en:
Adviser provides information on the Company on ne Company's wepsite.
Feedpacs from ail shareno.der meeiings with tne Invesiment Adviger and/or the
Join: Brokers. and shareno'ders views. are gsnared wiin (ne Board on a reg.ar
pasiz. The Caanman and other memoers of tne Board, inc:uding (ne Senior
Iindependen: Directer and Chair of :he A.di: and Management Engagemen:
Cormumniiiee, are avallap.e 10 meet with snarehoders o undcrsiand 1ncir views on
governance and (ne Company’s perforniance whars ey wish 1o do so.




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Our stakehold ers

Key arcas of interest

Shareholders
Continued
shareholder
support and
engagement are
critical o the
existence of the
husiness and the
dehvery of the
long-term strategy
of the business.

« Current and
future financial
performance on
both a NAV and
share price basis

e Strategy and
business model
Corporate
governance

e £8G performance
and sustainamlivy

+ Chrmate Change

« Dpidend

How we enigage

Shareholder concerns — The Board gives due consideration to matters
raiged by sharehclders. 'n the even: shareholders wish to raise issues or
congerns with the Board or the Investrment Adviser, they are welcome to
write o the Company at the reqgistered office address set ou! on page 3L

In hime with increasing shareholder focus on cnvironmental, Sccial and
Governance ('ESG" matters, the Board requests regular updates from the
Invesimen: Adwiser. The Board retans overall respensibility for £3G 1ssues
and the Company's operational performance. .mplementazion of ESG
matters are undertaken by the ‘nvesiment Adwviser on behalf of the Beard.

furthermore, 5ESG reporung has been disclosed on pages 37 to 46 in the
Annual Report and the Board is open to discussion with shareholders on
this topicif requested.

Investor relations updates - The Board regularly monutors the
shareholder profile of the Company. With the majorny of sharehoelders
being a combinazion of ins:irutional investors and private chent brokers,
the Beoard receives regular updates on investors’ views and artitudes
from the Company's 3rokers and the nvestment Adviser. The results of
these meetings are reported to the Board as part of the formal reporting
undertaken by both the Inves:men: Adviser and Brokers

ncluded 1n the Repor: of the Directors on page 5. are details of
subs:antiat shareholdings in the Company

On a regular kasis (somenmes weekly) and at 3oard meetings, the
Jirectors receive updates from the Company's Brokers on the share
trading aciuvity, share price performance and any shareholders' feedback,
as well as an updare from the Company's [nvestor Relanons adwviser.
Buchanan, and the [nvestment Adwviser on any publicalions or cornments
by the press. To gain a deeper understanding of the views of its
shareholders and potential inves:ors. the Tnvesiment Adviser maintains
regular contact with them and also underiakes investor roadshows

Any relevant feedback s taken into account when Mirectors discuss any
possible fundraiging or the future dividend policy.

“ollowing the vear end. the 3oard recommended an offer to shareholders
of 80 pence for each share held 1in the Company from Wellness Unity
“imited (@ wholly owned subsidiary of CK Asset Foldings Limized). During
the Takeover Offer process, the Board engaged with shareholders and
recewved their views on the Takeover Offer which 12 took into account

durning its discussions. Further informaunon on the Board’'s decision in
relanon o the Takeover Offer can be found on pages 25 and 52
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Our stakeholders

Investment
Adviser

Holding the
Company's shares
offers investors
dan mnvesimen:
vehicle through
which they can
obtain exposure
co the Company’s
porifolio of
properies. The
nvestmen:
Advisers
performance

18 crinical for

the Company

to successfully
deliver s
investument
srateqy and
mee* 1's objective
“0 provide
shareholders
with an arracive
tevel of iIncome,
“ogether with

“he potenual for
caplzal growsh

Other service
providers

in order o
fancuon as a 2T
with a premium
listung on the
_ondon Stock
~xchange the
Company relies an
a diverse range of
reputable advisers
for suppor:

In meenng

all relevarn:
obhgauons.

Key arcas of interest

Current and
future financial
performance

Shared
commermal
objectives with
the Campany
Operatuonal
excellence

Long-term
development of
ivs business and
resources

ESG performance
and sustainabiity

Cuarrent and
futuare financial
performance
Shared
commercial
okbjecaves with
-he Company
Operanional
excellence
_ong-erm
developmen:
of the service
providers
businesses

Sustammabhy

How we engage

The asse: management of the Company’s por:folio 15 delegated to

-he ‘nvestment Adviser, which manages the agges in accordance

with the Company's objecuves and policies. At each 3oard meeting,
representaives from the nvesiment Adviser are in attendance to present
reports to the Directors covering *he Company's curren’ and future
activities, portfolio of asse:s and 1ts investment performance over the
preceding period.

Valntamming a close and constracuve working relationship with the
investment Adviser is crucial as the Board and he invesiment Adwviser
both aim so continue 10 achieve consisient long-term returns in hine
with the Company's investment abjective. Important componen:s of the
culture of both the Company and the ‘nves.ment Adviser are.

operasing 1n a fully supporuve, co-operaive and open environmen:
and maintaining ongoing commiinicaion with the Board between
formal meetings:

e encouraging open discussion wizh the ‘nvestmen: Adviser, allowing
urme and space for onginal and innovauve thinking;

« recogniging tha: the interes:s of stakeholders and the nvestment
Adwviser are for the mos: parr well aligned. adopung a “one of
constrnictive challenge;

« drawing on Board members individual expentence and knowledge to
support the ‘nves-ment Adviser 1n 1ts monitornng of and engagemen:
with nther stakeholders; and

¢ willingness o rmake the Board members expenence available 10
support the ‘nvestment Adviser 1n the sound long-erm development
of 178 business and rescurces, recognising tha: the long-term health
of the .nvestmen: Adviser 1s1n the interes:s of shareholders in the
Company.

The Company's main functions are delegated 0 a number of service

providers, including the Adminisirator, the Company Secretary. the APV,
<he Registrar, the Corporate 3rokers and the Depositary, each engaged
under separate coniracs. The 3oard maintains regular contac: with 1is
key exiernal providers and recerves regular reporiang from them, both
rhrough the 3oard and Commiizee meeungs, as well as outside of the
regualar meenng cycle Their advice. as well as their needs and views,
are rouatinely taken into accouns. Through 1ze Auds and Managemen:
tngagemen: Commtiee, the 3oard formally agsesses “heir performance,
fees and coniunuing appoiniment a: leas: anndally o ensure that the
key service providers coninue 0 funciion a: an accepiable level and
are appropriazely rermunerazed o dehver the expecied level of service
The Audir and “Yanagemen: sngagemen: Commiee alzo reviews and
evaluates ‘he conirol environmens in place ar each key service provider,




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Our slakeholders Key areas of interest

Care providers e Current
and future
performance
s Welfare of
tenants

e Lease obligations

s Voud
management
Tenants e Greater
independence

s  Mainaiming high
level of care

s mproved
Personal
outcomas

How we engage

Althe outse: 1¥ 1s impor:an: 1o note that the Company does not have

any legal or operational responsibility for the delivery of care in the
propertues within the porifohc However, the Board and the investmen:
Adviser have taken the view that they wish to have a detalled
unders:anding of the delivery of care and the interaction with the major
care providers who deliver this care. Accordingly, the ‘nvesiment Adwviser
main:ams an acuve dialogue with many of the care providers o build
constructive and informed relationships.

At the same time, as part of trangacuon due dihgence a: the time of
acquisition of properties, the ‘nvestmen: Adviser undertakes due
dihgence with respect 10 the operational and financial performance of
all care providers who are proposed to deliver care in:o the parucular
properties This includes the financial standing of the care provider, 115
CQC rating and the nature of ‘he SLA agreement covenng vouds between
“he care provider and the Approved Provider.

The ‘nvesiment Adviser 1s noted as having demonstrated considerable
expertise and understanding of the care taking place withan s
properes.

The Company's praperties are adapred for the use of individuals with
long-term care needs within a community setung with the specific
aim of achieving better personal ourcomes and independence for the
individuals.

The sector in which the Caompany operates is regarded as having
achieved significan: success in delivering these posuive outcomes
compared o long-term older siyle remote msuutional care.

On a regualar kasis, members of the 'nvestmen: Advizer visit properties
accompanied by Approved Provider and care provider parmners to see
first hand rhe nature of the housing and care provision that s being
delivered. Whilst this process has slowed as a result of the pandemic,
*he [nvestment Adviser has contunued to engage with s tenants. This
15 suppor.ed by the regular Approved 2rovider seminars a: which the
wellbeing of tenantg 15 discussed in detail.

nnaddition, the Company undertakes resident case studies and surveys
shrough careful and considered interaction via the care prowvider wo
assess the positive impact our properties and associated speclalised care
have had on the indmvidual and their wellbeing.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued
j\:r stakeholders Key areas of INLerest How we engage
Approved e Curren: The Company's Approved Provider parners are an important part of the
Providers and fuwure inves:men: model as the respongibihity for collection of housing benefit
performance and subsequen: paymen: of ren:, the mainzenance of the properies
e Sustammabiliy under the full repaimng and insunng leases and, most impor:antly, the
safeguarding of the underlying tenan:s through the above means, hes
¢ Comphance
with the Approved Providers.
and property
management The nvestment Adwiser works closely with the Company's Approved
s Welfare of Srovider pariners to improve standards and governance and to introduce
enants practices and procedures tha: make the Company's investmen: processes
e Lease obliganong ©Ver more robust
The Inves:men: Adwviser has a regular open dialogue with the Approved
Provider par:ners, haising monthly on compliance, health and safety.
maintenance and future-proofing schemes, as well as hosung quarterly
seminars o discuss curren: themes/trends affecuing the sector and o
-roulkleshoo: This serves as an opporaunity o builld relatonships and
share best practice.
The Inves:men: Adviser 1s suppored by the essablishment of The Social
Housing “amily C .C, a not-for-profit community interes: company
operated independently of the Company whose stated aim s 1o enable
Approved Providers helding the Company's leases to increase skills and
experience and to provide funding o promote enhanced performance.
Membership 1s open 0 any Approved Provider tha: holds Civitas leases
and the effect of membership 18 10 ransfer ownership of the Approved
2rovider 1o the social housing farmly Auckland Zomes Solutions was the
firs: Approved Provider 1o join and has now recrutied a very experienced
and senior execuave team and board of management Quahtas
communtty kenefiz societwy has also jomed the C:IC.
Regulator of e nancial and The Company 1s not tself regulated by rhe 8=, but 1718 importan: to
Social Housing operational maintain open and regular dialogue to ensure that the Company and the
(RSH) viabihry 5= are working together 1o improve :he secior.

s Governance . .
? The inves:men: Adwviser has a reqular and ongoing dialogue with the R34

e Complance With  3n4q with the Approved Provider parners regulated by the RSH
health and safesy,

and regulatory The Company also publishes responses 1o the regulatory judgemen:s of
standards the R3= regarding she Approved roviders working with the Company as
e Safety and par: of the 28='s general review of Approved Providers engaged in “he
wellbeing of provision of property services for vulnerable people as announced
underlying In May 2078, This demonsirates the Company's desire o maintain a

dialogue with the 28= and 175 desire o see tha: the positions improve
where needed.

enants




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

our stakeholders

Other requlatary
authorities

The Company can
only operate with
~he approval of
1's regulators who
have a legiumate
mnterest in how
the Company
operaas in the
marke: and trea’s
1's shareholders.

Local au?l';)rities

Lenders
Avallalnlity of
funding and
handity are
crucial 1o the
Company's abihity
o take advantage
of investmeant
opportunitias as
‘hey arise,

Key arcas of interest

s Comphance
with statutory
and regulatory
requirements

s Governance
kased on bes:

practice guidance

e Better reporiung
:0 shareholders
and other
stakeholders

e Provision of
safe and secure
properies of a
high quality

e Sustainability
for leng-term
placemen:s

Current and
future financial
performance of
-he brasiness

+ Openness and
ransparency
Proactive
approach to
COMMUIMCAnon

e Operational
excellence

How we engage

The Company regularly considers hiow 1t meets various regulatory and
statutory obligations and follows voluntary and best practice guidance,
and how any governance decisions it makes can have an impact on

1ts shareholders and wider stakeholders. both in the shorter and in the
longer-term.

The Board receives quarterly regulatory comphance monitonng apdates
from the Investmens: Adviser.

The Board receives quarterly comphance updates from the A'FM regarding
the Company's compliance with 1's investmen: policy and the [nvesiment
Adviger's compliance with the [Invesiment Management Agreement.

The Board also has access to the advice of the Compariy Secrerary who
provides updates and advice on regulatory, statatory and governance

mat:ers for consideranon by the Board at s quarterly meeungs and ag
and when required.

it is importan: for the Company o build and maintain relazionships with
local authonties as they have an imporan: role in idenufying areas

of high demand, agreeing rents and referrals to the Company's asse:
managernen: ininasives

The Company will engage with ‘he local authority commissioner erther
direc:ly. or through specialhist consultants, Approved Provider and care
provider parners as part of the Company's due diligence to ensure tha:
each propery being acquired has been commssioned by the relevan:
local authority and that ren: levels have been discussed and agreed.

The Company has arranged debt facilizies from a wide range of lenders
and engages with these on a reqgular basis through regular meenngs and
presentations o ensure they are informed on all relevant areas of the
business. The continual dialogue helps ©o suppor: the credir relattionships.

The Company has reaffirmed its lnvesiment Grade High Credit Quality
Raung from Mich Ratings imized of "A” {(senicr secured) and a ".ong-Term
DR {Issuer Default Raung) of "‘A-"with a S:able Cutlook.

This will enable the Company 10 pursue its sirategy n relation o deb:
fanding. in addition to continuing to work with the Company's existing
lenders, with whom *he Company has buil: strong relauonships

Dunng the year, the 3oard considered and closed a five year term debt
facility with Jeutsche 3ank AG. Furtherinformation can be found on
page b,
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement
Continued

QVurstakcholders Key areas of interesy

How We engage

Communities s Acceptance A key component of the Company's portfolio 1s that the properties within
The Company's of care in the 17 are set within community environmen:s so that individuals are able as
agsesrelyona communty part of their care plan to interact with the local community rather than
srong, positive e Avallatnlity of being 1sclared.
connection . ;
with the local 123222“11&65 for This is achieved 1t consultation with local authorzies in determining
communites in has the intaal setings are appropriately diversified within the respective
which 15 business communry and are net cldstered in a way tha: would lead 1o 1solation.
operares .
This assists the individuals and also ensures appropnate mtegratuon
within the communtiy. On a day-to-day basis, care providers and
Approved 2roviders operate policies to ens.re posiuve relationships
wish neighbours and surrounding dwellings. The activities within the
Company's properites create employmen: within the local community for
both housing and care workers.
Charity partners e« Delivering The Company supporie a number of orgamsations whose objecives
needed support  are to provide improved outcomes for valnerable adults affecied by
-0 viilnerable homelesgness and other care needs.
aduls

The Company commis targeted fiinancial suppor: ¢ fund specific
programmes which help those affected by homeleszness by teaching
“hem skille and offertng suppor: (o prevent them from being in that
POSIEIoN again.

e mproved
wellbelng of
vulneralble adul:s

e E5G performance
and sustamnability The Company ensures reqular calls and meetings with our charity

partners o update on progress and projects being undersaken, as well as
arending even:s in suppor of their work




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Principal Decisions

nncipal decisions have been defined as thase tha:t have
a material impac: 1o the Group and 175 key s:akeholders.

n taking these decisions, the Direcrors considered therwr
dunes under seanon 172 of the Act Principal decisions
made durnng ~he vear were as follows:

New Regulatory Clause Initiative

‘n 2022, “he Beard considered and agreed a new
approach o the Company's lease model with the goal
of supporing addiuonal requlatory compharnce and
addressing percepaons of nisk. The new regulasory
clause enables Approved Prowviders 10 achieve greater
alignment betweaen income recelp:s and lease habihoes,
ser achievable capizal solvency requIremenis agains:
lease obligations and demonsirate a further degree of
risk shanng

The new lease clauze has. following detalled negonanon
including legal inpus, recewved approval from the boards
of -wo mnal housing assoclanons with wham 1t had
been digcussed. The Company had previously sough:
and obtained formal writen confirmanon from 11
valaers 'har the mclusion of a clause of Thig 'ype within
the Company's new and exisung leases will not of uself
cauase a dimmnuntoen in “he value of those leases or in “he
underlying asse’s

Takeover Offer

As announced on 9 May 2023, the 3oard made “he
deasion to recommend o shareholders an all-cash offer
of 80 pence for each share of the Company by Wellness
Uity Lrmted {a wholly owned subsidhary of CK Assert
=oldings ameed)

Al-hough the 3vard eheves *he offer undervalues

“he long-term prospec:s of the Company. the 3oard
recogmses that the Company and the sector in which

17 operates faces a number of challengas in hghs of the
carrent macro environmen: and ouslook. This mcludes
the considerable neganve sentument in the public
markes Jowards the Company and the social housing
secror which the 3oard believes are unlikely o be
overcome 1n the shor: 0 medram “erm and will conunae
o have a mazenalimpac: on the Company's share price
prospects naddiion, despiie delivenng on revenue,
NAY and dividend growth since 20, the Company's
shares have raded for some 1me at an en-renched
ciscount to NAY.

On 23 June 2023, the Offer became ancondiuonal

Updates to Debt Arrangements

Durning the year the Board considered and closed a new
five yvear term dels: facluy of o f77 milion with a major
“uropean bank lender

The facility was deploved in full to redeem the
Company's exigung facihzy with _loyds Bank of

£60 mullion as well as providing additional haundity. As a
resuls, all of the Company's debr facilinies are at 00% fixed
or capped rates.

Buyback Programme

Juring the year, the Board momizored the dechine in the
Company's share price and i1 response, the 3oard agreed
she implementation of a share buyback programme
under certain parame:ters, which 1s being operated by the
Company's Jownt Brokers.

Turther informanon on the Company's buylback
nrogramme can be found on page 50,
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Strategic Overview

Purpose of the Company

The Company was established in 2076 with the purpose
of dehvenng long-ierm responsible, stable retums to
investors and achieving posive measurable social
impac: and =5G benefits on a large scale, * should
achieve this as a resul: of itroducing long-term equity
capizal into the social housing sector with a paracalar
focus on care-based community housing. 3y doing so,
s would form a bridge between equity inves:ors and
“he social housing sectior and brning together aspec:s of
healthcare with socal housing.

The Company has since developed the larges: por:folio
of care-based community housing in the UK “hat provides
long-term homes for more than 14,500 1individuals across
half the local authonties 1in England and Wales

As a result of this success, the Company extended s
mandare 1o be able 1o enter into ransaciions directly
with the N=S and with leading chariiies with an interes:
in the provision of specialist housing tha: has a strong
care or suppor: elemens, 1s consiszen: with public pohcy
and whose costs are me: by ~he pubhc purse for which 1
offers value for money.

Investment Objective

The Company's Invesimean: ohjecive 18 10 provide
shareholders with an avracuve level of income, together
with the perennal for capral growth frem invesung ma
porifolio of Sacal “omes. which henefits from inflaliien
adjusted long-Term leases or occupancy agreemen:ts with
Approved “roviders and o deliver, on a fully invested
and geared basis, a “argeted dividend yield of 5% per
annum-, which the Company expecrs 0 increase broadly
in line with inflation,

Investment Policy

The Company's inves:men: policy 15 o 1nves: 1 a
chversified por:folio of Social “omes throughoua:

she United {ingdom. The Company inzends 1o mea:

-he Company's inves:men: obiectuve by acquinng,
wpically indirectdy via Specal 2umose Vehicles,
porfolios of Social “umes and encernng o long-term
inflaniion adjusied leases or occupancy agresmen:s

for terms primartly ranging from "2 years o 40 years
with Approved Providers. where all managemens

and mamzenance obhganions will ke serviced by the
Approved Providers. The Company will not underake
any developmean: acivisy or agsume any developmen: or
consiracion risk. Zowever, the Company may engage i1
TENOVATING OF CUSTOMUSING eXI1ETING homes, a8 necessary
The Company may make praden: use of leverage "o
finance “he acqusinon of Social “omes and “o preserve
capiral on a real bagis

The Company 1§ focused on delivenng capital grow:h !
and expec:s 10 hold 1its Portfoho over *he long term and

*herefore 1115 unlikely that the Company will disposge

of any par of the Porifolio \n the unhikely even: thata

par of the Portfolio 1s disposed of, the Directors intend

o remnves: proceeds from such disposals in asseis in

accordance with :he Company's invesimen: policy.

Investment Restrictions

The Company invests and manages ‘he Poriolio with the
objecuve of delivering a high-guahty, diversified Porfohio
“hrough the following inves:imen: resiricions:

e -he Company only invests i Social Fomes located in
‘he Unrred <ingdom;

e :he Company only inves:s i Social Somes where the
Counerpary to "he lease or occupancy agreemen: 1s
an Approved Provider:

e no lease or occupancy agreemeans shall ke for an
unexpired pentod of less than "0 vears, unless ~he
shorier leases or OCCUPAncy agraements represent
part of an acguisiion of a portfolio which the
‘nvestmen: Adviser intends to reorgamse such tha:
‘he average term of lease or occupancy agreemen: Is
Increased to % years or ab:ove;

e che aggregare maximum exposdre 1o any single
Approved Prowider s 25% of the Gross Asset Value,
once the capral of the Company s fully invested;

e noinvestmen: by the Company in any single
geographical area. in relazion 1o which -he houses
and/or aparrmens: blocks owned by -he Company are
located on a contiguous or largely coniaguous hasis,
exceeds 20% of -he Gross Asse: Value of the Company:

e “he Company only acquires complered Soclal momes
and will no: forward finance any developmen: of new
Social —omes;

e he Company does notinves: in other aliernanve
inves-men: funds or closed-end invesimen-
companies; and

e he Company & no: engaged mn shor: selling.

The nves men: hmits detalled above apply at the nime of
“he acqguisrion of the relevant inves:men: in the 2orifolio
once fuily invesed. The Company would not be reqaired
o dispose of any iInves:men: or o rebalance the Porfolio
as a resul: of a change 1n the respecnive valuanions of 17s

AERETE

Gearing Limit

The reciors seek to use geanng o enhance equty
returns. The level of borrowing 1s se: on a pruden: basis
for the asse: class and seeks "0 achieve a low cos of
fands. wwhils: mamzaining she flexakilizy in ~he underlang
securn:y reqairements and the stracture of both “he
Corsfolin and the Company.

1 The dividend vield 1s based on the onginal [PO price ol 100 penes per Ondinary share The rarget dividends are argets only and do not tepresent a profit loecast
There <an be no assurancs that the 1aggets can of will be metand should not be raken as 4n ndwanen of the Company s expeci2d of actual future results
Accopdingly potentiab investiors should not place any rellanee on thesa rargets in deaiding whether or nob toanvest in the Company or assume that the Company
whll make any distributions at all and should decide for themselves whether ot not the Tateget dnadend yields are reasanable of achievabls



Strategic Overview
Continued

The Company may. followng a decision of the 3oard.,
raise dehr fram hanks and/ior the raparal markvate and the
aggregate borrowings of the Company is always subjec:
co an absolute maximim of 40% of Grogs Asse: Value
calculated at the time of drawdown. Current gearing 1s
35.61% {2022 34 4354}

Jebt s secured at asse: level. whether over a paracular
property or a holding enuty for a paricular series of
properieas, without recourse to the Company and also
porenually at Company level with or withou: a charge
over the Porfolio (but no: agains: particular assets),
depending on the opimal structare for the Company and
having consideration o key metrics including lender
diversity, cost of debt deb: wype and matunty profiles.
Otherwise there will be no cross-financing between
imnvesiments in the 2orrfolio and the Company will not
operate as a common treasury funcion between the
Company and 135 mvestments.

Use of Derivatives

The Company may choose 1o unhse denvatives for
efficient perifolic management. In particular. the
Jirectors may engagenn full or paraal interes: rate
hedging or otherwise seek “o mitigate the nsk of interes:
rate increases on borrowings mceurred 1n accordance
with the geanng limits as part of the management of the
2ar:folic.

Cash Management

The Company Inves:s 1n cash, cash equvalents. near
cash insinimen:s and moneay marke: INsiraments.

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)

REIT Status

The Directors conduc: the atiairs ot the Company so as o
enable 1m to remain qualified as a IRIT for the purposes
of 2ar: 12 of the Corporation Yax Act 2070 {and the
regulations made thereunder).

Culture

The Mrectors agree that establishing and maimntaining

a heal:hy corporate culrure among “he 3oard and in s
interaction with the 'nvestmen: Adviser, shareholders
and other stakeholders will suppor: the dehvery of 11
purpose, values and strateqgy The Scard seeks to promoie
a culture of openness, dekate and integrity through
angoing dralogue and engagemen: with 125 service
providers. principally the nvestmen: Adviser.

As desalled in the Corporate Governance Staement,

the Company has a number of pohicies and procedures

in place o assist with mamtaming a culture of good
governance, Including those relaung o diversity and
Drectors’ conflicts of interest. The Board assesses and
monitors comphiance with these pohcies as well ag “he
general caltare of the Board through 3onard meetings and,
in parmecalar, dunng the annual evaluanon process which
15 anderaken by each hrector (for more information, see
the performance evaluaion seciion on pages 56 and Y/,

The 3oard's culture rself 15 one of openness,
collaboranon and consrucive debate 10 engure the
effective contribunion of all Directors, particularly in
respect of the Board's decision making. Consideraion
of our s:akeholders s embedded 1in the Joard’s decision
making process. Please see our section 72 §.atement on
pages 7t0 25

Measwe Explanation

Increase 1n NAV
per share

Target 1o achieve capital appreciation whils:
mathiaining a low nsk sirategy trom enhancing
the qualizy of cash Hlows from invesiments, by
physical improvemen: of properiies and by
creaung a signihcanty diversihed. high-quahty
porifola.

ResUIT .
NAV increase of 17.2p per share 11.4%
from 12C (2022 "234p per share 12.6% from (PO).

for the year ended 31 March 2023, :he Company
targeted a dividend of 570p per share.
Target risk mitigauon :krough a diversified
periolio (once fully invested) with no more
than 25% exposure to any one local authorily or
single Approved Provider and ne more than 20%
exposure 10 any single gecgraphical area. once
the capiial of the Company 1s fully inves:ed.

Dividends per
share
Number of local
auwheriies.
Approved
Providers and
care providers

Loan o Targeted “o:al debt drawn no more than 40% ol
Gross Asses (JrOSs asse:s,
(Leverage)

Teal dividend of 5.70p per share declared for the
year o 3. March 2023 (2022: 5 55p)

As a1 3l March 2023

178 ‘ocal aurhoricy parners (2022 178 (ocal
a.thority pariners)

19 Approved Providers (2022 18 Aporoved Providers)
131 care providers (2022: 130 care providers)

The Company's larges: single exposare 1s e “alcon

Housing Associaion CiC and currendly siands a: 19%
(2022: 19%). ‘The largest geagraphical concentratuon is
in the South West, bemng 14% (2027 °6%)

Leverage as a: % March 2023 of 35.51% of grosé
assets (2022: 34 435%).
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Strategic Overview
Continued

EPRA i

The Company 1s a member of the suropean Public Real Zsiate Assoclanon ('F2RAN. BPRA has developed and defined
the following performance measures o give rransparency, comparability and relevance of financial reporing

across ennies which may use differen: accouantng standards, The Company is pleased o disclose the following
measures which are calculated in accordance with =224 guidance These are all Aliernative Performance Measures of
“he Company.

g EPRA Earnings EPRA Net Reinstatement EPRA Net Tangible Assets EPRA Net Disposal
- ; | Value (“NRV") (*NTA") Value (“NDV™)

E Zarnings rationa

;E dC'LVl‘lgz rom aperaner =PRA NAV merric which F2RA NAV memc which E?A NAV metnic

g T assumes ‘hat enties never assumes that endsies buy which represents the

zell assets and aims o and sell asseis, thereby shareholders  valie under

represent the value requred crystalhsing ceriam levels of  a chsposal scenarno,

“o relrald the enuty. unavoidatble deferred ax. where deferred tax,
financilal insiramen:s and
cerrain other adjusimen:s
are calciulated o the full
extent of thewr habihy, ne: !
of any resulang tax. '

gg A key meazure of a The =234 NAV set of memnes make adnisimenis o the NAV per the financlal statemean:s o
g_ company’s anderiying provide stakeholders vath the most relevant informanon on the fair value of the assets and
'5 operatng resulis and an habihines of a real estare invesimen: company, under differen: scenarnos,
A& indication of the exien: "o
which current dividend
paymen:s are supporied
by earmings.
] EPRA Earnings EPRA NRV EPRA NTA EPRA NDV
5 b - - B
E .. N - -
Ic-’ RS At vAS B o
T 26,929,000 653,780,000 673,645,000
& EER iz et
29,810,000 673,416,000 673,416,000 678,191,000
oo A A P
30,630,000 674,042,000 674,042,000 671,476,000
EPRA Earnings per share EPRA NRV per share EPRA NTA per share EPRA NDV per share
Basic and A b oens A S TN 1 IR [ TR N
[a43 | 107.62 107.52
3 482 109.96 109.96 110.74
-
z P Eh s O
: 4.93 108.38 108.38 107.97

AN SOCIAL HOUSING PLC

28

a5t performance 12 not a reliakle indicasar of fatare performance. -or de-alled workings reconaling ~he above
measires 1o "he 28 razulbs pleaze zee Appendix T o these financial statements on pages "27 w0 A4



Definition

Purpose

Performance

Strategic Overview

Continued

EPRA Net Initial
Yield (“NIY™}

Annualised rental
ncome based on the
cash ren:s passing
a: the balance
sheet date, less
non-recoverable
property operating
expenses, divided
by the marke: value
of the proper:y
with (esumared)
purchasers' cos:s.

EPRA Topped-up Net
Initial Yield (“NIY™)
This measure
INCOTROrates an
adjustment 0 the
FE2RA NIY 1n respec:
of the expiration of
ren:-free penaods

{ar other unexpirad
leage mcennves s.ch
as discounted rens
periods and stepped
rents).

A comparable measure for porfolic
valuations. These measures should make 11
eagter for iInvestors o judge themselves, how
‘he valuation of porifolio X compares with

portfohio V.

EPRA Costs Ratio

Administrative and
operating costs
(inchuding and
excluding cos:s

of direct vacancy)
dwvided by gross
rantal income,

A key measure o
enable meaningful
measurement

of the changes

M acompany's
operaing cosis.

EPRA LTV

Debt (including nes
pavakiles bu: net

of cash balances)
drnded by the markes
vahie of property
ancluding ne:
recevatles).

A key {(shareholder-
geannd memnc

0 determine the
percentage of debs
comparing o the
appraisad value of
“he properieas.

EPRA Vacancy Rate

Estimated Marke:
Renzal Value ("5RV™) of
vacan: space dvided
by ERV of the whole
portfolio.

A pure’ (%) measare of
Invesument property
space tha: 1s vacans,
based on ERV

EPRA NIY

A%
5.28
POl

5.24

EPRA Topped-up
NIY

EPRA Costs Ratio!

20.33

EPRA LTV

EPRA Vacancy
Rate

Pag performance 1z not a relhiatle indhicator of fatare performance. "or dealled workings reconaithng the above
measuras 1o the 7RS resulis, pleass see Appendix " 1o these finanaal statements on pages 22 1o 4,

1 The 1atios meiusive of vacancy costs are the same as the 1atio exclusive of vacaney cosis lor 2022, 2021 and 2020
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Principal Risks and Risk Management

The 3o0ard considers thar *he nsks detailled below are the principal nsks facing the Group currently, along with the nsks
detailed 1n note 5.0 10 the financial stazemensts. These are the ngks tha: could affect the ability of the Company o delhiver
118 strategy. The Board confirms that the pnnaipal nsks of the Company. including those which would threaten s future
performance. solvency or liquidiy, have been robus:ly assessed throughout the yvear ended 37 March 2025, taking into
accoudnt the emerging nsks such ag the longer term. climaze change nsk, cyber security risk and recnuismen: of staff a:
counterparies rnisk. and that processes are 1n place 10 continue this assessment.

The Audir and Vianagement shgagemen: Commitee has divided the Company's nisks into the following risk type
caeqgones

e Srateqgy and Compentveness;
e  Operanonal including Cyber Cnme;
e .nvesimen: Managemenst, and

e Accouniung, Legal and egulatory.

sach nsk contained in each category s reviewed for 1tg 1mpact and prokabilizy by the Audir and Managemens:

Lngagemen: Commitee at least -wice dunng the year

The Audir and Managemen: Sngagemean: Commisee akes responsibilizy for overseeing the effectiiveness of nigk
managemen: and mternal control systems on behalf of the 3oard and adwvises the 3oard on the principal nsks facing
‘he business

Surther detatls of risk managemen: processes thart are in place can be found in the Corporate Governance Satement
on pages 57 and 58 The principal and emerging risks and uncerramnues relating o the Group ate reqularly reviewead
by the 3vard along with the im:ernal controls and nsk managemen: processes that are uged 0 mingate ‘hese nsks
The 3oard acknowledges tha: the Takeover by Wellness Cniry Limited may resul: inincreased nsk both during the
transiion and subseduently Specihically. the Directors have not had detalled visimhity of ‘he offeror's pos? complenion
funding for the group or the detailled plans behind “he intentions statemen:s included within the announcemens.
Owversighr and montronng dunng this peniod will take on criical impor-ance. The Board has tdentified one new
principal nsk dunng the year (as set ous in the higr of principal nsks and uncerimnies). The nisk associated with a
disrupnon to share price dile to negatve sentimenst in the social houstng sector was wdentified as having ~he highes:
impac: and hkelthood. The nsk associated with promoung the Company to generate invesior demand was removed
as a principal nigk by “he 3oard dunng the year as the Takeover Offer by Wellness Uniy amriied has reduced the need
for the Company 10 generate adcdhimonal mves:or demand. “urther details on ‘his and he other principal risks and the
managemen: of those risks are descnbed below.

Very High
High
-
o
0, Medium
E
Low
é Very Low
E % Very . . . Very
=z unlikely Unlikely Possible Likely Likely
£
S Probability

W
[=]



Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

1 Suategy and Compeutiveness risk

The Company's share price

is disrupred dae 10 negative
sentliment :owards the social
nousing socior iol.owing a
-argeted atacy by a shor: seller
and po.lution from other events in
“he secior.

This risk remained at the same
.evel as the year ended 31 Marcn
2022,

2 Slateqy alrld COMPENNYness risk _
The Company and i1 opcraions
are subject 10 laws and reg..atlons
enacted by naiona: and local
governments and government
oolicy

This risk remained at the same
.evel as the year ended 31 March
2022,

$§ suaeqy and
As a resdl of compe:ition from
other purcaasers ot social nousing
properics, the Company's ability
.0 deploy capial effectively witnin
a reasonaple iimeframe may ne
reswrnicted of the net imual yields at
wnich the Company can acg.ire
oroperies Imay decling sucn na:
LArget reuIns Canno: pe me:.

mpelitiveness risk

This risk remained at the same
level as the year ended 31 March
2022

lnpact

o Compdlly 18 arges
Dy a SNort s¢. er or acivist
gnarcho.der cading 1o
afa.inihe Company’s
share price and a
widening of (e discouns
0 NAV

Sigrufican: numocrs ot
snares may nced 1o bo
reparcnased leading o
a fal in the size of the
Company and ‘iquidlity
imolicasions.

ll!lgﬂ _

Any cnango n cac

1AWSE, Teg.w. ainons and/

or govemiment polley
aftecting the Comrnpany
and 1's operations may
ave a matena. adverse
cffoc: on the aoi. iy of The
Company 10 s.ocessfully
nursue insinvesiment
poacy and meolis
investmen: oo’ecuve

and on 1ng vaue of ;e
Company and e snares.

limpact

Tnerale ol caplia.
deploymen: would drop,
decreasing re:.rns o
shareho.ders.

The Board 1s commitied o maintaining Impact:
open channels of communication witn High
shareholdcrs and engaging in ways
sharchoiders find most meaningfi., in
order 10 gain undersianding of shareho'der
views. Furiher intormartion on :he Board's
engagement wi:h sharenolders can be
found on nages 17 1o 25.

How managed/mtigated

Probability:
Likely

The Board seeks (o provide [ull disclosure
on the counterpar:ies and the siructure ot
transacions se (ha: ail stakehoelders are
kep: reliably intormed on the Company's
business dea.ings.

The Board regular.y reviews ne
Company's buyback policy 1o ensure this
18 in alignment with tne interess of the
Company and snarenolders. The Board

is also mindful of the possibility 10 issue
shares and regularly reviews iis policy In
s area 10 ensurc that it is consistent with
ne Company's siTategy. [ recelves rega.ar
updares from tac Company's brokers (o
nelp inform its decisions in this regard.

H naged/mitigated

Impact:
Very high

The Company focuscs on niche real estate
sectors wherge it nedieves the regulaory
frameworx and wnderying demand
dynamics .0 be ronust

Probability:

e o iseT nas s i LSIrY, .
e invesiment Advi s strong indusiry Unlikely

corrac:s and has good <nowledge on
poilcy opinion and direction.

Tae Board obtains regu.ar Lpdales
from orofessional adviscers 1o monitor
developments in regulation and !egisiation.

Now managed,/ mngarcd

The Company nas strong .ings with vendoers
and a robus: pipeiine of future acd.igizions.

Impact:
High

Tae Board regular.y reviews tne pipeine
of potentia acauisiitions and monitors ine
mar<ct .andscape.

Probability:
Unlikely

Tne Board is aware ot the curren:
rompetiiive social ho.sing marxet and
recognises e urpadct this may nave on
the Company's abliny 1o depioy caoral
effeciively.
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Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

4 Investment

anagement risk .
Tenani defa.sling under the terms
of a ‘easc.

impact

Loss of renta. income in
e snors term

This risk remained a: the same
level as the yecar ended 31 March
2022,

w(ﬂ“nel![ﬁ!ﬁanﬂwr trisk . Hlﬁl’ dc,' -
The value of the investmen:s made “ne val.allon of 1ng
py ne Company may change fromr Company’s assers wo. . d
dme rolime agcording 1o a3 variewy
of factors, iInc uding movements
in inerest rates. inflation and
genara. market pricing of similar
invesgimensts.

fa. decreasing iaa
NAV and yic de of the
Corm pany

s ris< remained a: the game
.eve! as the year ended 31 Marca
2622

wgsl}[@giﬂandgc-mrm sk lII]E?El" ~
Tne gurrent Macrocconomic
environmeni nas increased ne
eve, of risk around the Company's
financing arrangemen:s regarding
borrowing erms and covenanis,

orms ncrease s
tinancing cos:g reducing
relaIns (o gnareno.dors

This wasdentified as a new ris<
during the year

Impact . .
Thae Company wo..d
averoay {or asses

I 0arnng saarena.der
va. e red.cing rena
income and thcretare
relLrns

Die dilgence may notrevea. al
facts and circums:ances [ha: may
0& relevan: in Connecion wiin an
in¥asIren: and may no’ pravern:
an acg..isilion neing ma:eria.ly
overva..ed or renial sireams peing
alrs<.

Tng ris« remained a: ne same
love! as 1ne year ended 31 Marcn
2022

How managed/mugated

ow managed/imiugated

Tne portfelio is nigh.y diversified (o reduce
the impac: of defaul,. Exiensive diligence is
underiaken on al assets, waich is reviewed
and chalienged by he Board.

The [nvestmen: AQviser works proaciively
witn Aporoved Providers 1o address any
poten:ial concerns.

The Board is providead wilh reguuar upda.es
on the tenan's with any concerns raised for
discussion.

Tne Board has noled :ha! the Company's
tstoric .evel of defat.is has been
immatenai.

The Company inve in orojecis wit
siaole predetermined. long-term leases in
place with CPT or CPI pius 1% indexa:ion
and i's sirategy is not focused on sale of
properties.

e Board receives reguiar Apdates on
factors that mignt immpac: invesimen:
vatations.

How managed/misgated

Less favo.aran.c oorrowing  The Invesimen: Adviser, AIFM and

Deposlary menlior covenanss in olace wih
dcot providers and presen: (o he Board on
a quarter.y basis

The Invesimeni Adviser ‘everages (ne
relanonships it already has in 1ne mar<et
o form long erm parmnersnips wiin deb:
oroviders at ratesg it already nas acnieved
on similar projec:s wiinin 1ne samsa

T acro mar<er,

The Invesimen: Adviser repors 2o e

Board on disc.issions with 0anss walec: wil
1IgALIgaT al e ear.les: Oooor..nivy if
ris< nas increased.

e Comrpany underaxes de:alled due
drigence on (e proRerics e Condiion.
‘ne proposed renial levess - penchmar<ing
agains: comparan.e scnemes .sing 0ol
exIerna. consa.lants waere req.ired and

is own propriciary datanase - and on ae
Aporoved Providers and carc nroviders
mvo.ved in eacn property to eNSJre naline
OLICnase orice 18 rop.ast

manaqed/mfgated

Tne Board considers 1ne dle diigence
Lnderaien waen anproving acg.isiilons.

Impact:

Impact:r
Medium

Probability:
Likely

High

Probability:
Possible

Impact:

Medium

Frobability:
Possible

 Impact:
High

Probability:
Unlikely



Principal Risks and Risk Management
Continued

How managed/mingared o .
The Board considers the risk of the
Investrment Adviser losing key staff and the
guccession plans the Invesiment Adviser
has in pace.

6 Ivestment management nsk § _ . _ lmpact
Loss of key siaff al ine Inves:ment

Adviser.

Negative investor
scniimen:! leading "o a
reduciion in sharc prico
Reduciion in agilty
source off mar<el and
favourab.e dea’s.

This risk remained at e same
leve! as the year ended 31 March

2022, Tne Board has noied the ongoing

expansion of the Invesimen: Adviser’s
§LpporT team.

__How managed/minigated
Regu.ar review and consideraion by
the Board including the input of climatc
change specialists at :he Investment
Adviser.

Qﬂr_alegy.s_nd competiliveness o
Tne Company faiis to respond 1o
issues related 1o climate change,
cither directly as enhancemen:s
10 proper:ies or indirectly via its
ciithate change reporing.

. Impacl R . R
Decreasein the va.le of
ne Company's asscls and
a hegative impact on :he
Company's snare price,

Advice received from external professionai
This rigk remained at :he samre advisers.
revel as the year ended 31 March

l}?gomnpngl Vmcluqu cybex_ﬂe
Serious accident or poor
rmanagement amongst Approved
Providers due 1o stafl shortages
and .os8 of competence.

. Impact _
Reputationai damage for
the Cormpany.

How managed/mutigalted

Reperiing from Approved Providers and
monitoring of Approved Providers by the
Invesiment Adviser.

This risk remained at the same
.eve: as the year cnded 31 Maran
2022,

Emerging risks .
smerging rigks are considered dunng the regular

nsk review, and would be specifically discussed and
evaluated as they anse dunng the yvear. _npua: from the
[nvestmen: Adwviser on emerging risks 1s considered by

- - manage/miigate this nsk.
“he Audir and Managemen: “ngagemen: Commitiee. age/ v ?

Ley emerging risks identuhed and congideraed dunng she

vear include: for further details

e ong-Term Chimate Change - the impact of chmaze
change, over the longer-term on the business. The
Company 13 commized o undersianding £5G risk.
nchiding the parucular impac: of chimarte changes
on the business, Climase change poses anandirec:
nsk ro The Company's operations, The environmen:
and soaety and the 3oard 1s aware that appropnate
acuon 1s required o reduce s impact. The 3oard
useg theupdates from the nvestmen: Adviser as they
relate o the performance of “he company and the
impact of long-rerm chmase change o help manage/

mingate this nsk .
: financial ye=ar 20724

Impact:

High

Probability:
Unlikely

Inl.lrpaét:
High
Probability:
Unlikely

Impact:
High
Probability:
Unlikely

Cyher Secunty — the impact of a cyber secury breach
within the Company or 138 service providers. The
Audlr and Managemen:T Engagemen: Commiree
reviews and monirors the cyber security controls of
the Company's setvice providers on a regular basis -

Please see the Company's o3G Repor: on pages 57 10 46

The Lisung Rules require premuam-hsred commercial
companias 1o thscloge in their annual repor: whether
shey have reporied on how climate change affecis

their business In a manner consizzen: with the
recommeandanons of the Task {orce on Chmate-related
“inanclal Dsclosares (1TCH D7), and 0 provide an
explanaion and other mformanon if they are unable

o doso. aaddinon the U Governmen: miends to
nroduce mandatory chmate-related disclosures 1o
supplement the requiremen:s under the Listing Rules. The
3nard has chosen not o adopt the requrements early
and expectz these 1o be apnhcable 1o the Coempany n the
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Going Concern and Viability Statement

Going Concern

The 3oard regularly reviews the posinion of the Company
and s ability to contiinie as a going concern at 178
meetings. The financial statemens:s se: out the current
financial posimon of the Company

z

Asg ar 3 March 2043, the Company held cash halances of
£35 6 million (ne: of operating and financing amounis
duel. The 3oard has evaluated the financial posiiion

of -he Company which has maintained 118 premium
invesimen: grade raung from -1ich Ranngs Lrd — a well
established raung agency with a sirong famihanty with
‘he alternailve healthcare real estate space, which gives
che Company confidence 1in the abilizy <o raise future

deb: and/or equity capizal in order o fund the Company’s

invesimen:s for the long term and o facihtaze the
paymen: of dividends <o shareholders 3ased on these,
‘he 3card belheves thar the Company 1s in a posinion <o
manage 118 financial rigks.

Vanaous forms of sensivity analysis have been
parformed. in parucilar The financial performance

of ~enan:s and a reducion 1n passing rent As at

3" varch 2023, the passing rent would have to drop by
approximaely "% before any of the Company's interes:
cover covenan:s are breached, The propery values
would need to fall by around "3% before breaching the
loan 1o valie covenan:.

The Company's performance 1n the even: of severe
B plausible downside scenarios used for viability
are equally apphicable for going concern. A7 the date
of approval of This repor:, the Company has sufficien:
headroom within s financial loan covenan:s. The
Company also benefizg from a secure mcome siream
from leases with long average unexpired *erm leases

_everage 18 pradently maimntained at a level of less “han
40% of Gross Asge: Value,

The Companys aracles of association inchide a
requiremen- for ~he 3oard o propose an ordinary
rasolution at the annual general meanng follovnneg the
fifth annmiversary from -he imnal pubhe offering of the
Company for the Company "o conunds s carrent form
i"he Coninuanon Resolutiond On °5 September 2022, at
“he Annual General Veelng shareholders represenung
288 478,435 vored in favour of the connnuation of the
Company being 98.835% of -hose who voied.

On 9 May 2023 an announcemen: was made 10 “he marke:
for an all-cash offer of the Company from Wellness Unity
wimired, a wholly owned indirec: subsidiary of CX Asse:
=oldings Limized (CKA) On 23 June 2023, when the offer
became ancondinional. CXA subsequen:ly became the
Jlnmate controlling pary of the Company, and a related
par:y under JAS 24 The Group's exisung committed deb:
facihzies contain a standard change of control clause
which has now been maggered die o the offer becoming
unconditional. This could resull in the existing commiized
del:r facilintes being withdrawn. The Group does not have
visibilizy of the pos: complenon funding for the Group at
+his urne. Therefore, this could create some uncertainty as
<0 the Group's going concern posiueon. The Jirec:ors note
*he deralled intentions stazement included within the
announcemen: on 9 Vay 20235 which s:ates tha: CKA does
no: envisage making any changes o the managemen:
team nor any disrapilion o any counterparias or

<0 the underlying tenans The condinions outhined

above indicare a mazenal uncerainty which may cas®
signitficant doub upon the Group and he Companys
ability 10 connnue as a going concern. The financial
siatementE do not mmclude the adjustments that would
resulnif the Group and the Company were unable 10
coninie as a going concern.

=aving considered all of the abiove, the 3oard s of the
opinton tha: the going concern basis adopted in the
preparaiion of the consohdated financial statements
18 appropriate,

Viability Statement

The wrectors presen: the Company's viability statemean:
which summanses the resul:s of their asseszment of
-he Company's curren: postion, s principal risks and
rospects over a peniod "o 30 Varch 2028

The Company acquires mgh-qualy propery with a
paracualar focus on property providing care for the long
cerm The properiles acqguired are on long--erm full
repalrng and insanng leases 1in a sector of the marke:

71mh very high levels of need. The cost baze of the
Company 1s proporionately low comparad <o revenis
and -here1g a mgh level of cerainty over cos: o bea
incuarred On thig basis, the Company 18 expecied "o be
wviable well heyond the frre-year term considered in the
Company’s tesung below

The assumpnons underpinning the forecas: cashflows
and covenan® comphance forecas: s were sensinised

w5 explore the resthence of the Company o the
porenialimeac: of the Company’s principal nsks and
uanceramnes



Going Concern and Viability Statement

Continued

The prospects were assessed over a five-year penod for
the following reasons:

i} e Company's .ong-erm forocast covers a tive-year
period:

ii) theleng:h of service level agreements between
Approved Providers and care providers 1s typically five
years: and

iii) the Company's leases are typically 25 years on fully
repatring and insuring (@ases, chnab.ing reasonabple
ceriainty of income over the nex: five years.

The Company's five-yvear forecas: incorporates
assumpions relazed o the Company’s investment
strateqy and prnncipal nisks from which performance
resulis, cash flows and key performance indicarors are
forecast. The principal risks are se: ous on pages 50 1o 3.
Qf these nisks, those which are expecied 10 have a higher
impact on the Company's longer-lerm prospeacts are
‘hose related o the current macraeconomic environmen:,
which has increased the level of nsk around the
Company's financing arrangements regarding borrowing
terms and covenan:s. The risk associated with a
cisTupiion 1o share price due ‘0 negative sentimert: imn
the social housing sector bemng idennfied as having

the highes: impacs and hkelihood, The Company has
considered 115 strategy over a longer term and. 1n hight

of the inherent demand for the Company's properies
and ‘he yvulnerablte nature of the yllimate tenant the

rnsk of change in funire housing pohcy 1s considered

w0 be himited. The prnncipal nsks are mingazed by the
Company’s nsk managemen: and nternal control
processes which function on an ongoing bass.

The 3oard, via delegation 1o the Audiz and Vanagemen:
~ngagemen: Commistes, montiors the effeciiveness of
the Company's sk managemen: and internal consrol
processes on an ongoing basis The mononng aciavitues
are described 1n the Repor: of the Audit and Managemen:
Fngagemen: Commutiee on pages 60 1o 62 and

include direct review and challenge of the Company's
documenzed nsks, nisk ranngs and controls, and review
of performance and comphance repors prepared by

the Company's kay supphers and the independent
exernal aquditors

The Joard of Jirecrorg has carned oat a robust
assessmeans: of the principal and emerging risks facing
“he Company, mcluading those “hat would threaten 1:g
rasimess model. future performance. solvency and
Lgadiry, Whers appropriate, The Company's forecas:s are
subject 1o sensiavy analysis. which mvolves applying
severe (I plaugible) condinions and flexing a number of
assumptions simdalianeously

The sensitrvities performed were designed o provide
the Directors with an understanding of the Companv's
pertormance in the event of severe but plausible
downside scenanos, taking full account of minganng
acnons that could be taken 1o avold or reduce The impac:
or occedrrence of the underlying nsks outhned below:

e 0% of tenants defauliing under a lease. 'The ouicome of
“his scenano reduces profits on average over the five
year forecast by 18% per annum and reduces cash by
£20 rmilhion. Eowever. the Board remaing comfortable
‘hat drvidends could e paid and any habihues could
he settled as there s sull a sufficient level of cash in the
business. T'herefore the business remains viable over
“he five year period and

e delenoration m economic outlock, or a change in
governmen: housing policy which could impact the
fundamensals of the social housing sector including
a negauve impact on valuaiuons and a 5% reducton
mn annual rents The outcome of the ‘severe downside
scenano was that the Company's covenant headroom
on exising debt the level at which the invesiment
properry values would have 1o fall before a financial
breach occurs) reduces by "3%, prior 10 any mitigaing
actions such as asse: sales, which indicates thas
covenan:s on exising facihties would not be breached.

The remaming principal rnisks and unceriamnes, whilst
having an impact on the Company’s business, are

not considered by the Direciors o have a reasonable
likehhood of impacing the Company's viabilily over the
five-year penod, therefore the scenanos cullined above
are ‘he only ones “hat have been specifically tesied.

sased on ‘he resiulis of their assessmen:., no™withsanding
the matenal uncer:ainty ansing from the offer from CXA,
the Directors have a reasonable expectation tha: the
Company will be able jo coniinue in operation and mee:
1zs habilities as they fail due over the five-yvear peniod of
their assessment

Michael Wrobel

Chairmarn
28 June 2023
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The Portfolio’s Carbon Footprint
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Tonnes (TCO,) per Civitas Tenancy

March 2023 March 2022

2.61 2.65

Souree Civnas retaned ERC data ;;
snergy Performance Gerificates (KPCR) are 1550 All rental proper lies are legally requured to have an 5.2C go
following the energy sarvey of a propery by an energy in the UK and a good energy raning indicates that the ;;
assessor K2Cs illustrate the energy efficiency of properies residents of the property will benefit from: ; 5
and gwve a property an enerygy ranng from A {very e Lower energy bills - energy efficien: properies will ] |
efficient) to G (inefficient. Fach =2Chs valid for "0 years and result in comparably lower residen: consumpton and F
nctudes a st of recommendanons that provide gadance herefore reduce energy il '8
on how the energy efficiency of the property could be e Lower carbon footprint - increasing the energy E
improved to reduce energy bills and carben emissions.

efficiency of the properties will lower carbon emissions

s 'mprove propery vilue — improving the energy
raning will also likely enhance the vahie and ensure
consistenly low vord levels at the properies.

Civitas EPC Distribution (Domestic/Non-Domestic) — March 2023

Non-domestic/Higher Acuity [l Domestic/Homes

39.8%

43.1%
40.9%

Saurce Clvitas retammed FPC data

Domestic/Homes

e Tefor i Tre-"hieer o Do e O Ay T
vl

I INISIIGH IV EDOS SVYLLALD

20T SLNIIODY UNV LHO0UY

w
~]



Energy Performance/SAP Ratings

Carbon Reduction — EPC/SAP Ratings
Civitas Porttoho idomestc and non-domestic) Energy Pertormance
Certitivates (EPC) - March 2023

Civitas continues to improve the overall energy performance. with a
continued focus on properties with EPC ratings D and E, through active asset
management, including property improvement works, renovations and
scheduled post-completion works.

EPC Distribution across the Portfolio at 31 March 2023

AQD2

D342

F oo

G 00

Crvras 33+ properies end o offer larger accommodarnon for tenaris than convennonal social houswutg or other privaze
dwellings. The properues are predominantly siree: properies bl pre 1940 with sohd walls

As shown 1 the able belovr, the energy performance of the Civiras portfolio compares favourably agains: the
performance across all housing tenures ag reporied in the 2020/21 =nghsh ~ousing Survey (5531 Crviras 853= propertes
have a larger proporiaon of detached and serm-detached properies compared o soctal renzed and private rented
dwellings

Comparable EPC/SAP Ratings
by tenure (%) (domestic/homes only)

Energy Performance Certification Band

AlB _ _ C D E_ _ F_ _ G Rating

29 400 468 78 22 03 657
30 415 417 88 37 12 649

- _ . _ 35 632 281 25 _ 07 02 701
30 445 &27 71 22 05 663

Civitas domestic (March 2023} 1.0 409 364 1.7 00 0.0 671

Owner occupied

Private rented S -

Social rented

Al tenures

Saurce English Housing Sutvey (20213 Anney Tabie 28 Energy ethicrency raling bands by tenure 2021 & Annex Table 27 Mean 3AP tating by tenure 208



E.ON Partnership (Phase 2)

‘ONM

The collaboraniion with E.ON has been based on the
adopuon of a ‘fabric first” approach to reducing the
porifcho’s carbon footpnnu Detatled retrofi surveys
identfy the potential -0 metall canty wall insulanon. Inf
msulation, external wall insulation, air source heat pumps
and solar PV and batery s:orage a: targered properies.
The ins:allanon of these energy efficien: measures (where
considerad viablel, unlising available governmen: gran:s
and other funding sources, maximses vahie for the
Company and for our counterparies. The environmental
enhancements are being delivered a: no cos: :o our
Approved Providers.

Bracken Hill, Mirfield

Waorking with Approved Providers, the ongoing

Shase 2 retroflr surveys are being undertaken to refine the
implementanon programme and dentfy the bes: method
for reducing Jie wolal carbon dioxide ermssions (and

fuel costs) associated with indnidual propertes over the
medium or long zerm. The overall energy performance of
the portfoho, asdenufied on =nvironmental Performance
Cerificates {=PC) repons data, has improved over the last
12 months. The proportion of properties with =2C Rating

A Chas currenily ¢ 55% and the carbon foorprn: {estimated

from propery charactenstcs) has reduced by 2% per Civitas

renancy {from 2.65 tonnes of COZ2/enancy in March 2022 to
261 tonneg of COZfenancyl

A single storey cotiage built during the late 1800s. Capital works were required to make some improvements to the
general appearance of the property and deliver energy improvements o create an uplift in the energy rating.

CSH iniated two professional surveys — the first to understand the requirements to undertake necessary repairs and
improve the asset condition - the second to understand the eneryy improvement options available. The works were
carefully planned and resylted in an overhaul of the asset with some of the works listed below:

e New UPVC windows and fron: door installed
External wall insulation

Repairs to roof and 1oft space

Additional insulation into the loft space
Replacement modern kitchen

Decoraton throughout inchading flooring upgrades
Installation of high heat retention storage heaters
Additional ventilation ingtalled

The £PC rating has improved from a G 1o an E.

CSH is in the process of ins:alling a dual tanff elecuricity meter which will continue to improve the 2P°C rating to .
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Social Impact

Social Impact — Publication of The Good Economy Report — Published

November 2022

The Good Economy (TGE) — November 2022

TGE. independent social impact advisory firm, assessed Civitas' performance against its stated

impact objective and the target cutcomes to which the Company aims to contribute.

TGE considers that
Civitas has made a
meaningful contribution
to increasing supply

to meet the high

level of demand from
commissioners for
supported housing
across the country.

“The portfolic continues to
provide homes for peaple
with a range of support
needs, including learning
disabilities, physical
disabilities and mental
health diagnoses.”

Impact Objective

“Civitas is systematically
improving the energy
efficiency of older stock
by running a retrofit
programime alongside
energy supplier EEON."

Contribute
Towards

THE
GOOD
ECONOMY

“Civitas has consistently
provided support for
charitable crganisations
whose activities align with
the Fund's core mission to
deliver positive outcomes
for individuals with
support needs.”

Outcomes

0Qo

©

Social Need

Provide housing
that meets an
identified social
need

40% of residents
living in Civitas
properties recelve
over 50 hours of
care per week.

82% of residents
aged between
20 and 49

Supply
Increase the
supply of
social housing
across the UK
particularly
for vulnerable
people

41% of propertics
new to social
housing at the point
of acquisition

69% of properties
in the 40% most
deprived local
authorines

Quality
Improve the
quality of sccial
housing

Civitas have worked
with Approved
Providers, signing
off on adaptions to
ensure propertics
continue to meet the
changing needs of
residents

87% of respondents
reported that they
were satisfied with
the quality of their
homes

Wellbeing

Improve the
wellbeing of
tesidents

Value

Offer value for
money for the
public purse

53% of respondents
reported an
improvement in
their independence
hetween

their previous
accommeoedation and
their current home

e Wi,

£3.51:s created
In social value
for every £1

of annualised
investment




Social Impact
Charitable Partnerships

The Company has supperied and worked with the following chanies since (20:

The House of
St Barnabas

ERL TN

a)r
y

WIS H

THE NE~WORK FGR WOM=N
WORK NG N SOCAL H0US NG

Little..
Sprouts

the

care

W U}»LLL‘I‘S-
chariy

The Choir with No Name
The results of an anonymous 2022/25 survey abowu: the experience of choirr members at choir
demonsirate the consistently positive impac: and the value of CWNN work tn improving the
hves of people impacied by homelassness.
= 89% reported a sense of telonging a: choir
« 90% feel valued at choir and said choir improved their confidence
+ B5% havoe made mearangful endshnps atchoir
= 84% said choir helps them feel less 1solated
« 88% said choir helped them feel more opiimisac about hife
« 85% repored a greater sense of purpase and fulfilmen: as well as feeling monvated to ry
new things
¢ 80% reported improved mental health
The House of St. Barnabas
The House of 3t Barnabas 18 a social enterprise member's club that helps Londoen's homeless
people back into work, through 1ts smploymen: Academy.
Employmen: *reparation 2rogramme:
= '00% of working graduates are satisfied with their job hours
= Y5% are sansfied with their job secunty
« 52% are satisfled wath their pay
= 95% have overall job sausfacion
« 97% say our mentors have had a posiiive impact on their qualey of life

WISE 1s a membership-based neswaork for women working across every discipline of DX housing,
with a focus on championing posiuve outcomes for women working in the sector. Civitas suppor:
conmbutes to the champooning of pasimve ourcomes for women working in “he sector.

Little Sprouts Health and Wellbeing Charity

Lizle Sprouts Health and Wellbeing Charnity 1s dedicated 1o improving the health and wellbeing
of our community through cooking workshops, recipé bags. community food shops, "check
and chater” programmes and surphis food collection and distnbuuen. Civiias suppor:s

Tile Sprouss with the operatuonal coste of the chany. particularly dunng COV.2-.9. The funds
were used to open a further community shop which uses food as an engagemen: ool 1o help
acddress physical, soctal, mental and financial 1ssues.

The Care Workers' Charity
The Care Waorkars Chary {CWCY exisrs 1o help care and suppor: workers through crists asing
financial suppor: and support centres, Civizas suppor: funds rramimg of menzal health ‘first aiders’
o provide each CWC member company, with the raiming and “ools o provide better mental
heal:h suppraor: —o the care workers.
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Charity Partners Case Studies

The Choir with No Name

The Chotr with No Name (CWXNN) has been running choirs
involving people impacied by homelessness since 2008,
growmyg from a firs* rehearsal in London with jus: frve
people, 10 six thriving choir communiiies, singing with
over /00 people and parforming for iens of thousands of
people across the UK every yvear. We curren:ly have chowrs
in ~ondon, Liverpool, 3nghon, 3irrmngham, Carchiff and
Coventry, with plans o launch more chotrs over the next
few years.

The Choir with No Narme formula s sitmple, but 1t works:
weekly choir reheargals all year round followed by a

ot meal together, and exating, aspirazional qigs for
everyone 0 work towards and look forward 0. Qur choirs
are supportive, safe spaces for people going through a
ough hime, empowerning them o feel more able 1o tackle
the challenges they face. We are currently evalving cur
way of working 1nto a more co-prodiuaced and culturally
democratic approach, with choir members getting more
Involving 1n *he design and delivery of their chowrs, which
15 a really excitng rransformatnon for the orgamsation.

Creative programmes are exirertiely effeciive in achieving
posiive outcomes for people impacied by homelessness.
They tackle ingquality, Increase social inclusion and
challenge prejudice 1 can help people 10 progress

‘helr wider interests, which 18 especially imporant 1n
reducing anxiety and loneliness that can ofien affect
people impacted by homelessness, even when they
move on o independent accommadanon. We suppor
members 1o make fnends, improve “heir wellbeing. build
confidence and skills, and posinvely impac: their personal
circumstances ouside of choir

I our maosT recent 2023 member survey, 89% said they
felt a gense of belonging at chow, 90% said i helped
increase their confidence. 83% sa1d being in choir gave
“hemn an increased sense of purpose and fulfilment and
749% repored that their parnoipanon in chor has helped
them achieve at least one positive life change ousside
choir, including securing housing, fiinding work or beter
managemen: of addictions. We are excremely proud of
“hese resuls

We es;abhshed our parnership with Civizas Socal
=“ousing 2o in 2077 and have been exiremely grazeful
reciplents of ongaing suppor: for the coss of delivenng
our weekly rehearsals and foor stomping gigs every year
Thanks 1o Crvizags, we can keep our doors open, the music
playing and our members singing: providing somethimg
w0 look forward o every week and gigs o work towards: a
chance 1o socialise with therr friends. eat a hot dinner. and
altmastely feel seen and heard

A word from our choir members:

Ruthie's Story

66

‘When 1 first started singing with CWNN I was really
nervous just standing there in the group singing.
Then, by the Christmas concert, 1 was grabbing

the mic and singing solo! My confidence has really
improved. 1 think it's because you just feel like you're
in a really safe space and that people genuinely care
about you. It just feels very loving and authentic.

There's been so many unforgettable moments and
so many emotional moments, It's amazing seeing
other people transform as well. I've made friends
and connections and, the big thing is, trust. It's heen
a real big deal to me that people actually care. They
genuinely care and notice when you're missing. It
sounds a bit extreme, but people care if you're alive
and that you're alive and well. it's been consistent. It

doesn't stop. ’,

Richard's Story

(14

I've sung all my life so when 1 heard about the Choir
with No Name I thought it could be for me. I was
living at the Salvation Army at the time. The best thing
about choir is the confidence it gives me. I've broken a
25-year cycle with drugs — 1 don’t think 1 could've done
it without choir. When 1 talk to people who aren't sure
if CWNN is for them ] say, ‘Come along once, I'lll sit next
to you and if you don’t like it vou don'’t have to come
back’. I've encouraged a few people to join and s0 far,
they've all come back! I'm so happy to have found
CWNN. In mvy first rehearsal I was so nervous, butby
the second I was singing my heart out. It's made such
a difference. 'm not existing anymore, I'm living, and

that's huge. ’ ,




Charity Partners Case Studies

House of St Barnabas

The House of 3t Barnabas 1s a social enterpnse and chanty
<hat works to suppor: people affected by homelessness
back into long-term employment. Our vision 1s of a future
where lasung good work, a securs home and a suppoerave
newwork are a reality for those affected by homelessness

Underpimmned by cur vibrant members’ ¢club in Soho, our
smployment Academy provides on sie employment
and slalls trairung for people who have expenenced
homelessness.

We work with around 100 people every year and 79% of
graduates report their guality of ife has improved since
parucipaing in the kmploymen: Academy

Our mentonng componen: 18 the key to our success

and, thanks ¢ support from Civitas, we are cloger 1o
succeeding in our mission of 'Good Work, Good Home' for
all our graduates.

Mentoring at the House of St Barnabas s no: ‘raditional
In the way “ha: professicnal menioring requires a similar
set of knowledge and experiences. [7 15 relanionship-based
mentoring which 18 based around interpersonal sklls

and communmecauoen, The purpose of the role 1s 10 work
ngether with Employment Academy s:aff 1o suppor.
peaple into wotk and help them progress.

Qur men:ors have had a positive impac: on quahy-of-hife
changes for 97% of respondents

Jill and Ellen

Ellen kegan her journey as a mensor by paricipanng

in our two-day raining. which provides extensive
preparation for this very special role. She quickly followed
Jp by attending the mentonng "speed danng' event
where she met several recen: graduates looking 1o be
paired with a mentor. However, she was contacted by

+he Men:onng Team o ask 1f she would he interested In
mentoring someones she hadn’s had the chance to mee:
because they couldn: attend the 'speed daung’ even: due
-0 childcara responsibihines.

This is how Ellen met Jill

il and her young daughser found -hemselves homeless
1 2822 1l ddns have a job and didn’s know what she
wanted to do erher Unsare of where 0 go or what o

do. she murned 0 a social worker for help, who arranged
emporary accommodanon for 11l and her daugh-er.

Then Nl was pat 1 touch with =ouse of 5t 3arnabas. After
graduaung from the =mploymen: Jreparanion “rogramime,

she had the opporunity o be paired with a menior.

=llen and il met for their first menzonng session at the
Briush Likrary. They quickly connected over the fact that
1l had a hive-year-old daughter and Fllen has expenence
of bringing up young children in London. zllen had lois
of suggestions for free activiiies for children. This bt
II's confidence 10 attend galleries and museums with her
daughter, which she had never done before.

As they developed :heir mentonng relanonship, =llen
also helped Nill to update her CV and cover letter She
also encouraged Nl o sign up for free compater literacy
courses and provided suppor: with ili's applicaton for
awinter fuel allowance as well as making sure *hat she
received her Chnsunas benefit bonus,

Il has since secured a job as barista ar a Soho members’
clul: on a pan-time basis so she can balance her chuldcare
responsibilities.

Jill's Story

(14

I didn’t know what to expect from the House of 5t
Barnabas. On the first day of the course, I thought it
wasn't really for me. But after my first week, I loved it!
Everyone there understood what I was going through,
day by day I felt more conlident and more comfortable
being there. It felt like being with family. You get

used to waking up and having no one to talk to, but
suddenly I had people to talk to! It gave me a reason
to get up in the morning. Being at the House was a
lifesaver for me, it’s definitely more than just a course.

’
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Governance
Frameworks

In addition to the ESG indices, Civitas participates in the following frameworks ‘

which don't issue a grading.

IMPACT
MANAGEMENT
PROJECT

Impact Management
Project

The muacT Y anagemesn® roject
= = global foram for baddng
Consenss on how o meagsire
manage: and repor impacs
e 5 A pracTinaner commoanegy of
over 3000 orgamzEanons and
MVESTOrS
= Jrovides 3 set of norms
and a shhred and holisne
i nectineg of npeac:
LA flve core dimensons of
mpac What? Who? =owr ach?
canriation and <isk

Sector Specific

Gperating Principles for
Impact Management

¥

The Operating
Principles for Impact
Management
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SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

GOALS

United Nations
Sustainable
Development Goals
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Development and
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United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
(“UN SDGs”) Alignment

Impact Objectives UN SDGs

Provide high-quality, energy efficient homes
Acquire High-Quality Homes incorporating adaptations for people with

lifelong care needs

Target properties which address the needgs,
and improve health and wellbeing of
vulnerable individuals requiring a high level

of care DRCANT O A

EDHOMIC GRIWTH

o

o
3
E
£

Local job creation during construction

Q Q Q Satisfy Social Need Employment via Approved Providers/
C@ refurbishments and care providers on
responsible employment terms. including
living wage
Qffer local apprenticeships and contribute to
1nral community events

% Provide Value for Money for public care and
housing budgets by enabling vulnerable
Proviae Value for Money individuals to move out to institutional and
residential settings

TVIDOR “IVINIKNNOWIANT

Buy and convert existing and newly
Increase Supply completed properties from private to social
housing sector in perpetulty

Ensure Approved Providers and Care
Providers have the capability and capacity

: - ; . ATTNERSINFS
1o deliver high-guality service and outcomes " an!mm

IEU Build Quaiity Partnerships for residents over the long term
Green lease terms to be agreed with the
counterpariies

Adopt sustainability policy at governance level

Governance

Counterparty Governance

CIM, the Company's Investment Adviser. has engaged actively with its Approved Provider partners throughout the last
year, providing shared advice and learning through:

/g (] U S o
Weekly meetings with Monthly compliance Monthly and quarterly
key operational staff meetings to review

strategic priorities

and key performance
indicators

This counterparty engagement has ensured that CIM is able to proactively work with its Approved Providers with any
matters arising to support a continued high level of operational performance. This support builds on our
long-term relaticnship with the senior management and helping to build resilience within the organisations

Monthly Seminars
OV has conmmiisd toandariaks monthly gavernanos O hosts guarerly Approvead rovider seminars onoa
andd heabh and safesy monronng across The porrfoho re= 7l Basis The e sermnniar weexpec=d so be hield

A AT 2004
fyaererad roviders Fuese demornerated rasihienos

nued g jevels of comphanoe with hieal-h
Soeater atatedards

and e
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Governance

Indices

CIM’s implementation of the Board’s commitment to continuous improvement in its approach to ESG integration
remains core to the investment strategy. Over the last year, we have engaged with ESG Rating Agencies such

as GRESB (formerly Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark),

Sustainalytics, and EPRA sBPR,

MSCH

SJSTAINAI.YTK'.S
+ o iy

EPRA

uRngPEAN SuBLIC
wtal TEATE Rss0EIArON

What is it?

GRESB 1= “he leading suzmamalbalhry benchimark
for the global real =5t Assesgmen:s take

2 852307
place annually and are gudad by factors “has
investars and he mmdusity consider 1o be masenal
In thie sugramabilizy performance of real
The benchmark ¢
covers mors Than 850 propsriy compantas, 45
funds and developers

MSCI ESG Ratings provid= insghn g -3
ol s parnT e o enal e
; crfolios 730 rase 000 o
e exposure o meusry 8 ’rﬂl[f[’ i
a[‘d 'hHr dhm"- O At e Those Fealanive 1o
el

Sustainalytics measurae hows well companies
proaciively manage the environmental, scoal and
JUVETTIATCE “hat are mos” matenal to therr
Trusiness, sazed on g smienared, abiecnve and
rer methodalogy The o306 tanmge provicds
SMEnT on COmpani=e 300y o mtgate

g and caprralise On Opparanties

EPRA BPR Guidelines {..cus cnomiakiney ~hi=
frraretal smamarr s of poabr resl - :
cormoaraes clear=r aned more comyaarabil-

rope 1 e e e Shie

arelar
TN IT- Tl

MSCI {(Morgan Stanley Capital International),

How is CSH rated?
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ment 2007
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Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the period and up to the
date of signing the financial statements were:

Michael Wrobel, Chairman

Michaci has over 4C years experience in the invesimen:
ndusiry as a porifolio managear and of running insirizona.
nLsinesses and retall pusinesses at Fidelity and Garimore. He

gerves as a trustee direcior of tne BAT UK Pension Fund. the Male 60%
Nauiscne Bank UX pension scnemces and as a ir.stee of e
Coopcr Gay (Ho.dings! Limited Retiremen: Benefits Schaome Female 40%

Michae. has previous'y served as a non-execulive Director of
severa. inves:ment trusis and a numper of indusiry associations
Micnae. has an MA. in Leonomics trom Campndge University.

Micas. was apooinied jo The Board on 24 Qoober 2015 and nas
served as Chalrman since 1is appointmon:.

Caroline Gulliver, Director

Caroling is a chariered acco.nant wizn over 25 years oxperience a. krnst & Yo.ng LLP. D.ning tha:t sime
she specialised in the asse! managemen: secor and deve.oped exionsive cxperignaee ol iInvesimen:
rusis She was a neember of vanous tochnica. commrittees of the Association of Invesiment Companics
Sheis also a non-exective direcior and audit commiiec chalr for JP Morgan G.oopa. Emerging Marke:s
Income Trust poo. Tniernational Biolecnno.ogy Trus: ole and aprdn European Togisiics Incoine p e

Caroling was appoin:ied o the Board on 24 Ocloper 2018 and nas served as A.dlr and Managemeant
Fngagemen: Comminege Caalr since her appoinimean.

Peter Baxter, Director

Poror nas over 35 years experienas (n e invesimen: managemnman: indasiry. He s a direcior of Snowoa..
Impact Managemen: Lid. a socia impac invesiment organisauon, and a rusico of Tros for london, a
cnarilan e toundation He is also a non-cxecutive ditector of B .ac<Roc< Creater Earopean Invesumen:
Tras: p.c Previc.s.y ac served as Chiel Execuiive of Old Matual Asset Managers (JK) Lid. and nas
worced for Searoders and Il Samue! in a variely ot invesuren: ro.es. He no ds an MBA fram London
B.siness Scaoo. and 1g an associate of 1ne 3ocicty of Inves:n en: Professiona’s

Porer was apnoinied 1o e Board on 24 Octoocr 2616 and 18 1ae 3enior Indepsnden: Director and
Nominailon and Remuncration Comrmitiee Cnairman

Alastair Moss, Director

A agldalr is a propory dovo opment lawyaer wiih over A0 years expenenae and 1s a parner at His

Diccingon He was a non-exec.tive direcior of Noting Hi. Cenesis Tr.s: He is a.so a former Cnairman

of 1ne Invesimen: Comnmiiee of tne City of London Corporation. its Properny Invesimren: Board and it -
P anning and Transporazion Commiee Heis a Tr.siee ot Marsna.'s Charey. He nas a.so pcen a poard

memoer of Souo Howsing Assocraton and was a mempar of 1ne Arca Board of TinsWes: Homes He was

a CouncL.or at Westminsicr Civy Co.nci for 12 years inc..ding /s en.re as Cnairman of 11e P.anning %

Cry Deve opmen: Comm

Alaziair was apnoinied o ine Board on 24 Ocioper 2016

Alison Hadden, Director

Aason nas over 30 years exosrience in ne nousing ind.usity and vas as d a namoer of Excolve
DOSEI0NS 4 SeVerd. ma or 10.sINg assoclations, ina Ldingg CEO at Paradigm Hoosimg Iniaese ro o8 8
nas wor<ed wira many of e 2aeno dersin Sac mdasiry. ine Lding e Reg.ator of Socia. Housing
Sne1s curront y ice Chairand a memoer of e Governance Commiioc of Pea<s and Pans Housing
and Chair of Heytord Regeneration a for-orot: Housing Associanon operaung in inc Cncrwe.. arca

Alson was apnoinied 1o e Board on Al Novemoer 20619




Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Report and the audited consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal Activities

The Company is a closed-ended investment companv
and s a R5!T which was incorporazed in England and
Wales on 29 September 20.6. The Company 1s the holding
company of a number of subsidianes and 1its Ordinary
shares were admitted o irading on the Main Market

of the London Stock Exchange on 8 NMovember 2016
The Company 1nvests in properies or propery-holding
S2Vs, either directly or via a wholly-cwned suhsidiary,
In accordance with the Company's invesimen: objectve
and pohicy.

Business Review

A review of the business and futare developments s
contamed 1 the Charman's Sratement and Investmen:
Adwiser's Repori. The principal nsks and uncertainies are
detalled on pages 30 10 33 See note %330 for a summary of
“he pos: balance sheet even:s.

Results and Dividends
‘The resulws for the year are shown on page S

The following dividends were paid on “he Ordinary
shares dunng the year

Fourth quarterly - " $875p per share

dividend pawd on 28 June 2072
First quartéfi; ) 1425p per share
dividend paid on 9 September 2022
‘Second ciuarterly B 1425p per share
dividend paid on 9 Jecember 2022
Third c?t;érterlir% . S " 475 per share
dividend paid on (0 March 2023

Since the year end, the Company has declared the
following dividend:

o 75':;3 per share
pawd on 9 June 2023

‘Fourth quarterly N
dividend

No final dividend 1s bemng recommended on the Ordinary
shares.

Directors
The members of the Board are heted on page 18.

All rectors served throughaous the perniod under review.

The 3card consists solely of non-execunive Nreciors,
each of whom s independent of the Investmen: Adviser.
The Company has no execiunve Direciors or employees.

In accordance with 8oard policy, all Directors will reqre
and, being ehgqible, will stand for re-election at the AGM.

Performance evaluanon of the Board, 1ts Committees and
individual Direcrors 1s carmed out in accordance with the
procedure set ous on pages 56 and Y7

No Director 1s under a contrac: of service with the
Company and no Director or any persons connec:ied
with them had a matenal interest in the ransac:ons
and arrangements of the Company. Details of Directors’
remuneraiion are set aut in the Directors’ Remuneration
Repor: on pages 64 10 67,

The beneficial interes:s of the Directors in the secunties
of the Company are se: outn the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on page 67

Through ‘heir Leters of Appoimimen:, the Company
has provided indemnines 1o the Jirectors, 1o the extent
permited by law and ‘he Company's Articles, in respec:
of abilinies which may anse 1n connecton with claims
relanng o theiwr performance or the performance of the
Company whils: they are Directors. There are no other
gualfying rurd-parcy indemmues in force.

The general powers of the Dire¢rors are contained
within the relevan: U legislaton and the Company's
Aracles of Asgocianon The Directors are enttfled 1o
exercise all powers of the Company, subec: o any
hmizasons impased by the Aracles of Association or
apphcalkle legislanon. As set ous on page 5G, the Ariucles
of Associanon may only be amended by way of a special
resolution of shareholders,
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Report of the Directors
Continued

Capital Structure

Issue of Shares

AL the AGM held on 18 September 2022, the Directors were
authorised 10 1s50e equIty SECUTIes P L0 an aggregate
nominal amount of F&°0,736 (being approximacely 0% of
the issued Ordinary share capizall

‘The Company was alsc authonsed o disapply
pre-emption righ:s in respec: of equity secuntes and

1o 1ssUe equlty secarlies for cash up to an aggregate
nomingl amoun: equal o £6°0.736 (being approximately
0% of the 1ssued Ordinary share capizal).

Purchase of Own Shares

At the AGM held on 15 September 2022, the Direciors were
granted the authonty o buy back up 10 97,549,383 Ordinary
shares, being 4.99% of +he Ordinary shares in 1ssue at the
ume of the passing of the resolution.

Junng the year, the 3oard mamntained the Companys
share buyback programme, under which a toral of
£.030.00C shares have been purchased m:o reasury for an
aggregare amoun: of £4.524.947 50 (nominal value £60,500,
represen-ing 0.97% as a: 3 March 2072

The authonty to buy back up 0 91,519,284 shares will
expire a: the conclhisiwon of the next AGYV. of the Company
or on 30 Seprember 2023 whichever 1z earher, when

a resolution for 128 renewal will be proposed. Turher
informaion will be conzained in the Notice of AGM. which
w1l be circulated "o shareholders in due course

Current Share Capital

Agar 3 Varch 2C23 rhere were 622.461,38C Ordinary
shares in isxie, of whch "8.075.000 shares were held m
Teasury. represening A.6% of the Company's total 1ssued
share capral. The rotal voung rights of the Company as at
3 warch 2075 was H06 386 380,

Shareholder Rights

Ordinary Shares

mach Ordinary shareholder s enutled o one vore

on a =how of hands and, on a poll, o one vose for
every Ordinary share held. The ngh: 10 atzend and
sote at general meenngs of the Compzany may ke
resricted where a shareholder has falled 0 provide
informanon pursuan: 10 a notice served under secion
793 of “he Companies Ac: 2006 The Ordinary shares
carry “he right -o recerve dividends declared by "he
Company. “rovided the Company has sansfied all of
g habihnmes dunng a winding-up of the Company.
“he holders of Ordinary shareg are en-izled -0 all of “he
surplus asses of the Company

Transfers of Shares

There 15 no resmenon on the rransfer of the Company's
shares other than ransfers o more “han fourjoin:
sransferees and transfers of shares which are no: fully
paid up or vwhere the -ransfaror or any o'her person whom
“he Company reasonably believes o ke inzerested in “he
ransferor's shares has been duly served with a notice
parsuans -0 section 7935 of the Companies At 2006

There are no special righ:s with regard ;o control attached
T0 securimes: no agreemen:s between holders of secunues
regarding ther ransfer known o the Company: and no
agreements which the Company 1s pary 1o that might
affect1ts control following a successful takeover bnd.

Articles of Association

The Company's Aricles of Association may only be
amended by a special resolution a: a general meeting of
che shargholders.

Az a7 vhe date of signing This Repor:. the rotal voiing
rights of the Caompany was 606,588,380,

Management Arrangements

Investment Adviser

The Board has appomnted the nvastmen: Advizer, Civitas
Invesirnen: Managemernt umited. o provide investmen:
advice andd 0 asse: manage “he property portfoho and the
associa~ed day-o-day aciviines, including managemen:
of tenan:ed properies and markeung actuiviiies. C'V 1s a
specialist investor in social housing property, with a focus
on specialist social housing, and has extensive expanence
In soclal housing and real estate Invesimerns:.

The dunes of OV include the sourcing of 1nvesimen:
opporanittes thar meet the invesimen: crizerta of the
Campany. controlhng the acqusitnion of approved
properties, asse? managemen: of all properies wittun
‘he porfolio, ongoing monroring of the properes and
renants, mamrainng compliance with all relevant riles
and regulaucns. and providing markeang and inves:or
relanons services 1o the Company

Detalls of the fees pavable to the Tnvestimen: Adviser are
descnbed i note 80 of the finanoal statements The
basis for the calcuianon of the ‘'nvestment Adviser’s fees 1s
based upon the 1728 NAV.

The agreement with €. M 13 lerminable on not less than
22 months nonce by errher pary. such noice not 2o explre
earher than 3C May 2025

The performance of the ‘nvessmen: Adviser has

keen reviewed on an ongoing kasis throughoa- the
penod by the 3oard a7 1's quarerly meetngs A formal
annual evaluanon & also carmed our by “he Aadi and
“Yanagemen- ~ngagemen: Commises

The 3vard considers a number of faciors inclading
investmen performance, the qualhiy and quan-izy of

Inves men: opporninties presented. the gkills and
experntence of key staff and “he capalility and resources
of -he Investmen: Adwviser ro dehver sansfaciory
performance for the Company The 3oard 13 sansfied with
~he performance of the nvesimen: Adwviser and considers
I"s continued appointmean: o ben the bestinteres s of the
Company and 125 shareholders.

The doard has noed the mcennon of Wellness Lty
_imited {a wrholly owned gabsidiary of CX Asser moldings
Amiteds "o mamtaim CviTags nvestmen:t Yanagemen”
Lmrred as nvesimen: Adviser to the Company once the
Takeover 1s completed. On 235 [une 2823, “he Takeover Offar
became uncondiional
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AIFM

G10 Capuzal amnred ("GO or the "Al’M"} has been
appointed as the Company's Al M with effect from

24 fagus: 2077 The ATOM carrently receives a monthly

fee of 2.7 basiz points of the Company's wotal NAV for its
services and the agreemen: 18 :erminable on “hree months
notice by etther party.

Depositary

ndos Tmancial lamited was appointed as the Company's
Depostizary with effect from 1 June 2018, The Deposiary
provides cash monioring, safekeeping and assert
verification and oversight funcions as prescribed by the
Alternazve nvestment fund Managers 2irective, The
Deposizary recewves an annual fee of F3.000, net of VAT,
pluas 0.006% of the first £350 million of any new equty
capital raised per annum and 0.003% of further equizy
ratzed per annum, sulyect to a maximam fee of £.50.000
per annum The agreement 18 terminalble on six monihs
norice by either pary.

Administrator

The Company has appoimnted Lnk Allernatuve und
Admimistrators amited (Link™ as the Admimsrator

of the Company and 1:s subsidiaries, with effect from

28 “ebruary 208 0 undertake “he accountancy and other
adrmirstranve dunes of the Company “ank 1s a specialis:
adrminisirazor for investmen: funds providing suppor:
functions and expernzse alored for thiz indusiry

The Admumistrator receives a fixed base fee for The
provision of 178 services 10 the Company as well as an
entilemen: to addimonal vanable fees for duties relaung
to corporate activines. The agreemen: 1s terminakble on a:
leag s1x months nonce by ercher pary.

The dunes of the Adminigtrator inchude the mamtanance
of all Company and suksidiary beoks and records.
excluding those maimniained by ‘he nvestment Adviser,
monitoring comphance with applicable relevant rules and
regulanons and other administrauve dunes as required.

Company Secretary

nk Company VMarers amited was appointed as the
Company Secrerary o the Company with effec: from

28 March 2018, The Secratary recelves a fixed fee for the
provision of 118 services to the Company. The agreemen:
was for an ininal perniod of one yvear and thereafier
auzomancally renews for successive pertods of 12 months,
anless terminazed by etther party on at least six months'
[ONCE,

Review of Service Providers

The performance of the service providers 1z reviewetd

on an ongoing basts "Throughout the period by the

Aadir and Vanagemen: sngagemen: Commitiee and
formally once a year The Commiee considers a number
of factors including performance of dunes. the skills

and experience of key staff, and the capalnhity and
resources of the service provider to deliver sansfaciory
performance for the Company.

The 3oard s satished with ~he performance of the service
providers appotnted by the Company and considers ‘helr
continded appointmen: 1o ben the bestinterests ot the
Company and 1ts shareholders.

Substantial Shareholdings

At 87 March 2823, the Company had been informed of
“he following digclosable interes:s in the share capizal of
*he Company:

NHumber of Percentage of
ordinary  Toral Votng

_ ... Shares RigNIS
nvesec Wealth & ‘'nvestmen: imited 62653811 033 8
Skandinawiska “nskilda 3ankan A3 50 66" 267 000 E
{publ ;
Standard lLife Aberdeen 50,492,544 5.03 -
,\:’!assachuseﬁs fiancial services 30.300..44 500 E
Comparny m
Tiney Smith & Wilhamszon Lmeed 28814825 4.76 g
Legal & General Group ?Plc (Group) "8,243.740 5.00 E
3lackrock, Inc Below 4% ™

Continuation Vote

n accordance with s Aracles. the 3oard proposed an
orchinary resolunion that the Company should conunue
i s curren: form o shareholders at the AGM held on
-4 Seprember 2022, As the resoluiion was approved by
shareholders. the Company will therafore coninue 1:s
Lusiness as presently consntuted and will propose a
furher conunuaartion resoluaion as the AGM N 2027, The
3nard is mmndful thar as the Takeover Offer by Wellness
Uity “imied (a wholly owned indirec: subsidiary of
CK Asser Yoldings aminied) has on 23 June 2023 Izeen
declared unconditional, the resolunions proposzed and the
forma: of the Company’s funire AGWs may be impacted.

Listing Rule 9.8.4

The henng rale 984 oulines a senes of requitemen:s
for hsted companies 1o dis¢lose cerramn 1tems. The
Oirectors confirm that the Company s reguired 1o make
a digclosurs in respec: of the diversity recquuiremen:s
owtlined in lasting Rule 9 8.6 (99 This disclosure can

Le found on page 56 There are no furher disclosures
required in relanon o Lasing Rale 9.8.4.

Financial Instruments

The Company athises financial instraments in s
operanons, The financial insiraments of the Company a:
31 varch 2023 comprised rade recewvables and pavables,
other debors, cash and cash equivalents, non-current
borrowings, carren: borrowings and denvanves.

Other *han s fixed interest rate deb: facihiues, 1715 the
Jrectory’ opumon that the carrying value of all finanaal
instramenss on the Consohdated Satement of I'inanacal
Josiion 1s eqaal o therr fair valae.

ONISOOH'IVION SYLIALDL

“or a more detalled analysis of the Company's financial
rsk managemen:, please refer -0 note £°.0 of the
financial statemen:s,
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Board has considered the requirements ‘o disclose
-he annual quantity of emissions 1in tonnes of carbon
dioxide equrvalen: for activiaes for which the Company
18 responsible. The 3card believes that the Company
has, from a formal reporing perspective, no reporable
ernssions as this reporing falls under the lessees’
responsibility as par: of the terms of heir fully repanng
and insunng leases: emigsions produced from erther

“he requs:ered office of the Company or from the affices
of orther service providers are deemed o fall under the
responsibihty of other parues: and the Company has not
leased or owned any vehicles which fall inside the scope
of the G~ G Protocol Corporate Standard. In relation o
the Srreambined “nergy and Carbon Reporing (S2CR3,
implemenzed by The Companies {directors’ Repory and
simeed Liabihty Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Repor:)
Requlanions 2078, for the year ended 3° March 2023 the
Groap s considerad o be a low energy user

Reqardless of the obliganons of other paraies, the
Company akes the 1gsue of environmental enhancemen:
and emissiong serously as par: of 18 overall =56 strategy
and g evalualing “he porfoho. working with housing
managers. 10 consider where 12 can bnng abous further
enhancemen:s and improvemen:s

Tarther detalls can be found in the Srvaronmental, Social
and Governance repor on pagas 57 o 46.

Political donations

No pohucal donanons were made by the Company or i7s
subsidiaries during the year or the pror year.

Charitable Donations

‘n addimon to its direct invesiments. the Company plays
a broader par: within the communiies i which v
works. Whils: recognising the praciical hmitations tha:
all financial investors face, C1vi-as suppors voluntary
organisanons that are acnve wirhin the broader housing
and homelessness environmen:. Civitas also intends. as
par: of s broader financial and operataonal reporing. 1o
provide a commen:ary on the posiiive socal change
and impac: ~ha: resulis from the inves:men:s tha: have
lreen made.

The foillowing charnrable donanons were pard dunng the
YeAr:

Nonation

Charuy _
Choir with Mo Name F7 350
=onige of 57 3arnabas £30778
WS £6.690C

The Care Workers Charnizy

Total

Independent Auditors

n “he caze of each Jirecorin office at the date the 2epor

of the Jirecrors 1z approved:

e sofarashe Tirecroris aware “here g no relevan:
aldr informanion of which ~he Group and Company's
auadiors are anaware: anrl

e ‘hey have taken all the steps tha: they ought 1o have
raken as a Director 1n order 1© make themselves aware
of any relevan: audi: informaion and o esiablish that
~he Group and Company's auditors are aware of tha:
informanon,

ricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has expressed 115 willingness
1o connnae o act as auditors of the Company and a
resolution for 1:s re-appoimmtment will be proposed a: the
202% annual general meeing. The 3oard 15 mindful tha,
should as -akeover offer by Wellness Unrty imited (a
wholly owned indirec: subsidiary of CK Asser Holdings
Lmied) has on 25 June 2023 been declared uncondinenal,
+he resolunions proposed and the forma: of the Companys
AGM may be impacted.

Takeover Offer Process

On 9 May 2023, the Company announced ha: the 3oard had
reached agreemen: with Wellness Unity imized {a wholly
owned indirec: subsidiary of C< Asset —oldings Limired)
(the 'Offeror? on the terms of a recommended all-cash
offer for he enure issued share capizal of the Company, o
ha implemented by a Takeover Offer (the "Offer”).

Lnder the t:erms of the Offer. each shareholder will be
enirtled to recewve 80 pence 1in cash for each share held
n the Company. in addizion, shareholders who were on
“he reguster at the close of business on 19 May 2023 were
enilzled 1o receive and retain the fourth guarnter dividend
of " 425 pence tin respect of the penod - J[anuary 2023 o

3. March 2023

Murher on 22 May 2023, the Company 1ssued a crrcalar o
shareholders with respect 10 the recommended cash offer.
which se: out. tha: for sharehaolders o accep: the Offer a
“arm of Acceprance must be recewved by the Receving
Agen: no later than 2° July 2023, Subsequen: to thus, the
daze for shareholder “orm of Acceprances "o be recerved
by “he Receving Agen’ was brough: forward 10 23 June
2023 On 23 June 2024, the offeror announcead “hat the offer
was declared uncondiional

The 3oard. which has Leen advized by *he Company's
Jomn: 3rokers (Panmure Gordon and Lberam? as o the
financial terms of the Offer, considers the terms of he Offer
-0 be fair and reasonabile.

The Offeror has indicared 115 intention {subjec: ;0 The Offer
being declared uncondimonal with the Offeror obraming
75 per cent or more of the voung nigh:s of the Company:
-0 delis® the Campany from the London S:ock =xchange
Yam Varke: for hsted securnnes and thereafier re-reqister
“he Company as a private imited company as soon as
pracicakle folloving he cancellation of heming and
rading of the Company’s shares. This process will take
place following “he release of the Annual Repor

Corporate Governance

The Corporate Governance Sratemen:, “he Repor: of the
Audir and Managemen: sngagemen: Commiree and the
Drectors Remuneraion 2epor: form pars of the =epor: of
‘he Jrectors

Approval

The zepor of the Tirectors has been approved by ~he 3oard.
3y arder of ~he 3oard

Link Company Matters Limited

Company Secreary
28 Tune 2073

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF LINK COMPANY MATTERS LIMITED
COMPANY SECRETARY 1’7 c {WL-—J



Corporate Governance Statement

Background

The FCA Lisung Rules and Disclosure Gudance and
Transparency Rules require hgted companies to disclose
how they have applied the prninciples and complied

wih the provisions of the corporate governance code

o which thessuer 1s subject. The provisions of -he X
Corporate Governance Code (UK Code™, asissued by the
“RCn July 2018, are applicable to the year under review
and can be viewed at www frcorg.aak

The Board has considered the pninciples and
recommendanons of the AC Code of Corporate
Governance ("AIC Code") as issued by the AXCin Jebruary
2019 The A'C Code addresses all the principles se: ourin
che UK Code, as well as setting ou addimonal principles
and recommendanons on 18sues that are of specific
relevance o the Company as an invesiment company.
The TRC has confirmed “ha: A'C member companies
who repor: agains: the A.C Code will be meenng their
obligaiions in relation to the UX Code and the assoclated
digclosure requirements of the FCA The AC Code can he
viewed ar wwwrheaic couk

The 3nard considers that reporting agamns: the pninciples
and recommendanons of the A/C Code provides
sharehoelders with full desails abous the Company's
cotporate governance compliance

Statement of Compliance

Exeep: as se1 oul below, the Company has comphed
with “he provisions of the A.C Code throughou: the year
ended 3t March 20235,

Provision 23: Directors are no: appomied for a specthed
term, as all Directors are non-execusive and the 3oard
Leheves that a director's performance and their
coniinued contribution o the ranming of the Company
15 of grearerimporiance and relevance 1o shareholders
than the leng:h of ame for which they have served as a
Drector of the Company. mach Mrector s subiject to the
election and re-eleciion provisions set out in the Ariicles
which provide that a Director appoimnted durng he year
18 required o retite and geek elecnion by shareholders

a7 *he next annual general meennyg following their
appointment. Ther=afier the ireciors intend 1o offer
chemselves for re-eleciion annually and wall aim o not be
on the 3oard for more “han nine years.

The UX Code includes provisions relating o

e ‘he role of the chiet exscutive: and

e axacunive directors remuneraton.

The Board considers that these provisions are not relevan:
w0 the posiiion of the Company. heimg an externally
managed invesiment company. 'n particular, all of the
Company’s day-to-day managemen: and adminigtranve
funcuons are outsourced o third parties. As a resuls,

the Company has no execunve Directors, employees
orinzernal operazions The Company has “herefore not
repored further in respect of these provisions

The Board

Lnder the leadership of the Chairman, the Board

18 responsible for the effective siewardship of the
Company's affairs, including corporate strateqy,
corporate governance, nsk assessment and overall
mvestmen: policy. The Directors have overall
responsitbility for the review of invesiment acavity and
performance, and the supervision of the Investmen:
Adwviser which 1g responsible for the day-to-day asse:
management of the Company's portfolio.
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The 3oard consis:s of five non-executive Jireciors. 2
seeks o ensure that it has an appropnace balance of
skills and expenence, and considers tha:, collectuvely, 12
has substantal recen: and relevan: expenence of pubho
company managemenst, the UK real estate secion social
housing and invesiment companies. All the Direciors are
independent of the invesimen: Adwvigser and “he A™7M.

The 3oard has adopred a schedule of maters reserved
for decision by the 3vard, including inter aha.
determuining the Company's invesimen: objeciive and
policy, and geanng and dividend pohcies. This schedule
of mat:ers reserved for the 3oard ig available on the
Company's wehsie

The Directors ensure that risks are effecuvely managed
-hrough robusg: pohaies and procedures, suppored by
“he nght values and culiare. The 3oard’s primary focas
1= the sustatnable long-term success of the Group -
deliver vahie for shareholders, taking o account other
srakeholdears.
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The Board i1s responsible for investmen: decisions, other
than o the exten: delegated to the ATV and/or the
‘nvestmen: Adviser. and the appoinimen:, supervision
and monizornng of the Company's service providers,
mmcluding amongst others, the ATV and the ‘nves:men:
Adwviser The 3oard 1s respongible for the mnerim and
anmnual financial statemensts of the Company and, in
conjunction with the ALV, also approves the penode
calculanion of the Near Asset Value,

The Chairman, Michael Wrohel, was independent of

the Investmen: Adviser at the Time of his appointmen:
and 15 deemed by his fellow Jireciors to conianue 1o he
independent in character and judgemen: and free of
any confhciung relationships. e leads the 3oard and

15 respansible for its overall effectiiveness in direcing
the Company [n haison with the Company Secrezary. he
ensdres ‘ha: the Directors recewve accarate, nmely and
clear informanoen. Mr Wrobel considers imself 1o have
sufficient sime 1o commis to the Group's affairs. e has no
significant commuimerits other than those disclosed in
his biography on page 48. The role and responsibilities of
“he Chairman are clearly defined and set our1in wrnining. a
copy of which 1z availlable on the Company 'z websice

Peler Baxter 1s the Semor ndependent Jirecror of

-he Company =e provides a sounding board for

“he Chairman and serves as an Intermediary for the
ather Mrecrors and shareholders, —e also provides a
channel for any shareholder concerns regarding “he
Chairman and -akes the lead 1n the annual evaluanon
of the Charrman &y the other Directors. The role and
responsibilines of the Senilor ‘ndependen: Direcror are
clearly defined and set ous i wrining, a copy of which s
avallable on the Company's website

The 3nard has no se: policy for the leng:h of tenure of
Drrectors although 12 keeps in mind the recommendanons
of The A'C Code dunng succession plannming. © 18 the
Soard's policy for all Directors to giand far re-elecnion
annually. Recommendanons for elecaon/re-elecuon of
Tirectors are made on anandividaal basis following
rIgOrous review Jirectors are appoircad ander leers of
appoinmen:, coples of which are available for inspeciaon
at “he reqistered office of the Company and at the 4G/

Board Operation and Culture

The 3oard meets formally at leas: quarterly, tuu: alzo
mee:s on an ad hoc basis for the purpose of considenng
potential -ransacuons and associated due diligence.
The 3oard will mee? 10 consider and, if appropriate,
approve the acguisiuon of properies recommended

by the nvesimen: Adviser. The nvestmen: Adviser
preparas an nvesimen: 2roposal Paper (2P in respect
of "he proposed acqguisinions which includes details

of the transachon and due dihgence repors Upon
review of the 22 he 3oard contemplazes the stacluare
of the ransac:uon, any rnisks aached o the proposed
‘ransaction and how these would be mrigated/managed,
and ~he impact of the ransaction on “he value of the
Group's property porfoho, following advice from

“he valuers,

For the purpoge of monronng the porffoho, the Board
recelves pariodic repors from the AlSV and the
imvestmen: Adwviger, detailing the performance of the
Company. The 3oard delegates cerzain responsibilities
and funchons o the Audy and Managemen: Sngagemen:
Commitiee which has wrimien terms of refarence

To assist the 3card in “he day-to-day operanons of the
Company, arrangemen:s have been pus in place "o
delegate authority for performing cerain operaiions 7o
he AL7M, the nvestmen: Adwviser and other Thurd-pary
service providers, such as the Admimsirazor and the
Company Secre:ary.

The Chairman demonstrates objective judgemens,
promotes a caliure of openness and debate, and
facihizazes effectve contnbunons by all irectors The
Directors are required o act with integnty, lead by
example and promoe this ¢ultdre within the Company.

The 3oard seeks “0 ensure the alignment of the
Company's parpose, values and sirazegy with the culture
of openness, debae and integrivy through ongoing
dialoguae, and engagemen: with the nvesimen: Adviser
and the Company's o her service providers. The Joard
and The nvesimen: Adviser operate 1 a supporive.
co-operalve and Open environmens,

The 3oard schedules yearly meeings »th the board of
“he nvegrmen: Adviser. one of the parposes of which 1s
“o recelve an msight into the culture of the nvestmen:
Adviser
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The culture of the 3oard 15 consiwdered as part of

the annual performance evaluation process which

i undertaken by each rector The culwure of the
Company's service providers 1s also considered by the
Audit and Management Zngagement Commitiee dunng
the annual review of their performance and while
considering their contunuing appoinimeant.

The Company main:ainsg rectors’ and Officers’ lability
msurance on behalf of the Directors ar the expense of
“he Company. which was in force dunng he year ended
31 March 2023 and remainsg in force as at the date of this
repor. ‘I'ne 3oard has agreed arrangements whereby
Mrectors may take independen: professional advice

in the firrtherance of their dutes. The Company has

also indemnified the Directors in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Asgocianion.

Independence of Directors

The mmdependence of all hirectors 15 reviewead as part of
the annual assessmen: of the 3oard.

Thie Budard has derermined that each Direcior remains
independent in character and judgement and 1s free of
any relationships or circumesiances “hat threaten their
independence of the Company or 17s Tnvestment Adviser.
n paricalar, none of the hireciors have ever been
execuives of the Company or the invesimen: Adviser
have had a matenal direc: or indirec: relationship

with the Company or 118 stakeholders, have recewved
disproportionaze fees, have close family relationships
with stakeholders or represen: significant shareholders,

Board and Committee Meetings

A formal agenda s approved by the Chairman and
circulated by the Company Secretary in advance of

each meenng 1o the non-execunve Directors and other
atendees A twypical agenda includes: an analysis of
portfolio performance and exposure: an update on

“he mvestmen: pipeline; the Company's financial
parformance; updates on invesior relalons starutory and
requlatory compliance, and any corporate governance
maters *elevant papers on the tems included on “he
agenda are circulated in good ume to the members of
che Board and 173 Commuiees, in advance of the meetung.

The nvestment Adviser azends “he Board meenngs
~ogether with represenzatives fram the A7V and
Company Secretary. Represen:atves of the Company's
orher advisers are also invited 1o arend 3oard and
Commitiee meeungs from me o ume.

The number of Board, Audir and Managemen:
Fngagemen: Commitiee and Nerminaton and
Remuaneravon Commites meenings held dunng she yvear
ended 3! March 2023 along with the azendance of the
Directors s set out below

Audit and
Management
Engagememnt

Momination and

Quatteily Board Remunetaron

Metings Commutee Committee

MNumber Numbxer Number

entitled Numbet entitled Numbet entitled Mumber

wattend  attended  to atrend :\jlgglq?q foartend  anended
Micnac:
Wrobe. 4 4 3 3 1 1
A.astair
Maoss 4 4 3 3 1 1
Alison
{Taddcn 4 4 5 3 1 1
Caro.ine
G iver 4 1 3 3 1 1
Peler
Baxier 4 1 3 3 1 1

The 3card 1s scheduled 10 meet on a quarterly basis,

1 addinon to these meeungs the Joard also me: on
‘hree occasions to approve the NAV and dividend
declaranons and on a furrther " occasions on an ad hoc
hasis

Committees

The Company operates ‘throuagh the 3oard and 11s *wo
3oard commizees. namely the Audrr and Managemen:
“ngagemen: Commuiitee and the Nominanon and
Ramuneraton Commitee the "“Commitees” The Board
evaluazes the membership of the Commiitees on an
annual basis.

Audit and Management Engagement
Committee

The Aud and Managemen: cngagemen: Commitiee
comprises all inreciors, Carohne Gulliver, the Chair of
“he Aadir and Vanagemen: ~ngagement Commiiee.
18 @ Chartered Accountant and 1s considered o have
recent and relevan: financal expenence. The Aadit
and Managemen: ~ngagemen: Commiee as a whole

has compeence relevans 10 the real esrate iInvestmen:
COMpPany secior.

The Charrmar 1s a member of the Audhic and Yanagemen:
Fngagement Committee, but does not ¢hair it =15
memberzship of the Audl and Managemen: —ngagemenst
Committee 15 constdered appropriate given “he stnall

s1ze of the 3oard and ~he Chairman's knowledge of

-he financial services industry. A copy of the terms of
referencs of the Audis and Yanagemen: Engagemen:
Commitiee s avallalile from the S=crelary and on “he
Company's wealssize
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The Commizee meets at leas: three mes a year and
reviews the scope and resulis of the external aud. 1:s
cos? effectiveness and the independence and objectuvity
of the external audizors, inclading the provision of
non-audit services.

The Commitiee algo reviews the terms of the ATM
agreemen: and the ‘nvesimen: Adviser agreement, and
examines the effecniveneass of the Company's insernal
control systems and *he performance of the AJTM,
Invesment Adviser Adminisirazor, Deposrary, Company
Secretary and Registrar, and other service providers.

The Repor: of the Audit and Managemen: ~ngagemen:
Committee 1s get o1t on pages 60 to 62,

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

The Nommanon and Remuneratiion Commiitee 18
compnsed of all Mrectors and ‘he Chairmar 15 the Sener
ndependen: Mirector, Peter Baxter. The Nominauon

and Remuneration Committee meets as required for the
purpose of considenng recruizment 10 and removals from
“he 3oard; levels of remunerazion pad to the irectors:
and review of the Direciors’ Remuneration Repor: and
emuaneranon “olicy. A copy of the rferms of reference

of the Remuneraton and Nomination Commiee 18
availlabzle on the Company's webste and 1= avallable by
request from the Company Secretary.

Board Diversity

The 3oard acknowledges the TCA rules on diversty and
melusion on company boards.

The 3oard s compnsed of a mixture of indiwiduals who
have an appropnaze balance of skills and expenence -o
mee: the future opporiuanities and challenges facing the
Company. Appoinimen:s o “he 3oard are made primanty
on mert. though the 3vard understands the imporiance
of chversity in corporate governance and takes ino
constderanon a vanery of demographic annbizes

and charactensnics when making decisiong on 118
compastien. The 3oard 18 aware of the new Lisung e
‘hatis on a comply or explain’ basis which incorporates
~he recommendations of the Parker and “ampron-
Alexander 2eviews which considered how ethnie,
cal-ural and gender diversicy could be improved on LY
boards. The 3vard haz discussed the new ethnic diversity
disclosures reguired. namely, thas from accouning
pertods staring on or afier T Apnl 2022

al atleas

45w of individuals on “he 3oard o be women:

by atleass one semor 3oard posiion o be held by a
woman: and

b atleast one indivicdual on the 3oard <o ke from a

mincnsy ethne background

‘n accordance with Lisung Rule 9 Annex 2.0, the below
rable 1n prescribed format show the gender of the
Direcrars at the year ended The data below was
colleced through self-reporang by the Mrectors.

Number of

Numbet of Percentage on - Seror posiions
Gender wWenlty or sex Board members the Board (%) on the Board
Men 3 60 2
Women 2 40 -

Mol specified/prefer
no. o say ) - - -

Number of

Number of P(‘[('()nl’aqf‘ on SCTLOL POSINONS
FEthnuwe background Board members The: Board (%) on the Board
Whnite Briush or other
Whtic {inciading
munority wiie
Jrouns: 5 100 2
Mixed/M.aiin e Finne
Grouns - - -

Astan/Aasian Briisn

B.ackc/African/

Caripnean/B.ac<

Britis: - — —
Oiner elnic group

inc nding Aran - - -
Notspecilied/orefer

no: o say - - -

The 3oard s mundful that at pragent. - doeg nor comply
with the new ethnic and gender represeniaion n
senior position diversty requiremen:s and, the 3card.
via the Mominatnion and femuneraton Commiitee, 1s
saking appropriate sieps "o ensure “hat 3oard succession
planning sakes these diversrry requitements m:o
consideration.

Induction of New Directors

A procedare for the inducion of new Directors has been
established, inctuding ~he provision of an induciion pack
conzaiming relevant informanon aboas the Company.

I"s processes and procedires and maeings with the
Charrman and relevan: persons at the nvesimen: Adwviser

Performance Evaluation

Cor the year under review. the 3oard underiook

an inernal performance avalaanon by way of
quesiionnaires designed o assess “he srengths and
Independence of the soard and the Chaurman. individual
owuectars and the performance of -he 3card’s Commiees,
The areas considered ars,

wwenese of Joard and

e “he frequency and effe
Commies meslings,

s Che aire, composion and relevant experience of -he
3oard;
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¢ theindependence and performance of the Directors
and the Board: and

e thetraining requiremeants ol each Jirector

The evaliation process 1s faciitated by the Company
Secretary under the Chairmans direction and s:ructured
ta provide Directors with an opporiunity to express
therr views in addiion o answernng specific quesnons.
Peter 3axter. as the Semor ndependen: Director. leads
*he appraisal of the Chairman. the Board undertook an
external 3oard performance evaluauon in 202" and 18
cognusan: of their advantages. 1t will keep this opuon
under regular review,

‘The Company seeks 10 ensure thas the 3oard has a
balance of skills and expenence that are complementary
and enable the 3card 10 Operate efficiently.

All of the Dirsctors have assessed thetr other ongomg
commuments and are satgfied “ha: they can commu: the
me necessary o execite their duties to the Company.

No significant 1ssues were 1denfied dunng the evaluation
process. The Nommauon and Remuneranon Commities
considers that all of the current Directors make an effective
contnkution and have the requusize skills and expenence
o continue to provide able leadership and directton for
“he Company. = was agreed that all Directors showld be
recommended for re-election ar the next AGV. The 3oard
18 rindful “hat, should as Takeover Offer by Wellness

Ly imized (@ wholly owned indirec: subsichary of CK
Asser “oldings Limited) has on 23 June 2023 been declarad
uancondronal, the resolulions proposed and the formar of
the Company's AGM mav be impacted

The 3card concluded that each Direcior brings considerable
expertise and expenience o -he 3oard and the 3oard
operates with good mdependen: thought and challenge.

All 3nard members have assessed their ongomng
commumente and are satisfied tha: they can commi: the
ume necesgary o execute their datles to the Company.

The 3oard also uses the performance evallaion as an
opporaney to review and discuss girateqie issues for
the Company.

Conflicts of Interest

All Direcrors have a sTamuiory responsibilhiny 1o avold
siruatnons where a conflic: of 1InTeress EXIETE, Or may

exist, batween “he Company and an ennty that the
nrecroris ehear directly or indirectly mvolved with

The 3oard has procedures in place 0 1densify porenial
conflicss and resolve any Tha: should anse. o the case of
a confhicr of interess, the narure and exten: of the conflic:
are assessed againsT the existng internal control structura.
and the reasulis of *hig assessment and achons taken o
resolve “he confher are documensed in the minires of
‘he relevant Soard meenng Mo confhicte of interes: arose
dunng the period.

Health and Safety

Feal'h and safery 1« of prime impoerance to the

Company and 1s considered equally with all other
business managermernt aciviies 1o ensure protecrion of
stakeholders, be they tenan:s, advisers, supphers, visiiors
or others. The 3oard regularly discusses health and safety
1ggues with the ‘nvesimen: Adviser,

The Company is committed o fostering the highest
standards in health and safety as 1t beleves tha: all
unsafe ac:s and unsafe condinons are preventable All
our szakeholders have a responsibility to suppor: the aim
of ensunng a secure and safe environmens, and all our
stakeholders are tasked with responsibility for achieving
“his commitment.

Risk Management and internal Control

The Drectors are responsible for the sysiems of inzernal
control relaning “o the Company and 1:s subsidianes,
and the rehabihty of the financial reporiing process and
for reviewnng their effecaveness, ensanng tha: “he nsk
managemen: and conrol processes are embedded in
davy-:o-day operanons.

An ongomng formal process, i accordance with the

TRC Gindance on rRisk Management, niternal Control

and Relazed “nancal and Business Reporing, has been
established foridenufying, evaluasing and managing the
principal and other rigks mog: likely o impac: the Group.
This process, which 1s reguiarly reviewed, together with
key proceduras estabhished with a view 1o providing
effecuve financial control has been in place throughour
“he year ended 4 March 2023 and i o the date of this
2epor..

The Audiz and Managemen: “ngagement Commuies has
in place a formal procedure for performing an angomng
robus: assessment of the Group's risk managemen:

and mnternal consrel sysems. A nsk matnx has been
established agaimst which the nsks idennfied and the
controls 1n place wo mitigate those risks can be monitored.
The 11sks are assessed on the basig of the hkelithood of
~hem happening. the impact on ~he busmess 1f they were
o occur and the effeciiveness of the conrols in place

10 muiigate them. 'n arnving at s jadgemen: of what

risks The Company faces, the 3oard has considered the
Company's operatons in the hgh: of the following factors:

e henature and exien: of rnsks which 17 regards ag
acceprable for the Company o Lear varhin 1ms overall
Irusmess objechive;

s he threa: of such ngks becoming reahty:

e -heCompany's alxiliy o reduce the incidence and
impac: of ngk on 13 performance: and

e “hecoz-ohe Company and kenefig related ¢ the
Company and third paries operaung “he relevan:
controls
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‘The risk manx 1s reviewed twice a year by the
Commuziee and at other ilmes as necessary The pnncipal
nsks facing the Company are set out on pages 30 70 33 of
this Annual Repors, ogether with the processes apphed
L0 mitigate those risks.

On an annuaal basis, the Commitee reviews the conirol
repor:s of 18 key service providers and the audrors noe
any deficiencies in internal consrols and processes thas
have been dentified duning the course of the audu:

The Audy and Managemen: mngagement Commitea 1s
mindful of these key nsks as well as considenng evolving
and emerging nske gich az the impac: of the ongoing
Ukraime-2ussia conflics, long-term chmate change and
cyber security which have the porennal o affect the Group.
The Commiiee ensures that the Board 1akes appropnate
advice and debates the 1ssues facing the Group.

A each 3oard meeung. the 3oard receves repor:s from
‘he nvesimen: Adviser, the Adminisirasor, the A"V and
~he 3roker in respec: of compliance acavities. Company
financial performance and finanaal posiiion

The con:rols. which are regularly reviewed, aun o
encure thas the asse:s of the Company are safeguarded,
proper accouning records are mamm:atned, and the
financial informanon used within the busmess and for
publicanion s reliable. The nsk managemen: process
and Company systems of inzernal conirols are designed
0o manage rather than eliminace the nsk of failure <o
achieve the Company's objecuves and can only provids
reasonable b not absolule assurance againg: maternial
missTatemen: or 1oss.

The Dwrectors have carned our a review of the effectiveneass
of the Company's nsk managemen: and mernal conrol
sysiems as “hey have opera‘ed over the penod and ap o
“he daze of approval of the Annual Repor. Jurning the course
of the review the 3oard has notidenufied nor been advised
of any faillings or weaknesses which 17 has determinad o be
significan:

The Directors have considersd “he appropriaensass of
establishing aninternal audis funcuon and. having regard
w0 the stractare aned natire of the Company's aciivimes,
has concluded hat the funchon 15 annecessary. The Agdi:
and “anagemen: ngagemean: Commutes will revievs

on an anndal basis the need for this fanchon and make
appropnate recommendaions o the 3oard.

Financial Reporting

The 3Ioard operatas “he following key contrels 1o relanon
‘0 firancal reporiing

e che 3oard and Commuttee mambers review quarerly
managemen: reports and suppornng documents thas
are provided by the nvesirmen: Adviser,

¢ “he 3oard has procediuares in place for the approval
of expenses and paymen:s "o Third paries, and

e the Commiitee members and Board review all
financal mformanon and announcements pnor
-0 publication

Corporate Responsibility

The Company regards corporate responsibiliy as
integral 1o how iz conduc:s its business. s commitied o
being a good corporaze citizen and behaving responsibly
wr'h a demonstrared ransparency of approach

To achieve thts goal, the Company applies the following
principles 1o 1is Operations:

Business Conduct

The Company's mvesimen: decisions are made on the
basis of generaing shareholder value and ensuring

-he long-ierm success of the business. The seleciuon of
suppliers will be made independen-ly by the Company’s
Directors apon advice from the nvesiment Adviser

and in the bestinteres:s of the Company. The Board

will ensure tha:t appropnate conirols are in place 1o
guarantee mdependence from the supply chan.

All cusiomers and supplhiers will be reated farly and
responsitly.

The Company will no: provide financlal suppor: o
pohical pariaes or polinicians.

The Company 1s resolazely opposed o brnibery and
corrapsion The Company will no: use any iliegal or
improper means to furher 1ms business mierests. hor will
- accep: any forms of inducemen:s intended o influence
g Inves men: decisions.

Governance

The Company will protec: *he ineress of 17s sharcholders
and other srakeholders through compliance with relevan:
legal and regulazory environmen's, and ‘hrough effecuve
managemen: of business nsk and opporsantsy

The 3oard wall enzure that 1is members are -ruly
independent. are comperent and have ~he resources and
supphor: raquired o perform their dunes opumally and
“nar ~he 3oard’z decisions are made 1N the best interess
of the Company and 178 shareholders. The performance
of the Joard wnll be regularly reviewed, and Jirec-ors will
reqire ag and when deemed appropriate by the 3oard in
accordance wnth best pracice
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Socially Responsible Investment

The Board aims to be a socially responsible investor
and believes that 1t 1g imporrant 7o 1nves: in specialst
soctal housing propertaes in a responstble manner In
respect of environmen:al. ethical and social 1ssues. The
‘nvesiment Advisers evaluanon procedure and analysis
of the properties within the por:ifolio inchides research
and appraisal of such masters, and takes 1nto account
environmental and social pohcies and other business
1881es

“urther detatls on the social impact of the Company's
nvesiments are included n the Socal impact repor: from
The Good -conomy, a summary of which can be found
on page 40.

The Company recognises tha: environmental prorection,
resource efficiency and sustainakle developmen: are
necessary 1o ensure thar environmenzal damage 15
limited and furthermore that where relevant, posiive
acrions should he taken o improve the exisung
anviranmen: [ lulure generaiuons.

Transparency

The Company aims o be ‘ransparent and 1o ensure
that 1m communicazes with 138 shareholders and
other stakeholders in a manner that enhances their
andersranding of 1:s business.

The Company maintams accounting documentanon
tha: clearly identifies the rue nanire of all business
ransacuons, asses and hatnlines in hing with “he
relevan: regulatory, accouniung. and legal requiremenss.
No record or entry 1g knowingly false, distoned,
mcomplete, or suppressed

All reporang 18 mazenally accuraze and complete and

n comphance in all matenal respec:s with stated
accouniang policies and procedures. The Company does
no: knowingly missate or mistepresen: managemaean:
informauon for any reason, and the Company expec:s the
zame 0 apply "0 11s supphers.

The Company may ke required 1o make statemen:s

or provide repors o regulatory bodies, governmen:
agencles or other government deparimen:s. as well as @o
he media. The Company ensures that such statemen:s or
reporis are correct, umely, and no: misleading, and tha:
‘hey are delivered through the approprate channels.

The Company provides, through its website, 178 Annual
Repor: and other statements, appropriate mmformanon
to enable sharehelders and stakeholders to assess

the performance of 17s business. T complhes with

the applicable laws and regulanions concerrning the
disclosure of informaton relating to the Company.

Communities

The Company aims ¢ ensure that 18 properies which
are associlated with the provision of health services
provide significan: value-adding facihiies in the
COMMANLIIes where 1t Inves:s.

Relations with Stakeholders

Deralls regarding the Company's engagement with Us
stakeholders are ser out within the Strategie 2eport an
pages 7 0 25,

Approval

The Corporate Governance Statemen: has been approved
by the 3oard.

By order of the 3oard

Link Company Matters Limited

Company Secraary

28 June 2023
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REPORT AND A

Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Introduction

The Audlr and Managemen: Sngagemen: Commitiee {he
“Comrmizree’) oversees the financial reporing process for
“he Company, wirth consideranion of the internal conirols
and nsk managemen: of the Company, and oversigh: of
the Company's comphance with accounung standards
and regulatory requirements. - also overseeas ‘he
performance of the ‘Investment Adviser and the Company's
admuustraave and company secretanal supporr.

Composition and Role of the Audit and

Management Engagement Committee

The Commitee 18 chared by Caroline Gulliver and
compnses all the “hreciors. The Commitee operates wirhin
wnen terme of reference which are availlable on the
Company s webhsie as determuned by the doard

The principal functions of the Commuttee are to:

& oversee the financial reporiang process for the
Company and monizor the mn:egriry of the finanacal
statements of the Company and the Group, inchading
“hetr compliance with accounung standards and
reqilalory requirémen:s;

s advise “he Board, where reques:ed. ot whether the
Annuaal Repor: and financial statements, taken as a
whole, are fair. balanced and unders:andable and
provide the informasion necassary for shareholders
o agsess the Company's posiion and performance,
business model and sirateqy:;

e review and monror the mnternal financial control and
nsk managemen: systems of the Company:

e montor and review anndally whether an inzernal
audit funcion s recquaired;

s review the nvesimen: Advisers whisideblowing
arrangemert:s:

e approve the appomimert. re-appoin men: or
removal of the ex:ermal aaditors, and approve their
remdaneraton and terms of engagemean:;

« manage ‘he relationship between the Company
and the external audizors, including reviewing their
independence and obijectivity and “he effectiveness of
che audi process;

e develop and implemen: a policy on the engagermens
of the ex:ernal avudizors -0 supply non-auadl: gervices:
and

e review and monror the performance of and
canrachial arrangements with, the nvessmen:
Adwiser, the 477V and other service providers.

g wrthin the Commitiee’s “ermas of referance for 178
members ‘0 seek independen” profeszional advice, at the
Company § expense, as reqaired in the furherance of 1°s
dunies

Meetings

The Commitee mee s "hree “1mes a year on mwo
accasions, pars of the meening 1« held vith the excermal
audizors withou “he nvesimens Advisar present. The
Commuee me: hree nmes 10 the inancial year and “he
me=sungs were arvended by each memBer az se” 01 on
page b4

Performance Evaluation

The process for the evaluanon of the performance of the
Commitiee 1s disclosed on pages $6 and 57.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Company has an ongoing process for idenufying,
evaliaung and managing “he prncipal and emerging nisks
faced by the Group. -arther details can be found on pages
47 and 58

The principal nisks and uancer:ainues idennfied from the nsk
regigrer and a descnphion of the Groups nisk managemen:
proceduares can be found on pages 3C ¢ 33

Activities During the Year

The Commitiee considered the Annual Repor:, ~alf-Yaarly
Repor:, any other formal financal performance
annouancements and any other masers as specified
ander the Commttee’s terms of reference and reporied "o
‘he 3oard on how 12 dizcharged g responsibilines.

The Committee discussed and considered the external
aud performance. objgenvity and independence, the
external audirors re-appolnimesn:, accounsing policies
and Alletnanve Performance Measures, sigmfican:
accouantng judgements and esaimares, the need for an
internal audi funciton and the risk register.

The Commitee conclided that an internal audis
funcnon would provide minimal addinional comfort
ar considerable extra cost 0 the Company. niernal
aszurance 18 achieved by the exisung sysiem of
montionng and reporing by third paries which the
Commiziee views as appropriaze and adequate The
exrernal addiors are also provided with third pary
imrernal controls reporss and addimonal informanon,
as requested.

Juring the year, the Commiziee alzo conducred a
comprehensive review of the key agreemen:s with

I's gervice providers, and a dezailed review of the
performance, composiiion, personnel, processes and
internal control systems of the AITM, a review of ali of
~he Group's other corporate advisers and key service
providers The discussion included an assessmen: of
performance and =.zabilvy of *he services pravided
in “he contex: of the fess paid “0 each provider. and a
review of The termination penod of each agreemen-

The Commitiee considered “he lerms of tThe nvesimen-
Yanagemen: Agreemenst, 10 ensure 1T continues 1o reflec:
“he commercial arrangements agreed berween the
Company and the nvesimen: Adviser and was sansfied
cha: ~his was the case

1The Commiitee dizcussed and considered she Takeover
Offer by Wellness Unity miuzed fa wholly ovwned
subsidiary of CX Asser =aldings imizeds, including “he
work underraken by “he Company in relanion o the offer
128 impact on “he Company’s tisk profile and on going
CONCern.




Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Commaittee

Continued

Significant Issues Considered by the

Committee

The Commitiee considered the key accounting estumates
and judgements underlying the preparation of the
financial staremen:s focusing specifically o

Valuation of Investment Property
The valuanon of the property portfolo 1s crucial 1o “he
statemen: of financial posiuon and reporied results.

After discussion with The ‘nvestment Adviser, the
Committee has determined that the key nisks ot
misstazemen: of the Company financial stazements relase
0 the valuation of iInvesimen: proper:y.

The valuations of the iInvesimen: properties a: the end
of the financial year were independently performed by
Jones Lang LaSalle Lrmized (*JLLY), whom the Comrmiitee
constders t0 have sufficient experise, experience and
local and nauonal knowledge of social housing and
supported housing o underzake the valuanons.

T.L also conducrs imitial valuanons of properies on
acquusiiion. The Dhirectors have ensured that .0 has
appropnase procedures in place 1o ensure there are no
independence conflicts with the services provided o
the Companvy.

The nves men: Adviser confirmed to the Commiee tha:
‘he method of valilauon has been applied consistently
durnng the year = further confirmed thas, dunng he
course of the pernod, ) .o was regularly challenged by
‘he nvestment Adviser on The assumpuoens used m the
valuation of the Company's Invesimens: properies to
ensure robust and appropnate methods were hemng
apphed. The invessment Adwviser discisses these areas of
challenge with the Commieea.

The audizors mer separasely with 177, and reported hack
0 ‘he Commizese on s challenge of the valuations

and assumpuons, The audizors were sanshed tha:

‘he valuations had been prepared using appropriae
methods and assumpnueons. and had been prepared in
accordance with 22CS Valuation - Crofessional Standards,

As explained in note 5.0 o the financial statemens,
‘he approach adopied by the Company 1s 10 recognige
INvesIimen: proper:es at fair value with the fair value of

‘he property being based on valuanons performed by jLL.

The revatuanon of the imvesimen: properies gave rse 10
a revaluanon gain of £2.640.200 i the penod.

Takeover Offer

The Caommitee considered the valuanon work
Jndertaken by | tas instructed o act for the Company,
Canmure Gordon (LK) imited and aherum Caprzal
_imized) with respect to the Takeover Offer by Wellness
Lruzy imized {a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CX
Agset moldings Limized! The valuation methodology used
by J.7 was consisten: with “hat used during the valuatuon
for the year ended 3" Yarch 2022 and had the same
valuanon date

Maintenance of REIT Status

There are a number of condinons that a company (or
principal company of a group R neads 1o sausfy in
order 1o become a =T and remain within the regime.
The UK R=.T regime affords the Group a beneficial tax
reatment for income and capital gains, provided cerain
crizena are met. There is a risk that these REI'l condinions
may not be me: and addinional tax becomes payable by
the Company. The 3oard regularly reviews the Rzl tests
that are performed by ‘he Administrator.

The Board 18 satisfied that the Company has maintained
113 20T s1amus throughout the year

Going Concern

The Commitee considerad the Company's Going
Concern and Viabiality S:azemens for the year ended

37 March 2023 1n hght of the Takeover Offer and 11s impac:
on the Companys deb: position. 1T agreed the wordimg
used mn the ndependent Auditors Report which makes
reference 10 the martenal uncerainty identified.
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Misstatements

The Invesimen: Adwviser confirmed 0 the Commitee tha
It was not aware of any matenal rmissiatements made
intenaonally 1o achieve a paricular presentation,

Conclusion in Respect of the Annual

Report and Financial Statements

Having reviewed the presentanons and reports from the
nvestmen: Adviser, the Commattee 1g gansfied that ~he
financial siatements approprately address the crnincal
radgemenss and key esuimares, both in respect of the
amoun:s reporred and the disclosures.

The Commizes s also sansfied thar the sigmifican:
assumprions ased for determining the vahie of assets
and labiliues have heen approprnaely scrutinised and
challenged and are sufficien:ly robust Accordingly, the
Commutzze has conchided that the Annual Repor: and
financial statemenss, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and unders:andable and has recommended Their
approval 1o the 3oard on tha: kasis.

Auditors’ Appointment and Tenure

As a resul: of the U<s implementation of the zUs
mandarory audir firm rotatnon requirements, the Company
1z required o ensure that the external addrors contraa:

1s put oul to ender at least every ten years, with the
proviso thas no single firm may serve as the Company's
exrarnal auditors for a period exceeding 20 yvears.
“neewaterhouseCoopers L2 was firgr appoiniad as the
Company's audrors with effec: from March 2017 2
intended tha: the external audit wall be ot out o tender
no later than for “he finanaal year commencing - April
20726, which g ten vears after the Companysmiaal hsiing

&

Saira Choudhry s the audis partner allocated 0 “he
Company by “neewaternouselCoopers 0.2 The audi of
the finanaal statements for the year ended 37 Varch 2028
1s her second as senor starutory auditor of the Company.
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Continued

Assessment of the Effectiveness
of the External Audit Process and
Auditors’ Independence

As part of 1ms annual review of the effeciiveness of

the exiernal audir process, the Committee obtained
assurance on “he qualiry of -he ex-ernal audi: from its
own evaluauon, the audi: feedback documentanon and
from correspondence and discussions with the audit
parner, Invesiment Adwviser and the Admunisirator.

The auditors demongstrazed a good understanding

of the Group. and had dennified and focused on the
areas of greazes: inancial reporung risk. i1s reporung
ro The Committee was clear, open and ‘horough. The
Commiee has assessed the professional scepticism and
challenge of management judgemens by the audiiors
and is sausfied that the auditors have demonsirated
“hese Tor example. the external audrors conducied a
review of the wark conducted by jL..1n evaluating the
invesimen: propery valuauons im which the exiernal
audiors showed appropriate professional scepicism
and challenge of jadgemen:. The Commitee assessed
-he challenge provided by the external audizors via the
exiernal audurors reports provided at the yvear end and
half year end meetungs and quesuoned the external
audditors as appropnare. 'Ihe Audi and Managemen:
wngagemen: Commiiee Chairman also me: with the
external audizors throughous the audir and half-yearly
review processes 1o ensure that the external audizors
were aligned with the Commiee’s expeciations The
Commitree considered the advice included in the

TRC Pracuce Aid on Audr Quality when making thig
judgemen:,

The “RC’s Auchiz Qualiny ‘nspeciions Repor: on the aadits
carned our by ’ricewarerhouseCoopers .7 was also
conswdered by the Commutiee, On the basis of these
factors and assessments. the Comrmlsiee has concluded
-haz the external audit process has been effeciive,

The Commitiee assessed the external audrors’
independence, qualificanons, relevan: expensnce,
and effecuveness of audr proceduares. ‘n advance of
each audiz. the Commtiee obrains confirmanon from
che external audizors thas they remaimn independens
and “ha: "he level of non-aud fees are no- an
indenendence threa:

Non-audit Services

The Commiztes has putinto place a pohoy for the
provision of non-audit services o the Company by the
auditors which 1s1n ine with the recommendatians set
outin the 'RC's Guidance on Audl: Commitees (2016) and
the requiremenss of the 7RC's Revised tthical Standard
(2C19). The general inention of the Commitee is o avold
<he provision of non-audit services by the auditors, other
than the review of the half-yearly report, as these have
the potenual o compromise the independence of the
audrors. The Commiitee acknowledges that in certain
situations 1t rmay be appropriate for the external audiors
to provide such =ervices 1o the Company for a variety of
reasong including cost effectiveness, depth of knowledge
and the ongoing relationship between the 3oard and

the external audiiors. All non-audn fees are approved by
the Commiiiee in advance. Where non-audr: fee levels
are considered significans, The Commitee considers the
appropriateness of the independence safeguards pu: in
place by the audrors.

The total fees paid o PrnicewaterhouseCoopers L..2 dunng
the period. net of VAT, totalled £441,000 {2022: FAG2,000) of
which £83000 (2022 F4410C0) was concermng non-audu
services for the review of the half-vearly repor and

Fnil (2022: £62.000 for non-audit services concerning a
planned 3ond igsue which was pogstponed;

The audrors were selec:ed for the non-audit services
relanng o the pos-poned 3ond ‘ssue following careful
consideration by the Commiitee. The Commities
Leheved ~ha- the alalizy for -he audiors to aadue the
Company's inancial statements independently would
no: be impacied by this work. 71s standard pracuce for a
Company's externat audirors to undertake this ask.

Nore 9.0 10 the consolidared financial stazements
detanls all services provided and :otal fees paid o
ricewarerhouseCoopers 7.2 for the financial vear
ended 37 March 2024 The Commizee considers
ricewaternouseCoopers L. to be independen: of the
Company.

Re-appointment of the Auditors

Taking into accoun: the performance and effeciiveness of
‘he audizors and “he confirmanion of -heir independence.
che Comrmuee has recommended ‘o he 3oard that a
resoluilon o re-appoin: 2ricewaterhouseCoopers .7 as
‘he Company's audrors Le put "o the shareholders at the
forhcoming AGY

Caroline Gulliver
Chairman, Audi and Yanagemens sngagemen:
Commiiiee

28 June 2025
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Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Introduction

The Norninatuon and Remuneration Commitee presen's the
Repor: for the year ended 37 March 2045,

Composition and Role of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee

The Nominaton and Remuneranon Commitsiee Comprises
Jeter 3axter, as Charrman, and the entire 3oard, all of
whom are non-execuive Oirectors. Terms of Reference
have been established by ~he Board and are avallable on
the Company’s webhisite,

The Normnmaton and Remuneration Commisieg’s principal
duties are as follows:

Nomination

e o review the struclure, size and composiaon of the
Joard. including 118 skills, knowladge. expenence and
diversiry, mcluding gender and ethniciiy;

e 0 consider the succession planning of ireciors,
aking into account the challenges and opporiunites
facing the Company and -he skills and expertise
needed on he Board in the futare;

« aberasponsible for idenufying and nomimating
candidates o fill 3uard vacancies as and when
they anse;

& 0review annaally the ame required from
non-execuive JIrecrors:

s nreview the resulis of the Board performance
evalualon as 12 1elates 10 3oard composition and
SUCCEsSEIoN pldnnmg;

s oreview anmrdally potennal conflicts of interesis of
Sirectors as disclosed o the Company and develep
appropnare processes for managing such conflicts: and

e coreceve and consider updates from the nvesiment
Adviger on g own succession planning aciviies.

Remuneration

e o determine and agree with the 3oard. a formal
and transparen: procedure for developing policy
on the remunerasion of the Company's Chair, Audis
and Managemen® tngagement Commuitzee Chair
and non-execunive Direciors;

s f0take inioaccoun: all factors when considenng
‘he Remuneraton Polhicy which 12 deems necessary.
including relevan: legal and regulatory requiremen:s,
‘he provisions and recommendatons of he AC Code
of Corporate Governance and associared quidance;

s+ oreview ‘he ongoing appropriazeness and relevance
of the Remuneraton 2olcy;

« o obiam rehable up-ro-date informanon about
remuneration in other companies of comparable
scale and complexisy and market pracice generally:

e o beresponsible for establishing the selection
crizeria. selecundg, apponing and seting The terms
of reference for any remaneranon consultants who
adwise the Committee; and

e 1o ensare that contractual terms on terminaion, and
any payvmenss made, are fair zo the individual, and the
Company. that fatlare is no: rewarded and ha the
duty to mingaze loss 1s fully recogmsed.

Activities During the Year

The Commiee meets a: leas: once per yvear. Dunng the
year, the Comimiites has:

s considered the Board's remuneration in view of the
responstbilities and time comrmitments for overseeing
the affairs of the Company, in ight of the Artcles of
Aszociation as well as the level of dividend paid to
shareholders during the vear;

e reviewed the Director's skill mammx;

o  considered the Board's curren: succession plan, and
agreed that it would e pruden: for the 3oard
phase the recruitmen: of addimonal 2irectors going
forward 1o allow progreassive rotaton of Jirectors and
facihtate effective succession planning:

e appouned a Sub-Commitiee ‘o be responsible for
conducting the recruitmen: process o dennify a new
candidaze for appointmen: o the 3pard;

e engaged recruitmen: agency, Odgers 3erndsion, 1o
assigt with the search for a candidate,

e reviewed the results of the 2oard’s 2023 performance
evaluation process, the details of which can be found
on pages 56 and 5/ and

« sansfied 1:zelf thot each non-execunve Director
serving at the end of the year remaims independent
and conunues to have sufficien: iime 1o discharge
sherr responsibiiiies o the Company.

The Company s supporave of the new Listing Fiiles
Lemg issued by the Tinancial Condact Avuthonty

on diversity and inclasion on company boards. The
Commitee 1s congidening a range of candidates from
civerse backgrounds. The Company's diversity policy can

he found on page 56.

The Direcrors fees were considered by the Commities in
Jebruary 2023 Dunng s consideration, the Commities
ok 1Mo accounst the factors of clanty, simphcity, nsk.
predictability, proporienality and ahgnmens of Company
cualmure 't alsa obraimmed the mos: up-to-date incdustry
TEMINSralion comparison -0 aid in s decision-making.
Please see the Directors’ Jemuneraion Repor: on pages 64
w0 67 for detalls on Direc:or remuneranon,

Peter Baxter

Chairman, Normunasion and Remuneraton Commisea

A8 lane 2023
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’' Remuneration Policy

Introduction

The Remuneranon Pohcy of the Company 1s set by

the Board. A resolution o approve the Rermtinerasion
lolicy was passed ar the AGM of the Company held

on ‘5 Seprember 2022 The policy provisions set ous
below will apply untl the Remuneranon Palicy 1s

pu: to shareholders for approval at the AGV of the
Company in 2025 There are no changes proposed 10
the Remuneraton “ohcy The Remuneraton 2olicy 1s
binding and sets the parameters within which Directors’
remuneraiion may be set.

Policy

The Femuneration 2olicy of the Company 1s 10 pay v's
non-execuiive Jrectors fees that are appropnate for
-he role and the amoun: of aume spent in discharging
sheir dunies, “hat are breadly in line wih those of
comparable renl estate Invesimen: compantes and Tha:
are sufficien: 10 attract and reain suitably quahfied and
expenencad ndividaals.

Directors’ Remuneration Components

Component

Anndal fee

Direclor

Chairman

Anmaial fee Non-execuluve DIreciors

Chair of the Audlr and Managemen:
sngagemen: Commitae

f”xddltlor;ﬁ fee

Ad(;:ional fere" All Direc-ors

Eipenses Ail_-DLreétors

Rate al 1 April 2023
tand 1 April 2022)

screnonary

The fees paid will be reviewed on an annuat basts and
may alsa be reviewed when new non-executive Jireciors
are recruied 10 the Board. The Jirectors of the Company
are entiled o such rares of annual fees as the 3oard

art s discrenon shall from time o ime determine The
Chatrman of the 3oard and the Audit and Managemen:
“ngagement Commires Chairman are encitled to recewve
fees at a higher level than those of the other Directors,
reflecting their addiuonal dunies and responsibihties
Annual fees are pro-rated where s change :akas place
dunng -he financial year

. addion o the annual fee under the Company's
Aricles of Associaton, if any Jirecior 1s requased 0
pearform any spectal dutes or services ousside thewr
ordinary duties as a Jrector. they may be paid such
reascnable addinonal remuneranion as the 3o0ard may
from fime o ame delermine

?UIpOSé‘OﬁlﬁErfIT}VUnf‘ld[lOn . B
—~ . . I - -

Commumen: as Chaurman of a pubhc
company:

3000

ave Directors of

F44000  Commliimen: as nan-ex

a public company

£5 000
O RVIELS]

“or addinienal responsibilinies and ime
commiment

For exra or special services performed in
eir role gs a Director!

Remmbursemens of expenses imcurred in “he
rerformance of dunes as a Direclor

n/a

1 The Company s poliey s b the Chairman of 1he Beard 1o be paid a higher tee than rhe nther Direciors 1o reflect the more onerous roje
2 The Company s Arficles 0l Assuaiation hmin the aggregate lees payable fo the Board of Iiresrors o £250000 per annum
3 The Company s puhey s ton the Chair of the Audil and Management Engagoement Commimmee 1o be pdaid a higher 166 than the othei Dizeciors to reftec! the more

LTS e

4 This 15 a provision of the Cumpany s Arncles Addinonal fees would only be paird 1n exeeptional irelmsiances 1IN (elaton 10 the pefformance of 2xita o special

services

S Ditectors are enftled to claim expenses in respect of duties underlaken in connection Wih thei role as a Ditectot

The Company has no empluyees Accordingly there are no dilterences in policy on the remuneration of Direciors and the remunerathion of employees
Ho Dicecton s ennitied to 12ceve any emutieration which s perlormance telated As a resull, there are no performance condIfOns in relalon o any #loments of the

DUrectors remuneralion in exisence tw sel out 1in this Remuneranon Policy

Directors and Officers” labiliy insarance cover s
maintained by the Company on behalf of the Direc-ors.

Tireciors are entiled to be paid all expenses properly
incuarred n armending 3oard or shareholder meenngs
or atherynze in or with a iew o “he performance of
“heir dunes.

64

As all Durectors are non-execdive and “here are no
employees the Company does no: operaze any share
option or cther long-"erm mceen-ive schemes and he
Owrectors fees are no® subjec To any performance criterna
o pension or other retiremens benefit schemes are
operated by the Company for any of 178 irectors.



Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Service Contracts

No Director has a service contrac: with the Company. The
Jirectors are appomiad under letters of appointment.
Thear appoiniment and any subsequen: terminaion or
rearement 18 subjec: ‘o the Articles of Association The
rectors levers of appoimiment provide thas, upon the
serminanon of a irector's appoin:ment, that Director
must resign in wning and all records remain the
property of the Company. The Jireciors appointment
can be terminated 1n accordance with the Aricles of
Assoctanon and without compensatuon. There 18 no
nottce pernod specified 1in the Aricles of Associanon for
‘he removal of Directors and all Directors are subjec: 1o
annual re-election by shareholders.

Approach to Recruitment Remuneration

The remaneration package for any new Chairman or
nor-execdive Jirector will he the same as the prevailling
razes determined on the bases se our above. The 3oard
will not pay any iniroduciory fee or incentive o any
persoun L0 encourage them o become a irector, but

may pay ‘he fees of search and recraumen: specialists

n connecton with the appointmens: of any new
non-execuive DIrector

Views of Shareholders

Any views expressed by shareholders on the fees being
paid to Directors woulld be taken into considerazion by
‘he Board when reviewing levels of remuneranon

Remuneration Report

The 3oard presents 118 reciors Remuneranon 2epor

mn respec: of the year ended 31 Varch 2024 The 3oard
has prepared this report in accordance with the _arge
and Vediurn-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reporisl {Amendmens) Reqalations 2073 An ordinary
resolation for the approval of the Jirecrors Femuneraion
rRepor: will be pus to shareholders at the forrhcoming
AGM of the Company

The law requires the Company's audrorg to audir certain
required disclogures. Where disclosures have been
audired, ~hey are indicated az guch. The auditors’ opnmon
1s included in the audiors repor: on pages 71 o 78

Annual Statement from the Chairman

" am pleased to present the Directors’ feminaranion
Repor: for the year ended 37 March 2025,

ounng the year ander review, the 3oard, via the
Nominaziion and Remuneration Commitiee, was
responsible for seiting the Company’s Remuneranon
Sohey and Drecrors fees.

The repor: from Nomination and Remanearaion
Commitiee can be found on page 65

The Directors are remunerated for their services at such
rate as the Directors shall from aime 0 ime determine.
The 3oard has ser three levels of fees: one for the
Chairman, one for other Direcrors, and an addizional

fee that s paid to the irector who chairs the Audit

and Management -ngagemen: Commiteea ©ees are
reviewed annually in accordance with the Remuneraion
Policy. The fee for any new Jirecor appointed will be
desermined on the same basis

Directors’ fees for the year ended $° March 20238 were

ar alevel of £55.000 per annum for the Chairman and
£34,000 per annum for other non-executive Jirectors. The
Chalrman of the Audit and Managemen: =ngagemen:
Commicee recelved an addrianal fee of £5,000 per
ANt

Thera were no other paymenss for extra or special
services 1IN the year ended 37 March 2023

Az the AGM held on 5 September 2079, shareholders
approved the amendmen: 1o *he Company's Arucles of
Association which increased “he maximum aggregase
annual remuneranon pavable w Jwrectors from £200,00C
0 F250.000.

The Dwreciors emunearation 2olicy was approved
arthe AGM held on 15 September 2022 There will be
no sigrufican: change in the way “he Remuneraion
Pohicy will be implemented in the course of the nex:
financial year.

I'he Direc-ors’ Remuneranon Policy will nex: he presented
o shareholders for approval at the Company's AGM 1n
A0725
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Directors’ Remuneration Report 1
Continued

Directors’ Fees for the Period (audited)
The Directors who served dunng the year received :he following emoluments:

Year ended 21 March 2022

Year ended 31 March 2023 _ .
‘Taxable Change Taxable Change

Director Fees benehits Total toaozs Fees benctits Total w2
Vichaal Wrobel {Chairmarn © E53,000 —  £53,000 192% F52000 ~ ¥52.000  4.00%
Alasiair Maoss £34.000 - £34,000 2.16% 133780 - £355.780 4.0C%
Alson Fadden £34,000 - £34,000 2.16% E£33.280 - £35.280 4.00%
Caroline Gulliver £39,000 - £39,000 1.88% £38280 - E3Z82RC 6.55%
Pater 3axier £34,000 - £34.000 2.16% £33.280 - 4.00%
: T £194,000 - £194000 F90.20 - T
The amoun:s paid 10 the ireciors were for services as Company Performance

non-execuive Jirectors. Taxable Benefize included in ~he
above table are 1n respec of the amounrs reimbursead w0
Directors as travel and other expenses properly incurred
by them in the performance of their duties. There are no
variable elements 1in the remuneranion payable o the
2rectors

The following graph compares *he performance for the
pencd from 70 on 18 November 2016 1o 37 Varch 2023
the 01al shareholder return of the Company’s Ordinary
shares relatuve 1o the YI'S- All-Share ndex and 'I's=
Real mstate .ndex. Although the Company has no formal
benchmark, these indices have been selecied as the

Under the Company's Arncles of Aszocianon. the ol ST55 All-Share represents all companies of a similar

aggregate remuneraion and benefiss in kind of the capiial size, and the consaruents of the TS5 450 Real
Jrectors of the Company 1s subject to a maximum of sstate ndex are L<-based real esiate companies and are

F250.000 m any hnanaal yeat Any change 1o this woald ‘herefore considered o represent the mos: appropnate
reqruire shareholder approval. comparanive.

Loss of Office (audited)

The Jireciors do not have service con‘racis with the
Company but are engaged under letzers of appointmen:
dander which there 1z no entizlemens jo compensasion for
loss of office. 21irecrors are subject <o annual re-eleciion
by sharehoiders.

Total Shareholder Return (rebased)

Civitas v-7 - -, - FTSE 350 Real Estate Index

176

150

50 B R . N I .
18 Nov 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023




Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The takle kelow sets out, in respect of the vear ended
3 warch 2025

a) theremuneration paid o the Directors: and

b) the distnbunons made o shareholders by way of

dividend
’ Yra_r“;ndc—d- Year ended
%1 March 2023 51 March 2022
. L L £000 £000
DIreciors’ remunearalon 194 ‘90
Dividends paid 1o Ordinary
shareholders 34,459 54,093

Directors’ Interests {audited)

There 15 no requirement under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the terms of their appomiment for
Jrectors to hold shares 1n the Company.

As at 30 March 2074, the Direcrors (including thetr
connected persons) had beneficial inzeres:s in the
following number of shares in the Company:

IlMarch 2023

31 March 2022

ordimary Ordinary

shares shates

Tf"lc@l Wrolzel T _EDHOO 120.598 )
Alasiar Voss 11,766 L7656
Alison Fadden 31,937 -
Carohne Gulliver 58,832 HB 852
?i(?r anfer 82,065 82004

There have been no changes 10 Jirectors’ share inzeres:s
berween 37 March 2023 and he dae of thus Repor:. =ach
Drector has accepied the recommended all-cash offer
made by Wellness Lnlwy Limired for the enure 1ssued
share capizal of *he Company {he ‘Offer) in respec: of
‘herr own beneficial holdings

None of the Directors or any persons connecied
with hem had a matenal intergst in the Company's
TTAnsacions, arrangements or agreements dunng
“he year

Voting at AGM

The Mirec-ors Remaneratinn 2Alicer waes qpproved at

the AGM held on .5 Seprember 2022 and ‘he Directors’
Remuneraton Report for the year ended 3. March 2022
was approved at the AGM held on !5 September 2022 The
vores cast by proxy on these resohlions were:

Yoles for! Voles against
% ol voles % of vores votes Tetal
Resolution . cast cast __ withheld vores cast
To approve

the Directors’

Remuneranon

Report

99.65% 0.35% 266.5541 286.369.245
To approve

<he Jrectors’

Remuneraion

2olicy 99.63%

0.57% 285007 290.569.243

1 Votes L include discrenonary proxy votes granted ro the Chairman by
sharehuldeis

Consideration of Shareholder Views

The Company ts comrmized ‘o ongoing shareholder
dialogue and rakes an acive Inarest In voung odicomes.
Where there are substantial voies againg: rezolutlons

i relation o irectors remuneranon, the Company will
geek “he reasons for any such vaore and will detall any
resulilng acitons in the Directors’ Remuneration 2eport.
Soth the approval of the Oireciors Remunarauon fepor:
and the Mreciors Remuneratnon Pohey resolunions were
approved by shareholders at the AGY on "4 September
2022 The 3oard recerved no feedback from shareholders
on these resohinions,

Approval

The Jireciors Remuneranon epor was approved by the
Joard and signed on its behalf by

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

28 Juane 2623
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
in respect of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors 10 prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law “he
reciors have prepared “he Group financial starements
i accordance with U<-adopied internanional accounting
standards and the Company financial s:atements in
accordance with United Ximgdom Generally Accepred
Accountung fracuce (Unred Kingdom Accouarting
S:andards, comprising “RS 107 “Reduced Disclosure
Jramework”, and applicable law).

Under Company law, Direciors mus: no: approve the
financial s:atements unless they are sausfied -ha
“hey give a true and fair view of The siate of affairs of
the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of
she Group for that period. n prepanng the financial
gaemen:s, the Jirectors are raquired 1o

e select surrable accounting policies and then apply
them consisten:ly;

s state whether apphceable Uk-adopted intermational
accouniang standards have Leen followed for the
Group financial statemenss and United <ingdom
Accounung Standards, comprising ©35 100 have bheen
followed for the Company financal siatemenss, sulynec:
w0 any matenal deparsures disclosed and explained in
<he financial s:atements;

e make judgements and accounting esiimaces tha: are
reasonable and prudens; and

e prepare “he financial statemanis on the going concern
Basis unless 1115 inapproprate 1o presuame that the
Group and Company will cenzinae It Lusiness.

The Jrectors are responsible for safeguarding the
asses of the Group and Company and hence for :aking
reasonable sieps for the preveniion and deteciion of
fravid and other irregularnes.

The Jirectars are also responsible for keeping adeguate
accauntng records “ha- are satficien: “o show and
explain the Group's and Company’s ‘ransactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy aT any ame “he
financal postiton of the Group and Company and
enakle “hem -0 ensure thar the hinanoal statements and
“he Tirecrors’ Remiinearation Repor comply wath the
Companies Act 2006,

The Jireciors are regponsikble for the maintenance and
inegrity of the Company = iinancal siatements pubhighed
url the ulsimare paren: Company's wehstra “eqgislation

i -he Unred <ingdom governing the preparaion and
diggerminanon of finanaal statements may differ from
legislanon in otherjunsdicaions

Directors’ Confirmations

The Direciors consider that the Annual Report and
Accoun:s. taken as a whole, 1s fair balanced and
undersiandable and provides the information necesgary
for shareholders o assess the Group's and Company’s
position and performance, business model and strateqgy.

Zach of the hreciors, whose names and funcuaons are
listed 1in the Board of Directors, confirm that, 1o the bes: of
sher knowledge:

e the Group financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance wirh UK-adopted internanonal
accounung standards, give a trae and fair view of the
assets, habihues, inancial position and profit of the
Groam

s he Company financial stazements, which have

Been prepared tn accordance with Lnrred <imgdom
Accounung Standards, comprising T8 (0L give a mue
and fair view of ‘he asse:s, habilines and finanaial
posiion of the Company, and

e he Group Strategic Reporincludes a fair review of the

development and performance of -he usimess and the
postion of the Group and Company, together with a
descnipnion of the principal risks and ancertainnes “ha:
1 faces,

Approval

This STaremen: of Mraectors’ Responsibhihizies was
approved by the 3oard and signed on 1z tehalf by:

Michael Wrobel

Chairman
28 June 2073
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

As the Company and the Alrernauve [nvestmen: “und
Manager {the "Al'M7) are sach domiciled in the United
Lwgdorn, the PCA Randbook riles require thas, among
other things, the ATV makes avallable the following
mformanon o shareholders of the Company under the
AITMD (as implemented in the UK and o notfy them of
any marenal change to nformatoen previously provided.

These disclosures can also be found on the Company's
website: www civitassoclglhousing.com.

Investment Policy, Leverage and
Liquidity (AIFMD 23(1){a){b)(h))

The investmen: strategy and obiectives of the Company.
the rypes of assets it may investin and the invesrmen:
techmques 1t may employ, agsociated nsks and any
investmen: resinctions are laid ous in the inves:men:
objectives and policy and other sections of the

Annual Repaor:.

Cornformanon akout the circumstances in which

the Company may use leverage, the ypes of sources
permitted and ~he assodated nisks and any restrictions
on the use of leverage and any collateral and asset
re-use arrangemen:s, shareholders are direcred o the
disclosures conzained in the investment objechves and
policy seciton of these finanaal statemen:s as well as
specitfic AT7MD relared disclosures further helow,

Under the JCAs Lisung Rules. to which the Company 1s
subject 1t needs the prior approval of 11g gshareholdars o
make a mazenal change o 17s investmean: pohcy

Since the Company & closed-ended withou: redempnion
rnighzs, hquidity nsk managemen: 1z imited o the
hiaandity required o mee? the Company's obhgauons in
relazion 0 178 financing arrangemen:s. The A FM uulises
varlous risk assessment methods 1o measure the rnisk of
portfahonlhauidity o mest the Company's obligations.
This measuremen: enables the provision of managemen:
informaunon o the A5V and the 3oard of the Company ‘o
enable these nsks o be momrored and managed.

Legal Relationship with Investors (AIFMD
23(11c)

The Company i1s a public imized company hsted on he
London Stock Sxchange The Company 1s Incorporased
Jnder the laws of mngland and Wales. The consnmnonal
documen: of the Company 1s its araicles of associanon
which may only be amended by way of a speaial
resolunion of 155 shareholders, Upon the purchase

of shares. an investor becomes a shareholder of the
Company A shareholder’s hability to the Company will
be limited to the amoun: uncalled on thewr shares

As the Company 1s incorporated under the laws

of kngland and Wales. it may not be possible for a
shareholder located ouiside thatjunsdiction 1o effect
service of process within the local junsdiction in which
that shareholder resides upon “he Company. All or

a substannal poruon of the assets of the Company
may be located outside a local junsciciaon in which
a shareholder resides and, as a resul:, 17 may not be
possible o satisfy a judgemen: against the Company
n such local junsdiction or 10 enforce a judgemen:
obtained in “he local junsdiction’s courts agams:

lhe Company.

AIFM and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)(d),
(e) and {f))

The AiTM {GI0 Capizal Limited) 1g a private imited
company with 11s registered office at 3 More “ondon
verside, london 551 2AQ. G20 Capral imiedas
authonsed and regulated by the Financial Conduc:
Authority {FRN 6483953} [r has been appoinied by the
Company 1o manage the Company under an A 7M
Agreemen: with effect from 21 Augus: 2017,
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The AlZ'M 18 responsible for porifolio managemens:
and rsk managemen: and moniionng of the asse:s of
the Company and has discrenonary authority over the
acquisttion and disposition of the Company's asses,
with power 1o give guaraniees and underzake other
-ransactons on behalf of the Company subject 1o the
provisions of the AV Agreemen. The AIFM 15 also
responsible for ensuring comphance with the ATMD

The A "M's duties under the AT-M Agreemen: are owed
so the Company as a whole rather than directly 10 the
shareholders, whether individually or in groups. The
3oard of the Company s responsible under the A7V
Agreemen: for representing the Company in s dealhings
with the AVV,

n order to comply with 17s recqulazory obhgations. the
ALl'M holds professional indemnity insurance.

Depositary and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)
(d) and ()

ndos “imancial mited (the "Deposizary’) has been
appoinied as “he Depositary of the Company under

a Ddepostiary Agreement in accordance with A7 M7
requitemenis. The Deposiiary 1§ a company imcorpoerated
In “hgland {reqistered number 08255973 whose

reqistered office 15 at 54 “enchurch Stree:, _ondon 3 2
SC3M SJY. s avthornised to act as a Jepositary by the =g~
SCAFRN 602528), 'The Depositary 1s responsible for 2 2
safekeeping of the Company's imvesiments, including 25
holding mn custody those invesiments which are requured f z

oy e held in castody and venfying ownership and
keeping records of the Company's other investiments, and
for cash monizonng.



Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

Continued

The Depostary's duties under the Deposiiary Agreemen:
are owed to the Company as a whole and not directly ‘o
shareholders whether individially or in groups.

The invesiments of the Company are not of a kind
required to be held in custody by the Deposiary.

Independent Auditors (AIFMD 23(1){d})

The independent audiiors of the Company for :he year
ended 3 March 2024 were "ncewaterhouseCoopers L1°2
The audiors’ dunes, which are set ou: on pages 76 and
71, are owed 1o the Company as a whole. They have a
starurory responsibihity 1o report to the members of the
Company as a whole in relation w0 the ‘ruth and fairness
of the Company's state of affarrs and profi: or loss,

Valuation (AIFMD 23(1)(g})

The assets of the Company are valued in accordance
with the provisions set out1n the Valuanion “ohcy. The
Tvestment Commitee which has been se: up by the
AL Man respec: of the Company and s assets adds a
further level of oversigh- to the valuauoen process as se:
outin the Corporate Governance seciion of the Annual
Repaorw

Fees and Expenses (AIFMD 23{1}(i)}

The Company incurs cogig in “he form of depositary fees,
cusiodhan fees. bank fees and charges, markening fees.
auditors fees lawyers feess, fund admims-raton fees,
company secreranal fees and other fees.

Fair Treatment of Investors and
Preferential Treatment (AIFMD 23(1){)

No preferennal nghis have been granced o0 any
ex1sting shareholder.

The Company and the A7)V are commisied 10 ensurng
‘hart all shareholders are treazed fairly andin accordance
with U< company law. They have not and will not ener
N0 any arrangemen: with one shareholder which
could resulin any overall matenal dizadvaniage tothe
other shareholders.

Issue and Redemption of Shareholder
Interests in the Company (AIFMD 23{1)(1}}
The Company 1s ¢losed-ended and does not provide for

redemprlon or repurchase of thenierests of ordinary
shareholders at “heir reqiles:

Reporting and Performance (AIFMD 23(1)
{k), 23(1){m} and 23(1}(n))

The historic performance of the Company. o the exen:
avallable has been disclosed o shareholders in the
Company's Annuaal and “alf Yearly Repors, which

il be sent ~o sharehnlders and are availlalzle from
hup/icivicassomalhousing com/

The Jates: NAV of -he Company 1s published in the
larest Annual or Half Yearly Repor: or quarterly
NAV announcement.

Prime Broker (AIFMD 23(1)(0))

The Company does not have a prime broker,

Method of Making Ongoing/Periodic
Disclosures (AIFMD 23(1)(p),23(4),23(5))

nformanoen abour the Company's risk profile and nsk
managemen:, toial leverage and any matenal change 10
the arrangemen:s for managing the Company's hiquidity,
“he proporuaon of assews (f any’ subject 1o special
arrangemen:s ansing from hgadiy, “he maximam
permiized levarage or “he grant of ngh:s of re-use of
collateral or guarantees in relaton o leverage will be
provided 1n the Company's Annual Reparts or on the
Company's websize hop//ovizassocialhousimg.com/.

Risk Profile and Risk Management
(AIFMD 23{4)(c))

The appoiniment of the AJP'M as the ALV of the
Company ander the AWM D means thatitis responsible
for risk managemen: and the ongoing process of
denufying. evaluanng, monionng and managing

-he nsks facing he Company b accordance with the
requiremens of the Al V. ), The duard keeps the A™5V's
performance of these responsibilines under review as
par: of 17s overall responsibihity for the Company's nsk
managemen: and inrernal conrols

Ihe principal nsks of "he Company are set our 1n the risk
managemean: secllon in the Annual Repor:. The A_M's
rnsk managamen: gys'em incorporates regular reviews
of these nsks and the establishmen: of appropnase nsk
limits and irzernal constrol processes ‘o milgate the
risks. The sensimviry of the Company 1o relevan: nsks s
fur-her detalted 1n the nisk managemen: secaion in the
Annaal Repor.

Restrictions on the Use of Leverage and
Maximum Leverage (AIFMD 23(5)}

As specifiedin the invesimen: objecnives and polcy in
“he Annuaal Repor, the Company has the abhihioy o pusup
<0 a maximum leverage of 40% of the Company's Gross
Aszser Value and “he A7 oversees the use of leverage ©o
ensdre that the use of borrowing 1s consisten: with this
requiremen:. Leverage 1s calculated using gross assets,
wnth vartous adjasimense, dividad by net aszets.

Lnder 4.7V D the Company 1§ ragquired o calculate
leverage under the wo methadologies specified by
“he Direcive, the 'Gross /ethod' and "he ‘Commitmen:
/ethod' the differenice being “ha: the Commiismen:
Yethod allowrs ceriain exposares "o be offser or neved.
nesclogures are made on the websre of the Company.



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC

Report of the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Opinion
n our (1510 0R1810N

e Civitas Social Housing PI.C's group financial statements
and company financial statemen:s (the “financal
statemen:s’) give a true and fair view of the state
of the group's and of the company's affaurs as at
3 March 2023 and of “he group's profit and the group's
cash flows for the year then ended:

» he group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with U-adopred internanonal
accouning standards as applied 1n accordance with
“he provisions of lhe Companies Act 2006;

e ‘he company financal statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with Unitted Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Praciice (United Xingdom
Accountng Standards, including D2S 201 “Reduced
sclosare framework”, and applicable law}, and

s ‘he financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requiremen:s of the Companies
Act 2000,

We have audired the financial statements, included
within ‘he Annual Repor: and Accounts (the “Annual
rRepor’”), which comprnse: the Congohdated and Company
Starements of “inancial Yesition as at 30 March 2023

the Conschdated Statemen: of Comprehensive ncome,
the Consohdated Statemen: of Cash Slows, and the
Consolidated and Company Statemerniss of Changes

10 =quity for the year then ended: and the notes o the
financial statements, which include a descrniption of the
significan: accouning pohcles.

QUr opmion 18 consisient with our reporiang 1o the Agdit
and Managemen: chdagemen: Committes

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audi: in accordance with ‘niernatuonal
Standards on Aadinng (LK) ("18As (UK and apphcable
law. Our responsibilinies under iSAs (LX) are further
described in the Audirors responsibiliaes for the audis of
the financal statemen:s sechion of our repors. We belheve
that the audry enidence we have obrained 1g sufficien: and
appropnate 1o provide a basis for our oplnion.

Independence

We remamed independent of the group in accordance
with the ethical requiremen:s tha: are relevan: o aur
audit of the finanaal statements in the UL which inclades
the “2C's pthical Standard, as appheable to hsted public
nterest entiies, and wWe have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilizies in accordance with these requirements

To -he bes: of our knowledge and behef, we declare
thar non-audt services prohibited by the :3C's =thical
S-andard were no: provided.

Other "han those disclosed in note 9 Gto the Consolidated
financial statemen:s, we have provided no non-audr:
services 1o the company or 178 controlled underakings in
the penod under andis

Material Uncertainty Related to

Going Concern

n forming oar opinion an the financial statements,
which 18 not modified, we have considered the adequacy
of the disclosure made in note 2.2 10 the Consohdated
financal stazements and notwe 2.0 1o the Company
financial stazements concerning the group's and the
company's ability to conunue as a going concerr,
respeciively. Onr 8 May 2024 the 3oard of Directors of
Crvitas Sociat Housing ?LC {{CSE" or the group™ and the
3oard of Directors of Wellness Unuy lamited {an indirect
whaolly-owned subsidiary of C{ Asser Holdings Limited)
{collectively referred (o as "CK") announced that they
have reached agreement on the terms and conditions

of a recommended all cash offer for the group. On

235 June 2023, the offer became uncondiional. The group's
existing commiszed debt facilities conzain a standard
change of control clause which, from that point forward,
codld result in the existing cemnmtted debr facilities
being withdrawn. The Jirectors have not had detailed
visitnlity of CK's post complenon funding for the group
and company or the demailed plans behind the inennions
statemen:s incladed within the announcemenst. These
conditions, along with the other maters explained 1n
note 2.2 o the Consolidated financial statements, indicate
‘he existence of a marenal uncerzainty which may cas:
sigmficant doub: abous the group's and the company's
ability to contnue as a going concern. The financial
s:atements do not incluade the adjusiments that would
regulz if the group and the company were unable to
COTINUE as a goug concern,

1 audming the finanaal statements, we have concluded
tha: the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accountng n the preparanon of the financal statements
1S appropnae

Qur evaluation of the direciors” assessment of the group's
and he company's ability 1o continue to adop: the going
concern basis of accouniang included:

e We obrained managemen:s lateg: forecas:s that
suppor: The Board's assessmen' and conclusions with
respec: "o the going concern hasis of preparation of
“he financial statemen:s

s We checked the mathemancal accuracy of
managements forecasts.

e We evaluated and challenged forecas:s and sensimvisy
analysis prepared by managemen? ‘o ensure they
are refleciive of both the curren: environmen: and
considernng the nsk of a severe and prolonged
economic downturn We have assessed the exten:
and plausibility of these scenanos in hghs of curren:
circamstances, We evaluated “he direciors plans
for future acuons i relation o their going concern
assessment. should these be required.

s  We agreed the inpuss to ‘hese analyses 1o the audited
financral informatuon or ohramned corroboranve
suppor: for key assumpnons as apphcable,
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of ‘

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

* We have assessed the debt covenants as well as
managemen:’s assessmen: of possible breach of
covenan:s agreeing ‘he inpass o the audized results.
We have evaluated managemen:’s stress tests on the
covenants.

e We also considered whether Civitas’ deb: financing
would impac: the alwhity of the group and company "o
caonnnae as a gomng concern. Specifically we have had
consideration around any deist that s coming due in
~he going concern penod.

" relatnon to the directors reporiing on how they have
apphlied the UK Corporate Governance Code, other than
“he mazenal uncertaintyidentfied in note 22 1o the
financial statements, we have nothing maternial to add or
draw attennion 1o in relation to the directors’ statemen:
n the financial statermnents abou: whether the direcors
considered 17 appropriate to adop: the going concern
basis of accounung, or in respec: of the direciors’
idennfication in the financial statements of any other
marenal uncerzainues o the group's and the company's
ability 1o contnge o do so over a penod of at least
welve maonths from the date of approval of the financal
STatemenis

Qur responsibihiues and the responsibihities of the
direciors with respec: 10 going concern are descnbed 1n
‘he relevan: sections of this repor:

Cur audit approach

Overview
Audit scope

e We tailored the scope of our audit o ensure tha: we
performed enough waork to be able 10 give an opiruon
on the financial statements as a whaole, aking o
accoun: the sructare of the group and the company.
-he accounang processes and controls, and the
induasry i which they operaze. The group consists of
a single repor:able segmen:

Key audit matters

o  Matenal unceramty related 1o going concern
e Valuation of nvesimen: propery igroup!

Materiality

e Overall group matenalizy: £15.0 milhion
{2022 F10.4 milhon hased on 1% of otal asse:s. i

e Overall company matenaliry: £E82 million
{2027: £8.2 mullion) based on 1% of total assets,

e Zerformance maenalry £F7.5 milhon (2022: £7 8 million)
{group! and £6.2 million {2C22: £6.2 milhon) {company.

e Specafic group matenality: £L.35m (2022 F7.5m) for
certain financial stazement hine tems that impac:
adjus:ed profit before rax {APRT) - based on 5% of
AP ARPRT 15 equal 1o profit before tax adjusted for
the fair value movemenss 1n ives:men: property and
fair value movemern:s on Interes: 1ate denvaiives.

The Scope of our Audit

As par: of designing our audis, we determined maerialiny
and assessed the nsks of matenal miss:atemens in the
financial stazemen:s.

Key Audit Matters

Koy aud matters are thoge martters that in the audrors
professional jJudgemen:, were of most signficance

1n che audr of the financial stazemenss of the curren:
period and inckade the most significant assessed risks
of matenal misstatemen: {whether or not due 1o fraud)
idenified by the auditors, including those which had
‘he greaes: effect on:~he overall aud: strateqgy, the
allocanion of resources 1n the audrs and direcuing the
efforrs of the engagemen: :eam. These maters. and any
commen:s we make on the results of our procedures
~hereon, were addressed in the context of our audnt

of *he financial grazemen:s as a whaole, and m forming
our opimicn thereon, and we do no: provides a separate
opimon on these matiers.

n addimon o going concern. described 1in the Yatenal
ancerainty related ¢ going concern section above, we
dezermined the maters described below ‘o be the key

audlt mazers "o be communicated in our repor:. This s
no: a complete he: of all nsks identified by our audiz

AbTy o continde as a going concern (Conunaanan
Resoluniond. which was a key audis ma:er las: year, 1s no
longer included becadse the Continuation Jesolation
vote was passad m Seprember Ohervnse. “he key
audir marters helow are consistent wih las: year.




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Key Audit Matter

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of Investment Praperty (Groannp}

Reler 10 :ne Report of the Audi; and Managemen:
Lngagemen: Commitiee noie 31 1o 1ne Consolidated
financial s;azemen:s, significan: estima:e - valuation of
invesunent propery and note 150 o he Consolidated
financia. statemen:s. [nvesiment proocriy.

Invesimen: properties are ne.d a: a fair vai.e of 79534 miiion
as a: 31 March 2023 in the Consolidated Stazement of
Financial Position. The va.aaton of 1ne grour’s Invesumen:
propernty is the <ey componen: of the net asset val.e and
Lnderpinsg o grodo's rasutlar the yvear. The resuls of the
reval.ation this year was a gain of F2.6 milion, waich is
accounied lfor wiiin ‘Caange in tair va..e of invesimen:
properies in the Congolidated Siatemen: of Comprenensive
[ncome. Tac group’s invesiment property por:fo.io consists of
specialis: social nousing proceries ocared in Lng.and and
Wales whicn are (ol 10 Approved Providers of socia. housing
On Ong-erne .eases

Invesiren: property valuations waore carried o4 ov a third
narty valuer. Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL or :he Valuer) Tne
Vaider was cngagced oy tha Diraciors and ocrformed heir
worg In accordance with tac Roya’ Insiiule ot Caarered
S.rveyors {RICS) RICS Valuation - Profcssiona. Standards and
e requirements ol Internaiona. Accown:ing Siandard 49
Investmen: Properny’

Indetermining tnhe va..e of a property. e Va..er nas

laLen N0 aCCounn: propery-soecific informaiion inc uding
“he ‘ease term and renta. income payan's Taey apolied
ass.mpiions @ arrive gt e digeount rate waich t8 anoiner
<ey INpul o tac valuadon This nas reference 1o net miiia.
yield and CPI grow:h ratc waich are inti.enced oy orevai.ing
mar<e: condiiions and comparao.c rransaclions waere
appronriaic

Thc va..ation of the group’s invesimaen: proporty noriono
was idenificd as a zey asdil nracer given tne va.uation

1s innerent.y subectove duc to, among oner faciors. 1ne
individi.al natare ol gacn property. 11§ .oca‘ion and the
cxpecied Lalure renia. streams for that paricy ar properiy.
Tae significance of e esimalss and ‘wdgemonts invoived.
codp ed with the fact that only a sma. percentage differcnce
inindividua oroperly valuaions, when aggrogated. cond
oS TN A mracra, missiaenant, warran.od specittic a.dn
tocus I inis arca

Ziven 110 iInaerent aub cotvity ilvolved 1 b valad ol

of ihe property porifo.io, and therelore tne need for deep
market <nowledge when deermining 1ne nos: approprialc
assumprions and the tecanica.iies of va_wation memnodaiogy.
we engaged our inierna. valuation exper:s (qualified
cnarered surveyors) 10 assis: wsin our aadit of Jus arca,

Assessing the Valuers’ Expertise and Objectivity

We read e Valuer's report and confirmed tna: 1€ approaca
wused was consisien: witn tne RICS guidelines We assessed
e Valuers quaiificarions and cxper:ise and read (ielr ierms
of engagemen: with the gro.uap. delermining nat thera were
no maners tna: atfected their independence and ob ectivity
ar imposed scope limralions pon thelrr We aso considered
fees and other coniraciuar arrandgeImenis tha: mign: exist
pelween e group and 1e Va.uer. We found no cvidence 10
suggest that the oolectivity of the Va.uer was compromised

Assumptions and Estimates Used by the Valuer

in our :csting. which invoved tha usa of our intermna’ real
ostale valualion experts. we consideaerad ine assumplions
atilised py the Val.er witun e va.uanon, inciuding
indersianding 10w 1nesc assumplions were dove.oped.
We also performed pencamarang wnerc observan €
marxg: evidence was avallan.c. We chaenged the Valuer
regarding e imopact of [ne regu.aory environnent on
Invesior sentiment and asse: valdes We atlended mesungs
wiin managemen: and (e Va:uer a: which (e vaiiation
mezacdoiogy and tne <ey ass.mpuons were discussed.
We cha.lenged their approach wo 1ae va.aations, and the
raziona.c behind the more significan: va'sation assamplons
adopicd. Whers ass.mpiions wore owiside tne expecied
range, wo Jnderiook lurther investigations, nad furoner
discrssions win e Valuer and oniained evidence o
SLOpPOr cxpaanations received. We also caal'enged the
Va.LOrs as 10 116 exient tiey Nave [AKen inio accodnt e
impac: of climate cnange and re.atod ESG cansidarations
witnin ihe va.datons The responses provided oy the
Va.Jer and supporing cvidence, enabled o8 10 consider
e property specitic factors that may nave nad animpact
on va ue, Incloding recent compdrable rransaciions
wners appropriae. We cong.aded that tae assLmopions
used by the Va.ier wore consisient with our cxpeclations
and comparabic oencamarking and mar<c: Jransacion
information for the asset yoa
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Data Used by the Valuer and Legal Title

Wo validated the data used by ‘heVa wer and fo.nd hat it
wag consistent with the information we audited. This data
inc..ded inpais s.ch as curreni rent ren: indexanon (CPT or
CPHI1%)and ease ocrm. wnich we nave agreed ond samp @
pasig o cxecuicd @ase agreements as par. of o.r audi
wore, We verified egat ownersnip of proparies Lrougn
ndepanden: e deed conlirmalions on a samp ¢ hasis.

We cong Lded tng: tne agsampiaons Lsed in e vailalons
ny e Va uers were supporable in lign: of tne evidence
obtaimed and the discosures wiiain e Ann.d! Report are
sufficien: and approoriae. We nave no 1ss.es JQ repor. in
resopec: of this waorc
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

How We Tailored the Audit Scope

We tallored he scope of our audiz 1o ensure that we performed encugh work o be able 10 give an cpiruon on the
financial statemern:s as a whole, aking o accoun: the siructure of the group and the company. the accouning
processes and controls, and the indusiry in which they operata.

The group's properies are spread acrose 159 statutory ennzies with the group financial siatements being a
consolidanion of these entinies. The group's property porsfolio represenis a coheren: and diversified porfolio with
simiiar economic charactenstics and, ag a resuls. the whole portfolio of properies represen:s a single operaung
segmen: or compenent, and we have scoped our work accordingly. All work wag carried out by the group audit team
with addinonal procedures performed on the consohdanon o ensure sufficient coverage and appropnate audit
evidence for our opimon on the group financial stazements as a whole.

The Impact of Climate Risk on our Audit

‘n planning our audit, we made enguiries with managemen: t0 undersiand ‘he exient of the potental impac:

of chmare change nisk on the financial stazemen:s, Qur evaluanon of this conclusion incliuded challenging key
judgemen:s and esamates in areas where we considerad that there was greates: porenual for chimate change

impac:. We pariicularly considered how chimate change risks would impac: the assumptions made in the valuatuon

of invesimant propertes as explained 1n our key audlr mazer above We also considered the consistency of the
disclosures In relanon o ¢limate change made within the Annual Repor:. and the knowledge obained from our audr.
Lsing our knowledge of the business, we evaluated management’s nisk assessment and resulung disclosures where
sigmificant

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of matenality. We set certain quanuratve threshaolds for
materiahty. These, -ogether with gualiianve consideratons, helped us 1o determine the scope of our gudit and the
narure, ming and extent of our audrs procedures on “he indinduaal inancial statemen: ine rems and disclosares and
In evaluanng he effect of misstacements, both individuaally and 1n aggregate on the finanaal statemen:s as a whole

3ased on our professional judgemeant, we determined matenalty for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Financial statements — graup Financial statements ~ company
Overall F10.0 miiion (2022- T8 4 miljon! £82 mi.ion 2022: E8 2 o lon)
materiality
How we 1™ of *ota. asses 1% of to1a’” assets
determined it
Rationale for The ey meas.ure of e growp's verformance is g Tae company's main aciiviiy 15 1ae no.ding ot
benchmark va..aton of invesiren: nroperies and e palance nvesimens in s.oosidianes. On Tus pasis. we se:
applied s1eeT as a wno.c Glven s we se: an overa. an overa. company maena 1y eve pased on
groun maerially ove pascd on tola. asses (XA, asses,

‘naddiion to overall group matenality, a specific group mateniality was also applied “o ceriain financial statemen:
line 1tema tha” mmpac: Adjasted Profin 3efore Tax (A23TY which s based on profit before tax. adjusied o exclude
fair value movemen's on investmen: property and derivanves, We se? a specific overall mazeriality level of £13
million (2022 £.5 miliond. equanng 0 5% of A23T. narrng at thisjudgemens, we considered “he fact thar A?31 s
a secondary financal mdicazor of the group which 1s disclosed as 2234 =armings 1n the Annual 2epor: refer 10 the
Grouap STrateqic Report where “he term 1s defined wn fUlld

We uge performance mateniality o reduce w0 an appropnacely lovr level the probabihiy that the aggregate of
Uncorrecied and undeiacied misstatemenss exceeds overall materialiny Specifically, we use performance maenialy
n derermuning the scope of our audr and the natare and exten: of our —esing of accoun® halances, classes of
rangaciong and disclosyres, for example in determining sampele sizes Our performance mazenaliry was /5%

{2022 V5% of overall matenality, amouning o £7 5 mulion 2622 £7.8 million; for the group financial statements and
£6.2 muithon (2822: F6 2 mullion® for “he company financlal statemernts




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

In determining the performance mazenalty, we
considered a number of factors - the hustory of
misstatements risk assessmen: And agoregation risk
and the effectiveness of conirols - and concluded tha:
an amouns: a: the upper end of our normal range was
appropriaze.

We agreed with the Audit and Management Sngagement
Commitiee that we would report 1o them migs:atemeants
identufied dunng our audit above £508,000 (for items
audied using overall matenahty) and F64,00 (for items
audited using specific group matenality) (group audit)
(2022: £5.9.000 and £74.500) and £4° 3,000 (company

audit) (2022 £41.000) as well as misstatemeants below
those amounts thay, in our view. warranied reporing for
Q\]GIIT(]T]VP TEASOIS.

Reporting on Other Information

The otherimformanon compnses all of the informanion

in the Annual Refior: other than the financial statements
and our audiiors report thereon. The directors are
responsible for the other infornmanoen, Gur opinion on the
financial statemen:s does not cover the other informaton
and, accordingly, we do no: express an aadi opinion or,
excep: 1o the extent atherwise expherly stated mn this
report. any form of assurance thereon

nconnacaon with our aadit of the fiinancial statements,
our responsibility 12 ro read “he other informauon and,
mn doing so. consider whether the other informanon 1s
matenally inconsisten: with the financial statemenss

or odr knowledgs obtained i the audit, or otherwise
appears 10 be mazenally misstated. f wedennfy

an apparent maieral Inconsisiency or ma.eriat
misgtatemen:, we are required o perform procedures
o conclude whether there 1s a matenal misstatemen:
of the financial statements or a rmazenal misstatemen:
of the other informaton. [f based on the work we

have performed, we conclude that there is a mazenal
miggiarement of This other information. we are required
o repor’ that fact We have nothing 1o repors based on
‘hese responsibilines.

Writh raspec: t0 tha Group Strateqgic Report and Repor: of
the Jirectors, we qlso considerad whether the disclosures
requited by *he UL Companies Act 2006 have been
necluded.

3ased on our work underzaken in the course of the audi,
the Compames Act 2006 requires us also 1o repor: cerain
onlohnd andd naters as doescnlied below

Group Strategic report and Report of the Directors

1 our opimon, based on the work undertaken in the
course of the audit, the information given in the Group
Strateqgic Repor: and Repor: of the Directors for the year
ended 3! March 202315 consistent with the finangal
starernents and has been prepared in accordarnce with
applicable legal requairements.

n hght of the knowledge and understanding of the
group and company and their environmen: obtained in
the course of the audis, we did no: identify any mazenai
missratemen:s in the Group Strateqgic Repor: and Report
of the Directors.

Directors’ Remuneration

. our opunion, the par: of the Direciors’ Remuneranion
Repor: o be gudired has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Tushing fuales reqilire us 1o review the direclors’
starements in relaton 1o going concern, longer-term
vialzihty and “hat par: of the corporate governance
siaremen: relating to the company's comphance with

che provisions of the LY Corporate Governance Code
specified for cur review. Our addrional responsibilities
with respec: "o the corporate governance siatement as
other informasnon are descnbed in the Reporing on othar
informanon secaon of this repor:,
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Based on the work underaken as part of our audis, we
have concluded that each of the following elemen:s of the
corporaie governance statement 1s mazenally consisien:
with ‘he financal statements and our knowledge obaned
dunng :he audiz, and, excep: for the matiers reported

111 the section headed Matenal uncertainty related 1o
going concern’, we have nothing matenal 10 add or draw
atennon toin relanon to:

e The direcsors confirmanon tha: they have carned out
a robust agsessmen: of the emerging and prinaipal
nisks;

e The disclosures in the Annual Reporn that describe
‘hose principal nsks, what procedares are 1in place o
identify emerging nsks and an explanaion of how
these are being managed or mitigated:

e The direcrors’ gratemens 1n the financial staremenss
about whether ‘hey considered 1t appropriate to
adop? the going concern basis of accounting in
srepanng them, and their idennficanon of any
mazerial uncerramties ‘o the group's and company's
abihity o connnue o do so over a pened of ar least
—welve months from the date of approval of the
financal sTatements;

e the direcrors explananion as o their assessmen: of
the group's and company s prospects, the penod this
aszesgmen: covers and why ‘he penod 13 appropnate;
and

e The directiors statemen: as to whether ‘hey have a
reasonable expeciation that “he company will be able

o conunie in operanon and mee: 11s hatilinies as they

fall due over the period of 115 assessment, inclading
any related disclosures drawing atention o any
necessary qualificanions or assumpiions.

Our review of “he direciors’ statemen: regarding the
longer-sarm viabihizy of the group and company was
substannally less in gcope “han an auds and only
consisied of making ingquines and considenng the
dirsctors process supporing thetr slarement checking
cha: the sratemeant 12 1n alignmen” with “he relevan:
srovigions of the UK Corporate Governance Code,
and considening whether the staement 12 consigien:
with the financlal statements and our knowledge and
understanding of the group and company and their
environmen: ol:zained in the course of the gudi

In addmion, based on the work under:aken as par: of
our audlr, we have concluded that each of the following
elements of the corjporate governance $1aement 1s
maserally consistent with the financal sratements and
our knowledge obtained during the audit:

e The direciors statemens: that they consider the
Annual Report, taken as a whole, 1s fair, balanced
and understandable, and provides “he information
neceassary for the members 10 assess the group's and
company's position, performance, business model and
strateqgy:

e [he secton of the Annual Report that descnbes the
review of effectiveness of nsk management and
m:ernal control systems; and

e The seciion of the Annuaal Repor: descnbing the
work of the Audir and Managemen: fngagemern:
Committee.

We have nothung o report in respec: of our responsibihty
o repor when the direciors’ statement relaiung o the
company's comphance with the Code does no: properly
disclose a departure from a relevan: prowvision of the
Code specified under the Lisiing iles for review by the
auadirors,

Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements and the Audit

Responsibilities of the Direclors for the

Financial Statements

Az explatned more fully i the Statemen: of Jireciors’
Responsibiliaes, the direciors are responsiile for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance
wi'h the apphcable framework and for being sausfied
“hat they give a -rue and fair view The directors are also
responsible for such internal control as they determine
15 necessary o enable the preparaton of financial
suatements that are free from maenal misstatemens,
whether due o fraud or error.

‘'n preparing ‘he financial statemenss, the direciors are
responsible for assessing “he group's and the company's
abiliry o conunuae as a going concern. disclosing.

as apphicable, maters relasad o gong concern and
Jeing the going concern kasig of accountiing unless

“he directors sither intend o haqudare the grouap or “he
Ccompany or To cease operalons, or have no realisnc
alrernanve bus o do so



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obrain reasonable assuarance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
matenal missiatement, wheher due to fraud or error,

and to 155ue an auditors' report that inchudes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bu: s
nat a gquarantes that an audr conducted in accordance
with 18As (UX) wall always detect a matenal misstaremeant
when 1t ex1sts. Misstatemenss can arise from fraud or
error and are congiderad rmartenal if indiwvidaally or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o influence
‘he economic decigions of users taken on the basis of
‘hese financial statements.

irregulanties. mmcluding fraud, are instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulatons. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, owhined
above, 10 detec! material misgiaemen:s i1 respect of
rregualanies, including fraud, The exten: wo which our
procedures are capable of deecung irregulanies,
including fraud, 1s detalled below.

Based on our understanding of the group and ndustry.
wedentified that the principal nisks of non-comphance
with laws and regulanons related o comphance with

the Feal m3tate nvestmen: Trus: (R=ITi status fart 12 of

the Corporation Tax Act 2070 and the LX regulazory
principles, such as -hose governed by the Ttnancial
Conduct Authory, and we considered the extent to
which non-compliance right have a mazenal effect on
the finanaoal staterments. We also considered those laws
and regulations tha: have a direct impact on the iinancial
statemen:s such as the Compames Act 2006, We evaluated
managements incentves and opporaninies for fraudiulen:
manipualation of the finanoal statemen:s (ncluding the
nsk of overnde of controls), and determined that the
principal risks were relared o postung mappropriate
journal eniries to increase revende or reduce expendiiure,
and managemen: bias in accouniing esamates and
radgmental areas of the financial staremenss such as the
valuauon of Investmen: propernes, Audi procedures
performed by “he engagement team inchided:

& I5CUSSIONS with management inclading
consideration of known or suspecied insiances of
non-comphance with laws and regulauons and fraud,
and review of he repors made by managemens;

¢ Lnderstanding of manageme mnternal conirols
designed to preven: and detect irregularnties;

e Assessmen: of maters, if any, reporied to the Audic
and Management Zngagemen: Commirtes;

e Reviewing relevan: meeing mnuates, including
those of the doard of Directors and the Audir and
Managemen: zngagemen: Commitiee;

e Review of tax comphance with the imvaolvement of our
sax specialists in the audis:

«  Designing audit procedures o mconorate
anpredictalihty over the natare, iming and exten: of
OUrTesiIng of expenses

¢ Procedures relaung to the valuauen of investment
propertes descnbed in the related key audi: matter
abovoe, and

e denufying and esuing journal entnes, in pariacalar
any journal entnes posted with unusgual accoun:
combinalions and words.

There are inheren: hmitaueons in the audr: procedures
descnibed above We are less hkely (o hecome aware of
mns:iances of non-comphance with laws and regulations
that are not closely related 1o events and transacions
reflected in the finanaal statements. Also, the nsk of not
detecting a material misstaremens: due o fraud 1s higher
than the nisk of not derecuing one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve deliberare concealmen: by, for
example, forgery or irnennonal misrepresentanons, or
hrough collusion.

Our aadit tesiing mighs include testing complete
popualatons of ceriamn mransacuons and balances,
possibly using daza auditing technigues. Zowever, 11
wpically involves selecting a hmited number of ems for
tesing, rather than esing complete populaions. We will
ofien geek 0 .arget particular1zems for tesung kased on
“heir size or nisk characiens:ics. In other cases, we will
gse audi samphng to enabie us to draw a conclasion
abou: the populanon from which the sample is selecred.

A further descnpnon of our responsibiliies for the
aadi: of *he financial statementsas located on “he “RC’s
website au www.fre.org.uk/audiorsresponsibaiites. Thas
descrnipuon formeg par: of our audizors report

Use of this report

Thig report including “he opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapter $ of ?art '6 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpoese. We do not in giving
“hese opINons, accep: or assume responsibiliy for any
other purpose or 1o any other person to whom this repors:
13 shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where
expressty agreed by our pnor Consent i wWriting.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PL.C
Continued

Other Required Reporting

Companies Act 2006 Exception Reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion:

¢ we have not obtained all the information and
explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting reccrds have not been kept by
the company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

» the company financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report 1@ be audited are
not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility.

Appointinent

Following the recommendation of the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee, we were
appeinted by the members on 31 March 2017 to audit the

financial statements for the year ended 17 November 2016

and subsequent financial periods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is 7 years, covering the years
ended 17 November 2016 to 31 March 2023,

Other Matter

In due course, as required by the Financial Conduct
Authority Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule
4.114R, these financial statements will form part of the
ESEF-prepared annual financial report filed on the
National Storage Mechanism of the Financial Conduct
Authority in accordance with the ESEF Regulatory
Technical Standard (ESEF RTS’). This auditors’ report
provides no assurance over whether the annual financial
report will be prepared using the single electronic format
specified in the ESEF RTS.

S s 6A0Jd/f-:r;,

Saira Choudhry (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

28 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2023

For the

For the

year ended year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

R - o - . — - _ Mete EO0oD 0 £000

Revenue

Reral income 50 54.607 51.635
Less direc: propery expenses B B o B o 5.0 (19-112 B {978}
Net rental income 52,666 30,658
Directors’ remuneraiion 5.0 (211) (208)
Investmen: advisory fecs 80 (6.217) {6.132)
Genera: and adminisiranve exnanses 9.c (5,393) {3.909)
Total expenses (11.821) 19.247
Cnangg in fair val 150 2,640 12269
Operating profit 43,485 52.580
Finance income 1.0 148 7
Finance expense noe (15,335) (10,5C8)
Change in fair valic of interes: raze derivatives 21.0 (2,826) 2675
Profit before tax 25,472 414.754
Taxaidon 120 - -
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 25,472 44,754
I-:_arnings per share - basic and diluted N - ’ T30 . _Ep "’9%

Al amo.ns reporiedin the Conso idated Statement of Compronansive Income anove arise rom conin.ing 0neralons.

KT AND ACCOUNTS 20143

Tne noios on payges 84 w0 110 are an integra par of (nase conso.ddated inanaia. staemrenis,



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2023

NAEEOLE
Non-current assets
Tnvesimean: property

Draer recevapics

Current assets
Trade and otacr receivanles

Cash and cash eqaivalen:s

Total assels

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade and otner payan os

Non-current liabilities
Banx and i0an horrowings
Total liabilities
Total'héasils;els

Equity

Snarc capita.

Share premium reserve
Capna. reduclion rgserye

Reiained earnings

Total eqﬁity

Eét assets pér share — basié and diluted

31 March 2023
E0D0

Al March 2022

1\1(_)[(-_‘ _ Foon

15.0 953,364 945237

17.C 24.783 23.519

210 8129 2131
986,276 97,887

170 11,260 12.865

18.G 35,588 53,337
46,848 65202

1,033,124 1.037.089

188 (9,300) (3192
2o 7(361,915) (352.030)
_(B7T1215) _ (361542

661,909 575.347

720 6,225 5.225

230 292,626 297,520

240 317.714 322555

25.0 ) 45:344 ) 7%4.331
661909 673347

20 _10916p 119500

Taese consalidalad financral slaterrenis on pages 80 0 110 woere anproved by the Board of Direciors of Civilas Socia [To.using

PLC and authorised for iss.e and signed on 15 pena.d oy:

RPN

Michael Wrobel

Caairman and Independean: Non-Execulive Direcior
Z87.ne 2023

Company No' 10452528

Tae nowss on pages 84 .0 110 are an integra. par: of these consoudated financia. slaemenis.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2023

shaie
Shate premium

- T R

Balance at1 April 2021 - 6275 292.45%

Profit and tota. comprchensive income for “he year -

Shares reissued from treasury 230 153

Shares oowght nack inTo rcasury 24.5 -

Dividends paid 14.0 -

Balance at 31 March 2022 ) - ~ 6w 202526

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - -

Shares reissued from reasury 230 - -

Snares 0OLgAT DACK INIOQ Teasury 210G - -

Dividends paid 140 - -

Balance at 31 March 2023 6225 292,626

Capital
reducuon
eserve
£000

331140

484
{9.259)

322355

(4.651)

317.714

TAC s on cages 84 10 11T are an inegra par of macse consoadaed nanca siaenrants

Retaimned
earnings
£000

43.870
447534

(34.093)

25472

(34.459)

Toral
ity
£'000

573498

44754

547
(9.259)
(34693)

275547

25,472

(4.651)
(34,459)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Profi: for tne year before taxation

- Change in fair value of investment proper:ies
Cnange in fair value of interest rate denvaives

- Rens and incentive straiga: ane ad’usiments
Bad dent expensef{credis)

Finance income

Finance expcnse

Increase in _ease incentve receivaocle

Decrease/(increasc) in rrade and oiner receivao.es

(Decrcasel/ingrease in rade and oiner payab.cs

Cash genera{ed from operations

Inicres: received

Net cash flow generéted from operating activities

Investing activities

Improvements and purchascs of invesimen: properiies
Acquisizion cos:s

Puronage ol subsidiary - including propery

Sale proceeds on sale of sunsiaiary  exc..ding propeny

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Financing activities

Cos: of grares coLgn: INLO rcas.ry
Proceeds from snaras reigsued from ireasary
Dinidends paud 1o equity snareholders
Tnieres: rae denvauve gremicn pad
Procoeds from (1o disposa’ of ineres: rate denvauves
Ban«< norrowings advanced

Bans< oorrowings repaid

Ban< norrowing issue costs paid

Net cash flow used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note

5.0

18.0

For the

yeat ended

H March 2024
£'000

25472
(2,640)
2.826

436
428
(148)
15,335
(1,700)
1.044
{1,725)

39,329

148

39,477

(4,679)
210

(4,890)

(4.651)
(34,576)
(8,841)
17
70,875
{60,000)
(3,148)
(12,012)
(52.336)

(17,749)
53.337

180 35588

For the

yeal ended
31 March 2022
‘Restated
£000

44.754
(12.259)
12.675)

397
{17)

7

10,608
{2,011
(236)

e
23

—

39.09

=) o

39102

(27.695)
{1.640
(13539

140199

{53,760)
107.097
53.337

= Cashand cash equivalents and monies hekd n restneied accounts and deposiis have been restated as at 31 March 2022 tollowing clantcanen by ITRIC on

clagsihieaton ot funds with 2xternally imposed esirchons Please refer 1o details in note 24

The notes on pages &1 0 115 are an integral part of these consolidated finanaal statements,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

PR

A A R S SEARRRT
Cliviias Social Housing PI.C (Che "Company’) was incorgorazed in Engiand and Wales Lnder ine Companics ACt 2006 as a puinic
company amited by snares on 29 Seprember 2015 with company number 10482528 .nder the narme Civitas RLIT PLC. whicn was '

subsequently cnanged 0 e exisung name on 3 Octoper 2016

THe address of 1he registered office is 5ih F.oor 65 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7NG. The Company is regisierad as an
mves men: company nder seciion 833 of the Companies Act 2064 in Eng.and and Wales and is domici:ed in the United Kingdom.

qc Company did not pegin trading nti; 18 November 2815 waen tne snares were admitted o trading on the London 570¢<
Cxchange (LSE™

The Company's Ordinary shares are admited 1o the Officia’ List of tne Financia. Condoct Autnority ("FCA”) and raded on
wne LSE

The principa. aciivily of the Company and iis s.osidiaries ((he "Grouo’) is "o provide shareno.ders wiin an atlraciive leve!l of
income. ;ogeiner witn tne potenial {or capital growtn from investing in a portfaiio of social nomes.

Thin ol e r
~ae financia. s:atemenss have oeen prepared in accordance witn UK-adopied interna:iona acco.iniing siandards and with

ine requirements of e Companies Act 2006 as applicaole 1o companies reporing wnder 1noge slandards,

Tae Crowp's conso.idaed financial statemenis nave peen prepared on a historical cost basis. as maoditied tor the Grouo's
nvesimen: properiics and derivative financial instir.men's al lair val.e “hrougn profit or .oss

P R O S TR

The linancia. informaion is presenied in Pounds Sweriing wiich is a.so e tunctional corrency al e Crowp. and al valucs are
ro.nded 7o ne neares: “no.sand poands (FC008). cxcopt waere oinsrwise indicaed.

o cinng s en :

12 Gro.o oeneflss from a sccure income sream from .ong ieases wiin tne Apporoved Froviders Tae Growd's cash 0a ances as
a3l Marcn 2023 were 33588000, ol walan £2.949.000 was ne d as resiricied cash. Deotaiis of s can oe found in noe 18 G,

™he Company and its Invesimen: Adviser, Civiias Invesimeon: Managemen: lumied ("CIM™ conin.c 1o wors c.ogely witn e
Company’s major COLNRIHarics "o moniior (g position on e grownd and, snow.d it oe needed. 1o ofisr assigtance and
godance where cossin.e Tac Board of Direciors neacves tha) e Company operaes a rob.s and delensive business maodao.
and :ha: socia. nowsing and specia.is: nea. ncare are proving 1o pe some of 1ne morc resiiient seclors v B
tna: iney are nased on non-dlgerelionary 0o c secior expendiiure and thatdemand sxceeds s.on.y

el

On 12 Fepruary _ne Company cioscd a new live year erm deos faciity of £70875.000 wirn Deulsene Ban< AG. Tne taciaty
1as oeen dep.oyed (o redeerr ‘nc Company's revo ving credit facility witn L.oyds Bang o.c of £60.030.0C00 as we.. as providing
addiiona. aguidicy As aresu.. now a.. deot fagiies nave fixed or capoped rales

On | Decemper 2072, ne Company signed a faciliy wiin an inglizoiona. .ender. S.osequan: (o this. on 21 June 2023, 1ae
Company recerved credll approved terms for an addinona. £51 S mion fixed fachivy nased on a 3-year SOKIA rate at the
2Gen T SLOeCT o

da‘e of draw down +189500¢ margin win a mai.riy daie of 3 Aug.s: 2025 Tne eventoa. drawdown on tae laci iy ig
cerain standard <.osing condilions

Cas tow lorecasis nasced on SQVere 0.t p.aLsio.e downside scenarios 1ave oeen run.in varic..ar :oc financia performancs
of 'enan:s and a red Lcion in contracsed rent As a: 31 Maran 2023 a6 ren: wou d nave 0 dron oy aporoximatc.y 16Y oefore
any ol s oan covenans are orcacned. A Jhicdate of aporova. ot - ac Comopany nas sufficient acadroomr wiinin iy
financia. .oan covenans ~ne Company a.so oenefis fron a secure nconr e siream from eases wiin .ong weign'aed average
Lnexoired lerm eases As a ros. L cne Direciors peleve 1na: e Crownis we . paced o manage ns financing and oiner
N.SINess rs<s and tha ne Cro.p Wi remain viao.e conin.ing 1o operate and mee: iis Japliaes as ey la. due

The Company's arlic.es of assoclaniion inc wde a requiremenst [or 1ae Board o proonse an ordinary reso Llon al iad ann.d.
genara mregling fo owing ae fiftn anniversary trom e inia. puole offaring of (e Company for iac Company 'o coninae
in 1"s corren: torm e Conunsanon Reso.Ltion; 7oy vole was passed in Seniemoer 2077 s e Company Wi, conun ;e iy

o .siness as oresen: y consiit.ied and wl. olopose 1ne same reso.Llion ar can ACM n Septemper 2027 and every fifinannaa.
Jensra meeung nerealer




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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On 9 May 2023. an announcerran: was made “o the market for an all-cash offer of Crvitas Social [lousing PLC {CSII) trom
Weliness Unny Limited, & wholy owned indirec: subsgidiary of CK Assels Ho.dings Limited {CKA). The offer became
wncondiiional on 23 Junc 2025, I'ne Groups existing commited debi taciities contain a standard change of contro: cladse
whica has now bean riggered die o the offer becoming uncenditional. Tais could resull in the existing commitied

dept [aciities being withdrawn. Furinermaore, the Direciors do no: have visibuity of 1ac pos: compledion funding for the

Groap and Company a: s tlime The Directors note ine detai’ed ntentions stazemen: inciuded witin me annogncament

on 9 May 2023 wnicn siaies that CKA does not envisage making any changos 10 1ac managemen: icam nor any disrapiion

o any counlerpariies or to e wnderying enants. However the conditions oulined aoove indicate a mataria. .naertaimty
which may cas: sigmiican: douort upon (e Croup's and Comrpany's apility 1o conlin.ae as a going concern The Independent
Audiorg Repor: inclided withun tne Anndal Report and Accou.nts for the year ended 31 Marcnh 2023 also high'ighss tus mazerial
Lncertainty, Tnerefore, notwithstanding the material uncertainty arising from ne offer from CKA, the Directors are satisfled tha:
e going concern basis remains appreopnaic for (he preparation of fe financia’ siatements. The linancia. siazements do not
e ude the adusiments tha: wou'!d reswit if tne Grodp and the Company were wnable Lo coninue as d goimng concern.

B S A TP R B ENTE I VIR S N SRR

PR EAF LI AT PN

“he fo lowing new standards are now etfective and have been adopred for the year ended 31 March 2073,

¢ IFRIC Agenda Item: Foliowing ¢ arification by IFRIC on :he classification of monies neld in resinicted accounis. monies

are restriched by .se only are ¢.agsiiied at 31 Maren 2023 as Casn and casn eg.lvalenis’ As detaied in noie 24, the
comrparative pa.ances have been restated where appacae.e o relect this change in ¢.assilication.

e IFRIC Agenda Item: In Oc:ober 2072, the IFRIC iss.ed an agenda decision in respec of ‘Lessor torgiveness of leasc
paymen:s (IFRS 9 and IFRS 15) (e IFRIC Decision on Concessions’) This conc..dad 1nai iossag incurred on graning
rerrospecive ren: concegsions should be charged 10 110 Income staiemern: on the dale tnat ne gga. righis 1o income arg
conceded (e imnrediate recogninon in {40 ratiter nan smoothed over the fe of the casc). The caaritication nas not 1ad a
mascria. impac: on the financia staemen:s

* Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’ (clicclive {or periods neginning on oratier 1 January 2022)  gives
o arilication on e recognition of contingen: Jabilities at acguisrion and c_arifics (na: contingen: assels show.d not oe
recognised at tne acqusiion dae. The amendments nave nnot nad a signihican: IImpac: on {1c preparaion of ine tinanaia:
stacmen's

e Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ «cliccuve lor periods oceglnning on or
atier 1 Jan.ary 2022)  gives c.arificalon on cosis (o inc.ude Incsumating ne cos: of fu fining a contract tor (ne purpose of

1= oneroas The amrendnienis nave not had a significant impact on 1ne areparaaon of the

aSS(?SRihg waciaer i
firrancial siaiements

¢ Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ (affcciive for periods acginning on or at:er 1 January 2022) - gives
cLarification on e feeg an ontiny e Ldes wiien asseseing wheiner the terms of a now or modificd linanaia, iam.ily are
saosianda.ly differen: from the crms of e origina’ ‘laorty The amendmeants have no: nad a significant impact on the
oreparaion of the financa. statemrents

atoniract

In Marcn 2022 the IFRS Interpretations Commizee (TFRIC Y finalised a decision on the c.agsification ol monies neld in resiicted
accoun:g guch that monies '1a are regiric.ed oy s8¢ only, are ¢.assified a7 31 Marcn 2023 as Casn and casn equivalens'

Tae Graup ao.ds restricted cash for tenant deposits and retention monics in relation o defarred payments gL ect
acnhicvermren: of cerlain condizions, oiqer retenions and casa segregaed o fund repalr ntamenanes and e arovemen. waorss

10 oring e properiies up o satisfaciory standards [or tne Growp and 11e lenants.

Asares.. of the IFRIC decision. tae Groop nas revisited s poacy and incluades mnese monies witin e classificalion casn
and casn eguaivalents . Tac ad;asimen: das noirpac: on coc ¢ assilication of tne net assels of the Group on tho Slaiemen:

of Financia Position, sowever (e MoveIrents on 1ese gaiances are now reporied in ine 3atemrent ol Casaf.ows and

con parative ligures nave been resiated.

Comparative lIg.res for casn and casn equwva.ens aave increased oy D4.362.000 (31 Maran 1 F3.278 00 Ts qas

edin an inerease o e conodaranve ligare tor casa generaed ronm: opcrations oy £1,612.000 concerning movenien:'s

res.ai
on depost: palances and an ncrcasc o e ne! casa f ow Lsedn inve
FCIONON Mmonles

ang activiies of FH29 GO0 concerning movemaen:s on

Tae Group aas no: oresenied revised na ance sheets as a1 Aopric 2021 witain the financla. slarements inacceordance with IAS 1
Presemtadion of Financia Saemens and [AS 8 Accounung Polcics, Changes in Acco.ning Fsamates and Rrrors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The following table shows the impact of these adjustments in the prior year:

31 March 2022

3 Match 2022 Restatement Restated
e £ 000 £ 000 000
Group cash flow statement (extract)
Nct cash flow generaied from operating ac 37.489 1.613 39.1C2
Me cash fow aged in invesung activizies (39.570) (529} (40.198)
Casn and casa equiva.ents ac e siar: of the year 153813 3278 157.097
Cagn and cash cquaivaienss at ;e cnd of the year 48.975 4.352 33.337
Nao dec se in cash and cash equivalents (54.844) 1.084 (55.730)
P T R B E T R IR S PSR R R U6 P05 RS SIS A NER AT ISP ST TS SIS PR AR S LN A AU TS PR bt £ i el

The foi owing are new siandards. inierpreainons and amendments. waica are not yor effective and Have no! neen ear.y
adopted in 1nis financia! informaton. thal wi. or may nave an cffces on tac Group's future linanoa. stalemenis:

e Amendments to 1AS 12 ‘Income Taxes' (¢ffcctive for periods beginning on or aber 1Janwary 2043)  c.arily 10w Companies
accownt for deferred tax on iransacuons saon as eases and decommissioning on igalions Tag amendmeans are nol
expeciad 10 nave a signiflicant impac: on e preparation of the financia siatemen:s.

¢« Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (¢ffective [or periods neginning on or after 1 Jan.ary
7023 - are intended ¢ e p entities in deciding waicn accouning po icl c.ose in (err financial statements The
amendmen:s are no: expecied 0 nave a sigruficant impact on the preparation of the financia. staiomen

o s

s Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ (cficoive tor periods
peginning on or al:ar 1 Janaary 2G23)  inroduce (ne definilion ol an accowning esimacc and inc.ude other amendmen's
o e p ennies distinguish changaes in accouning csumates from changes in accowniing ooiicles The amendments are
no: cxoccied o nave a signiflicant umpac: on D orenaraton of the tinancia staements

« Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (cficcive for ocrieds ooginning on or at:er 1 Jan.ary 20240
- glarify That daniitics arc classificd as eitner curren: or non-carrent. depending on tne rignis (na: exis: a: e ond of e
reporing period and not expecianons of or aciua cvonts atier ihe reponing date Toe amendrrents aiso give clanfication
0 ne definiaon of setiemen: of @ Jani ity. Tne amendmroents are no! exoecied 1o have a signitican: impac: on e
oreparadion of he inancia’ ements

Wt
IFRS 8 Cpcrating Segmen:s req.ires ooerading segmren:s 'o oe idenified on tne pasis of internac financia: rcoors anouwl
componen:s of tne Group tnal are rego.ary reviewoed oy e Chief Operanng De Y8 case 18

de egaied (o e Inves.men: Adviser who nas formed an Execulive Teant. in ordor 10 a. 0ocale reso.Lrees 1o e segmenig and w
eir perforntanae

P Segtn

10N Max<er, whlen in e Gro.

ASROES

ave Team conain financla nfornration ata Crowo

s conained in tese reporis and ¢ amounts reparied

Taginerna. mancia. repors recerved oy ne lnvesimen: Adviser's Lxe
IV as a wno @ and nere are oD reconol 1ing [Lems neiwean
in Tnc consolldated financial stacmen

Tae Direcors consider one Grouo's propeny oorto 1o represents aeren: and diversificd poridfo.io wiia simlar economic
ZNAaraciensics and. as a rosill 1c wWhao e pordolio of pDroperios rooresents a sing.e ooerating segment Inne view of ine
Direciors tnere is according.y one reporiap.e segmen: wnder e provisions of [FR3 8

A of Tae Gro.sp's gropcriies arc nased in thc JK Geogragaica. information s nrovided (o ens.are compilance win ne
diversiticaion requirements of Tie Company. GI0er AN T1iE DO geograsnlca grouoing 1s containad inany of fienterna.
financia. repor:s orovidad (o o Invesimen: Adviser Llve Team and. tnerciore. no geograpalcal segmienia. ana.ysis s
requared oy [FR3S 8

Tac Direciors note s regaarcmenes in JFRS 8 Paragraon 34 peraining o enaies wndar common coniro. and conhirm na:
no Awccand Home So..ons and Quaaas [fousing (as .ossces of e Company s invesinen: rea. esale) are wnder common
zoniro. of Tace 3ocia Housing Famiyy CIC TEHFY The oerceniage and s.m toa. of 1nc Comepany s ann.a conraced rent ro

ocralning o nesc cownierparies as if tney were considered ‘o pe a sing.e cusiomer can o fo.nd in naie 28.0 and on oaga 9
ol ne Ann.a. Renor



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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et ey et e i ale e e At i

Inhe a’)Dncalmn of 1ne Groups accouaniing policies. which are descrined in note 4.0, the Directors are required 1o make
cadgemens, estimates and assLmptions anout the carrying amoun:s ot asscis and .1abriues (na: arc not readl’'y apparen:
from other sources. Tne Judgements, estimates and associated assumpuons that have a significan: ris< of cavging a maeria.
ad Jdsimen: 1o e carrying amounts of asscis and llaniltics wiinin Lne tinancla) year are oullined Deiow:

R O L At AT R NS S TR TS B

The Group Leas tne valuation carried our by its independen: valuer as the fair va..e of its nroperty portfolio The valuation s
based Jpon assumplions inc.uding tulture rental income and the agppropnate discoun: rate. The valucrs aiso make relerence
marke: cvidence of transaction prices for similar properies Furtherinformation is provided in note 15.0.

The Group's propertics have vecn indepcenden: y valued oy Tones Lang LaSatie Limited ("JLI” or the "Val.er’) in accordance
win the curren: Roya. insuiution of Chartered Surveyors Vaiuation  Glooal Standards. incorporaing the TVS. and the RICS
YVa.Jdadion  Global S.andards 2017 UK national sspolement ((he RICE "Red Beoo«”). JLL is a well rocogniscd professtonal tirm
witnin gogia. howsing va..ation and has s.afficien: current loca. and nationa: know!cdgce of Doth socia: housing genera 'y and
Speciaist Suopored Housing (SSH™ and nas 1ae skivs and undersltanding 1o undertake the valdatlions compeientiy.

Wir respec: w0 Tne Crouap's conso idared financial statemen:s, invesimant properies are valaed al their fair va. ae a2 each
pa.ance sheo: date in accordance with IFRS 12, Fair val.ic moeasuremeanis shou.d be presented and c.assified using a fair valace
Aalerarchy that ret ecte the significance of tac inpuis used in 21e measurements. according o e o iowing eve.s

Level 1 Inad wsted. groted prices lor ideni assets and aoii: les in active (tyolca iy guoted) mar<ets.

Level 2 Inpute other than q_lotﬂd orices included within Leve: 1:hat are observanle for lne asse: or 1abil Ty, eitaer direc v
[ER i‘; as prices) or mdlre y (tha: 18, dorlved from orices).

Level 3 Inp.s for the asse: or 1abi l[‘/ tha- are noi pased on opservan ¢ marke! daa {unobservaole inpuig) Va e is the
Direciors’ nes: estimate. pased on advice from re.cvant (naw"‘dg(‘ao o cxperts. sc of recognised valuaion
ochnigues and a deerminasion of walch assumpiions shou.d ne appiled in va.omng sJcn asses and wim
var ]\ L arfocus on the specific atrinuies ol the invesinan:s tnemsaives,

Chivent the bespoge natare of each of 1ne CGrowo's invesiments, (¢ paricu..ar requircmen.s of due diligencae and linancia.
connpLion oplaimed from the vendars logeiner wit e recent energonse of 3317, a0 of tae Grouos inves'men: properiies
arc inal.ded in Leve 3

B . IR B [

. B T T L FTRE TEF IR

Tactair va e of Gro.p's interes: raw derivauves 18 recorded In e Growp Statement of Financia! Position and s deierminad
DY 1€ TCSPECIIVE Counterparrios. The cownierparies use a numoer ot assumptions in dezermining the fair va_.cs. inc.uding

eglimatons aver future interes rateg and fuiure casa f.ows using oonscrvap e yvic d curves

:1 : (‘}"":', 1"!(1"\-”'5» B TS ST TSI, S F ¥ AER T TA Y

The Gro.p acg dires suomdlarles At own Investment properies. At i time ol acagaisidion, e Group considers waether cach
c]('.qulhlllt)ﬂ ropresents e acquisrion ol a nposiness or the acquisition of an asset, Managemeaen: considers (ne substance of the
aggais and acliviies of e dacgaired antivy in deiermining wnener 7o acquisinon represents tne acgudsiion of a business

e Grodn acco.Wns for an acgasition as a buasiness compoinaion where an integraed sct of activities is acquired in addizion
10 the oroperty Where such acquisitions arc not | udged o ne the acgaisition of a ousiness. iney are no: ;reated as 0JAsiness
comoinaidons Rather the onst o acguire the cornoratc entity is 4. ocated petween ne dentitiapie asse:s and Jaolitics of (e
enity pased J4pon thelr relative lalr va:-ues al e acquisiuon dae According 'y, no goodwi! or addidiona: deferred tax arises.
Thers were no corporate acquisivions made in the year

During tac provious vear the Group eniored inio aransacion o acdgaire the freeho.d propearies operated py CPI Care Limitad
Joon tae acqaisinon of thg contpany: e properies were transferred o oinar group comoanies and (ae company dacg alred.
a ong with i's associated operations, was soid (o Lnvivo Corand.am Bidco Limited. Furiner detalls arc shown in note 184 10 qe
financia siaioments

The acquired comopanics me: (e definiiion of a pusiness ander IFRS 3 and (n¢ ransaciion was [nerefarc recorded as a

OLSINess ComoImailon

craase tie Grour acgalred Tne comoany wiia A inien 1o se  ne ouginess, nranagemen: ago.oed 1he saor-cut mathod
Lnder [FR3 5 suosidiaries acquired win a view o resa.c. Jndor this menod, ine suosidiary is recorded ac fair va...e (€8s ¢oss
(080 L and Iere 1S N regairemens o tair va. e e seosidiary’s indrad aq. assets and Laol ites
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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T'\c CT\JLJU nas acquired invesimen: proner:ies fha[ are sudject 1o CoMMmercia. property ledses with Approverd Providers. The
Crowp has determined, cased on an eva..a'ion of the :orms and condiiions of (ne arrangemn:en:s, paricuiany the dql'd.l\)]'l
of thc ease terms and mininuim lease paymen:s. tha it retains al he significant ris<s and rewards of ownersaio of tnese

propcrzles and so accounts for the leases as opera‘ing :cascs

\”- { PEERE Y SR

Civilas Sog¢ial Hodsmg PLC is a Rea! Estate Invesimen: Trus: (REIT) Tne UK REIT regume ano.ics wWaen eniiilces mee. cer:ain
condillons with the effec: tnat the mcome Droil s and caplia. gains 92f the qualllying property renta. business are exemp: from
:ax, Within inese conditions a: .cas: 9C% o ¢ Group's progery income musi e disirinuted as dividends 1o snarehoiders and
tne Grolp mos: ensure that i1e property renal busm §S Tepresents more than 75% of tozal profits and assets.

Fo_.owing me comp.etion of thc offer, there1s a eve: of uncertam:y 1nat the Group wik. remain in the REIT regime.

S Suavioan o ot s :
e PINCIpa. accoLning po.icles apo. lF"i m
00HTIKS nave bean cons

TN IOty [y L

e preparailon of he consoadated linancia: g1alements are se 0.l oglow. The
LT1.E58 OINErWISe sfaed.

Tl B w0l L as e, T

Tne consoddated inancia. staemon:s comonse (ac financial informatoan of ne Grouo as a: ine year cnd date.

Soosidiarics are a0 enides over wmeh the Group nas coniro. The Growp controls an encity when ihc Gro.p is exposed o

or has rignis 1o, variablc returns from 1is Invo veman: win e cnily and nas the aoliy o aflect those retarns througn s
power 1o direct e activines of 110 cniiiy. AL INira-growp ransaclions. pa.ances. INcome and expansos are eliminated on
conso.idaton. The financia. informanon of fne supsidiaries is incuded In the conso.uadated linancial siaements from (ne date
1Al SOnro. commencss ani, e ddae thal coniro. ceasces,

If an equity mreresiin a suosidiary is rransierrsd ©ut a conToling mieres continues o oo ned ater tnac ransiar iaen e ,
anange in qwncrs.ﬂp interes: 1g accoun:ed for as an eq.ity Transacion. !

Acco.nung po.cies of tne sapsidiancs are consisien: wiin ne po.icies adoved ny e Company

mch men: “mofr'y wnlen is propery nod (o earn renia.s and/or for capia. aporeciatuon. is inldaly measarcd a1 cost oeing
e fair va.ae of ing constderation given, incLding expaendit.re tna is direcly atirin.lan.e o0 ne acqguisinon of Tne mvesimen:
aropaery. Afler inila recognition  Invesimen: proocriy 1s siaed at s tarr vas.e al tne na.ance saso date Gains and ogses
arising from cnanges in the lair va, .¢ of invesimen: oropery are inc..daed in proll or oss for ine penod i whaicn tney ars
ne Conso idaed Staiemen: ot Comprenanstve [ncome

Swnsequon expendizare 1s capitalised on v wnen it 18 provap.c al luiure economic penefitg are assoclazed wita e expendis
Ongoing repalrs and main:enancs are expensed as inc.amred. Cverieads and operaiing @xpenses are no: capiaised

An invesimen: properyy 1s derecogrused J00n disoasa. O WEN [N INVesIMen: Orogeariy 1s permanen: y witndrawn from ise
and no f.iure economic nanefl’s are expecied from (1o disposa Any galn or 0ss arising on dorccognition of e orooeny
{ca.c. acd as ine differenace ootween (0o ne: disposa Droceeds and ¢ carrying amo.un: of 11 assen s incurred in profic or
L3851 1NE DONOG N WIS e ISRy 1§ derccognise

Significant accooning _adgements, esiumates and ass.mropions made tor 1nc va waduon of Invesimeaen oroperies are dise .
n noe 3.l

T e e

Leases are coassified ag inance .eases wienever (N [07mMs o1 11e ease ransfor s.osiania.y a. e ns<s and rewards of
OWNCIENIR L0 g .essen A DINer 2ases are ¢ assihied as aperalng (eas

Tac Company ras delarmined nat v rolams as iac signitican: nis<sg and rewards of ownorsaio of tne oroperiies and accouns
for ne contracis as opcrating .cascs as discassed in netc 34

Proceries cased ol .ndcer operaling .cases areinc..daed ininvesinmen: proger:y in e Consaolidated Statemren: of Financia.
Fosiion Renia income from oporanng £asesis recogniscd o6 a s:raligas ang nasis over (e tarnt of 1ae re £van: sases.

Lease inceniive coss are recognised as an asso and amorised over tan 1fe of “1e ease
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The Group classifics s financial assews in (ne following measuremen: cacgories:

& TN0SC 10 be measured subsequenly al lair val.e (ehler Jaro.gn other comproiensive income or tnrougn orofit or .oss) and
e hosc o oc measurcd a. amorused cost.

The classification depends on lhe entily’s nusiess mode. lor managing the financia. asse.s and e contrac aal .enms
ol ine cash [ows For asseis measured at fair value. gains and losses wi.. either pe recorded 1n profit or.oss or oner
Tomorehensive income.

Trade and qiner recervan.es are amounis due in the ordinary coursc of business. If collechion is expecied in one year or less,
they are classificd as curren: assess. If not. ey are presenied as non-<aIrent asscts

Trade receivap.cs are recognised initialy at tair va .e and subsequently are measured a amorised cos: using ne effecnve
inerest meined, less impalrment orovision The Growp no'ds the trade recowablos wit e ob aclive 10 co.lect the conraciaal
casa lows.

.

The Cronp's financial assets are gibject o ne expected cradis loss model

For irade receivan.es, the Group applics the simplificd aporoacn permitied oy [FRS 9 whicn requires cxpecied lifetimre .osses
10 oe rceagnised from iniital recognition of the recevanies,

The expeced Loss raies are pased on thic payman: profi.es of lease income over a penod of .o 10 12 montns pefore 31 Maran
2023 or 1 April 2022, respaciive vy, and (e corresponding misiorica. credit osses experienced wiinin tus period. The Q1siorica.
ioss rates are adjLsted o reflect carrent and torward-iooking informaton on macrocconomic taciors afleciing the saolity

of e lenarms o setlle the recelvable Such forward- oo<ing inlormaion would inc.ader changes in sconomiae regllaiory.
recano. ngical and environmensa. factors (such as indusiry outioo<. GDP employmen: and po incs) exierna mar<e! indica:ors:
and ‘enan: basc

Rased on 1ne assessnren: and ne specific worg 71at 1s underway around co ection of aged arrcars. a provision of

7459.000 {2G22% F239.000) 1as oeen retected in the annual res. s
Trade receivanies are wrien olf wnen there is no rcasonap ¢ expecialion ol recovery

Indicazors Dha: inere is no reasonab.c expociaion ol recovery include, among oLICrs. 1A aropact 1y ol Insa.vency or
sigmificant inanacia. ditfic. les of the deotar Impaired debts are derecogiused when ey arc assesscd as wneol eclin e

o N v b H
Casn and casn equiva.enig ine .de cagn in nand., casn held oy lawyers and iguidiny lunds with a term of no morae than hree
nonias that are readily converih:e 10 a <nown amoun: ol casn and whicn are suo;cct o an insigniticant risk of changes in va.Jc

Resricied casn represents amoun:s ne.d for specilic commimen:s, tenan: deposits and reention money held oy _awyers in
re_anon to deferred paymen:s sdoicc: 10 acnevement of ceriain condizions. other ratentions and casn segregated to fund
repair. mainenance and IMprovemant Words t0 bring 1n¢ oroperies .o o satsfaciory standards {or ine Grouo and the lenants

Denvalive linancia Isiremenis, wiich comprise ineres: ra:e cans and swaps for aedging purposes, arc inlia. y recognised
atlair va e a: acg.isiion and are suoseguenty measured at fair va..e. neing the esiimaied amonn: ! o Group wo.id
receive or nay o gel or transter e agreemens: at e period end dale, ta<ing Into account CLITONI INTOTES! MAe SXDesa lions
and "ae curren: oredi’ rating of tae lender and s counterparies The INSIrLmen: may ne an asse! ora labuity The galn or .oss
a:each fair va..e remeassremen; dase is recognised in e Groap's Consoldated S:atemen: of Comprenensive Income.

Derivaiive inancia instrements are darecognised wnen the righis (o receive cash Hows Tom C1e agreement nave exoired
or nave osen ransferred. and the Groop has wansferred soostantia y a  tae risks and rewards of ownersnip e ditterence
naween tho carrying antoun: and consideration recewved is rocognised as a gain or .oss n e Croups Consoadated
Saemren: of Comeprenensive Income

THe Gro.wD W568 valLalion e nig.ecs 04l are appropriaie in tac crcumrsiances and tor walen sofficiont data is avaiao e
o measure fair va.se maximising e Lse ol re evan: coservao.e inpus and minimising e wse of dnooscrvan.c ing
significan: o e far valuc mcas.urenen: as a wno e.

Oer tian denvalive tinancta. insiraments waicn are no: designa:ed as aedging insir.maen:s, e Growo does noi nave any
assets ae d ftor rading nor doss tove.anzarty classify any financia’ asse's as ocing atfair va Jde  aro.gn orohi or .oss
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

[T UL P S PN IS RERTAEN

The Growp recognises a financa) daoiity when it firs: becomes a party 1o :a¢ contractual righs and aodgasions in the ¢contrac:

A . financia. .dabi.itdes are initial .y recognised a: tair va..e minus (n ne case of a tinanca. daoniily inatis no:
rough orofit or (oss) sransaction cosis tna: are directly atrib.aable o iss.ing the tinancia. Jani'ity. Finanala

supseq.enty measared ar amordised cos. unless The Group ooted to measure a 1ability art fair value through profit or loss.

A financiai .iaoiiy i8 derccognised wnen the ob igation wnderhe iaoility is disenarged, cance..ed or expires.

Foov e a0 ey Lol

Trade and oiner payap.es are c.assilied as current lapilities if gayment is due wiinin one year or less. If not. they are presened
as non-cuarren: Jiapiities. Trade and olner pavanies are recognisad initialy at ineir fair vai.e and supsegquently measured at
amorised cos: until seit.ed The lair value ol a non-interest bearing liani.ty is i.s disco.nled repayment amroun:. If ine due
date of the llanility is less (han one year. discoaniing is omited

Al pan< and otner porrowings are inidia..y recognised at lair va.ue .ess direct.y alrib.an.e transaciion cogs Afller inrial
recogniion. a. banxk and oiner porrowings are measured a; amortised cogl using (he effeciive interes: method Any
atribulabe rransaction cosig re.aling 1o 1ne issue of 1ne bank borrowings are amortised taorough e Groun's Statemen: of
Comorenensive Income over (he life of 1ne deb: instiriment on a straigh:-ine oasis.

Borrowimngs arc removed fromr The consolidated statement of inancial positon wien (e ooigation specificd in the contract
is discharged, cancaied or expired The difference octween tho carrying amoun: of a linancta. dabi ity ©a: 1as neen
dnguisned and che consideration paid is recognised in profic or .oss as a finance cos:

;..‘ !)f ten

a pressn: obdgaiion (egal or consiracuve) as a res.alt of @ past event it is
at oo igaion and a re tac.e esiintale can oe ntade of the amoun: ot ine

Provisions are recognised when ne Group 1as
vprooab e nal the Growp wil i be required o sett
ooigation.

The aimoun: recognised as a provision is [ne nes: estimate of (e consideranon reqgaired (0 seile 0 prosan: ob tgation al e

salance sneeldae aking inio aceo.an: e risks and ancerainties serrounding e onliganon

o
Taxalion on e orofil or oss {or the peried not exem»! wnder JK REIT regu.anons is comprised of aurrent and deferred tax. Tax
is rezognised in mne Consoadated Satement of Comprehensive Income excep: [0 e ex:en: (hat il re.aes o 1:emrs recognised
as a direct moveniern: in eq.liy. In walch case 10 1s recogged as a direct moveman: in eqguity Corrent tax 1s expecied lax
vayap.c on any non-RLIT taxab.e income for the penod. wsing Tax rates enacied or suoslanive y enacied al 11e pa.ance snae:
daie. and any ad;.usiumen: 10 1ax vayanie mn respec: of previoss penods

Tre curren. lax cnarge 1s ca cw ated on profiis ansing in ine period and in accordance wil .egis.anon waic nas nesn

enacied or s.oslania. y enacied ad (ne pa.ance sneel dae

Deferred 1ax iz nrovided on temoorary differences ociwoen Tne Carrying amo.n:s of asscis and aoicies for financial
FEooring narposes and (e amo.an:s Lsed for axation n.rneses. The amo.n: of deterred tax that is provided 15 nased on
ne exeoscied manner ol raa isation or s oran: of Do Carrving amo ns ot assais and 1aolines, Lsing lax racs cnaciad ar
s.Loslanilve. ©0a anace od

LR S L ST P B PP PR

The Gro.0's oo acives waen managing caplia. are 1o sateg.aard e Groulrs ant iy 10 CONinGe as a going concern in order 1o
oronde re”.ms for snarcho.ders and o mainialn an opima. Japlia. sr.ciare o reduce e cost of capral

Capita. asses comorize e fo. . owing

31March 2023 31 March 2022

£'000 £000
Prococds from t1eisswc of Ordinary shares and rezained carnings 661,509
Bans and .oan norrowings 361.915
Total 1,023,824 1,




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The Direclors may wse geanng o enhance cquily ret.ms. The evel of borrowing wil ne on a oruden: basis for the assct c.ass
and wil’ seek 10 achiove a .ow ool of bunds, walst main:aining e [exinility in the wnderiying security requiremants and the

gir.oiure ot e Croop.

The Group may, foillowing a decision of tne Board. ratse debt from nanks and/or the capiia. marg<es and 1he agygregale
porrowings of the GroLo will always pe supject 'o an ahso.ule maximum, calculated at ine tume of drawdown, of pelow 10% of

e Gross Asscl Va.ue on a Luly invested basis,

[T B R ey g S e R A IE LK SA T TN N

Dividends are inc.uded in e financial statements in tne year in wica they are paid.

P Mt vl i

Ren:a. income from invesimen: property is recogrmsed on a siraight-1ne pasis over ine term of ongoing .eascs and is shown
gross of any JK mncome tax. Lease incontives are spread even.y over the .easc term Losscs incurred on granting retrospective
rent concessions are charged o the Income statement on 1e date bat e egai righss o mcome are concadad {Le Immediale
congnition in full rather tnan smoathed over the ifc of tne ease).

Insirance rechargas and olasr sirmi’ar receip:s are recognised under IFRS 13 Revenue trom contrac:s with cusiomers’, and are
included in net rental and propeoriy income gross of the related costs as the Direciors consider the Gro.p acis as principal in
his rospect.

B T (RN RS TS

Finance income is rccognisad as interest, and is accrucd on casn and cash eq.iva.en: baiances nc.d by ne Groun

H L
Finance cos:s consis: of interes: and oither costs inad e Group incurs in coennecion wiia bans and other oormrowings. Bank
ineres: and pang cnarges are recognised on an aceruals pasis Borrowing rransaction cosig are amortised asing 1ne effective

inerest rae.

A. expenses. inciuding Investment Advisory fees, are recognised in tne Consolidated Statenten: of Comorchensive Income on
an accr.d s nd

SUING O reacg Iring cquliy Insirdments {oer thahn in a ousingss combpinaion) are accouited for as a dedaation

Tie cosis ol s
from equity

PRI B L A FIREE R

Exceprional iemrs relate (o amounts which do no nornma iy occ.r in ing norma. course of businass

Fxcepiona. protessiona. cosis for two major orojecis nave peen disc.osed scparate.y. These re’ale 10 €088 associaed with tne
offer tor the pairchase of 1an enlire share caplita. of the Company oy a suosidiary ot CK Asser [foldings Limited (CKA} and cosis
associaied wiln a planned bond iss.e wnico was posooned

L R R L T
The cogls, including directy anripnlan.e ransacions costs. of purchasing e Comrpany’s own snares (o oe ne.d inreasury
are ded.cied trom eqalty and e ¢osts arc snown 1n e Consolidaied Statcmen: of Changes in Equity. Consideraion
eceived. nel of lransaciion coss, for the resa.c of tnese gnares 1s 4.0 Inc.aded in equily. Whi si the Company no.ds shareg in
Toas.ary. s e fa ¢.ations for nel asgel va..e and carnings per shara are adj.sted o exellde these ghares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

el 3, it
For the For the
year ended year ended
31March 2023 31March 2022
o o R . £'000 R L0000
Rental income from invesimen: proper:y 53,531 51.038
Ron: siraigns line ad asimoen:s 586 529
Lease incentive amonisation 1,022) 1926)
Recnargeabie coss received 1,512 995
Rental income 54,607 51.635

Less direct property expenses

Insurance and service cnarge cos:s (1.512) (995}
Bad debt (42%) 17
Direct i)roperty expenses o o T (1,941) B (9785
Net rental income - T 52666 50558

Recnargeap.c cos's received represent msurance and service charge cos:s pald by (ie Growp and recnarged 10 ne
Approved Providers and are acco.nied for .nder [FRS 15 Revan.c from Conirac:s wiin cusiomers’

As por the gase agreements wita ¢ Gro.p and Approved Providers the Approved Providers are responsio e for (e
ement of a nresen: and lut.re raies. faxes and o ner Imnositions pavao e in respec: ol e proocry, As aresu’t no [uriaer
direc: prooery expenses were inc.rred.

sell

For the lrar the

year ended year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- e o e _ . £ 000 £000
Directors’ facs 194 196
Emmp.oyers Nanona. Ins.arance Conirio.iions 17 15
Total 21

Tae Diraciors are rem Lnerated for fcir services in accordance wiin tne Rem wneration Poacy winch S018 parameiers wiinin
wiicn Dirccrors remroneraiion may o 2.7 e Rentuneration Porcy is aoproved oy snarcho dars.

Disc os .res required oy tae Campanies Ac: 2005 on Direciors’ rem .. neration. ine wding sa.4ri€s. snare oplions, pension
conirio.ions and nension entit.emen: and nose specilied oy e Listing R...os of 1ac Finanaia. Conduct Aunority areinc.uded
an aages 54 10 57 in e Remr L neration Bepor: and form par: of 11ese Financial statemen's

T PR

L nirotner man e Direciors

Tac Crouo had na s dorng e year



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Advisc_)f-y fee

Fzribre

year ended
31 March 2023
E'D00

6,206

Diskruirsemen:s
Total

Iue Dy

year ended
31 March 2022
£ oo

Civitas Inves'ment Managemeni Lintited ("CIM™) is the appoin:ed Inves:ment Adviser of the Company. Jnder e current

[nvesimen: Managemen: Agreemren
case based upon t

e Advisory Fec shal. be an amoun: calcuiated inrespect of cach quarter in each
e Not Asset Val.e mosl recenty annodnced o the marker a tha re evani tire {(as ad;usied for issucs or

reparchases of snares in the period between :he date ot suen annoancement and ‘he date of the re’evant ca culaion), on e

forowing nasis:

a) onnal par: of tng Net Asse: Valie .p 10 and inzluding £250.000.0CC. an amoun: oquat 0 1% of suen par: of the Ne: Asset Valuc:

b) ontha:par: of the Ne: Asse: Value over £2530.000.000 and up 0 and incliding FS0G.CC000C. an amount ecqual 10 09% ol such

part ol the Net Asset Va_ae:

€) ontha: part ol ine Net Asser Va.uce over £506,6000.000 and ap 1o and inclading £1.06C.C0C C0T, an amo.n! eqaal o 0.8% of

such par: of tne Nat Asse: Va.ue:
d) oniat par of e

The apooiniment of the [nvesimaen: Adviser sha!
oner notess than 12 maonths wren notce. suan notiee not 1o expre earder man 36 May 2025

Loga and orofegsiona. fees

Excepiiona. professiona. coss
Administration fecs
Cons..cancy fces
Aadi fees

Anoriave coss
Va..alon fees
Deposnary foos
Cranis and donalons
[nsurance

Markcling
Ragueatory lees

Sandry expenscs

For the

yeat ended
31 March 2023
£'000

1250

1816
1,044
143
441
48
96

7

63
97

Total i

Aporiive cosis reprosen: ogal and orolossiona lee
pronosad gaare I1ss.wes Inal were considered 04Ut 5.03Q(].LaN

vy anoried.

rer Asser Val.c over SL.OCC.CCO000. an amoun: equa. to 0.7% of such part ol 1ne Net Asser Va.ue,

conzdinae in force aniess and wnul terminated oy eliner pary giving (o e

tor the

yoar ended
31 Maich 2022
[ALET]

1439

1.037
135
340
195
100

s incurred Inreation 1o ac acgLisivon of invesimoen! propersies and

Genera! and adminisirative cxpenses for “he carrent year coniain cxceptional prolegsiona. cons ol FLEIS.00C 2022 TN Those

COSlS 0erialn [0 two siraeqic oroe
cne offer for tne purcnase of the cnure snare caplia. of ¢
PRZ22.000 (2022: FINL) associated w a panned oond 88uc whicn was oosiponed.

ne Company nds neen eva..ding and o orise of M.284000 (2022- Fnil) associated wit
ne Company ny a suosidiary o CK Asse Tio dings Timbed (CKA) and

19100 SV.LIALD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

e RIS ANIN EYRFTY RS S YIS PRI SN T4 SA B STL FRIRTEAP A Y i

e Group nhas oblained the following services from 1nae Group's auditors and their associates:

Forthe For the
year ended year ended
3lMarch 2023 31 March 2022
: . __toos . oEoan
Fees payable to the Group’s auditors and their associates for auditing financial statements:
Audiz of the Group's financial statements? 358 29

Total fees payable for audit services 358

Fees payable to the Group’s auditors and their associates for other services:

ALdit re_ated services - review of thc half year financia: statemens 83 44
Oiher sorvices® - 5,
Total fees payable to the Group’s auditors and their associates 441 43

1 Includes £64 000 (2022 £18.000) cosm reiatlon @ the previous year audin
2 This armount was recognised within excepnonal legal and protessional costs in the year ended 31 March 2022

s ¥ LY 3 e
ror the For the
wear ended vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
L £'000 . E£'O0i
nterest and dividends recerved on ig.idliy Lands 148 4
Banx interest reccivad - 3
Total 148 7
: 7( ‘I ;,'Vf" ATt
For the For the
year ended yeat ended
31March 2025 31 March 2022
L £000 _ £'0au
Banx cnarges 8 5]
Interes: naid and oayaon.c on ban< oorrowings and derivaives 12,151 8937
Amorisation ol .odan iss.e costs 1,869 1653
Cos:s of cary repaymen: of deoz 127
Loan securn:y tees 36 42
Total 15,335 12,638

o Telale

D.nng e year :ne Loyds Bank p.¢ £30.000.000 revo.ving crodi faciny was repaid Cosis of cary repaymen of depling Lde
nreax< cosis and the write off of tae remmaining snarrorised oan iss.e ¢os's

HIRE B S

Az a JKREIT ~o from corporation tax on e proteg and gams rom s 9roperTy INFCSIen T S ASIness.
provided It mees ceriain conduions as set oot in wie JERLIT reg. anons. For tne curren: year ended 31 Marcn 2523 2he Groap
did not nave any non-g..a.fying orofins and according .y aarc 15 no tax oharge in oae year If tnere were any non-quatying
orofis and gains. inese wo.L.d 0g s.p.eCt 12 Corooration lax.

e GroLo s

Deforred tax nas no: ocen recognised on tenporary differences re’ainng 1o e proogertyy renta. nusiness. Mo d
nas geen recogrused in respec: of tne wnailised resid.a. curmen: year 0sses as 1L s nol anticpaied (nal safticien: resid
orofins wi.. oe generaedin e f re In ineeven: tna: Civias oropery oonfsio was o oesod ad va .aion. any gamns
reaised on otaxalnon n e JK Cenera vy disposa.s oy @ REIT of assets aeld for 1ne puropose
of a progery ronia. pL8INcss gnoL.d oc cxXemy: from UK corporation ax. ”
wiialn e Crvrias propoery pordfono meet (ac condiaons for as acd as par: of L Rronery renia nuLsin

corporation taz on disnosa. A Qropery oo lowas .o oesoda va Lanon, ne Dl

Lo diIsoosa s may o |93

ac hreciors do no! g 1eve Laa any arogeries

ording. ot ine Civic

no (.'()T_C)C')r{-)ﬁi()ﬂ Ax laory wn.danseon na.sae




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Fo ‘owing :ne completion of the ofter. there is a ceve' of uncertainty that the Group will remain in the REIT regime

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 March 2023 31 Match 2022

. . e S o £'000 _ E'U!Jll
Coroporation tax cnarge for the year -
Total -

The tax chargs for the vear is iess than the standard rae of corporation tax in tne JK of 19%. The differences are oxplainad below.

Fot the Fot the
year ended yeat ended
3lMarch 2023 31 March 2022
- _ . e £000 £non
Group
Prolit pefora taxation 25,472 44.754
UK corporation tax rale 19% 19%
Tneorerica ax a: JK corporaiion ax raie 4,840 8503
Lifccts of:
Cnange in va.ue of exempt invesimen: groper.ies (502) 12,531
Exempot REIT incomea {6.019) (5.598)
Amoun:s notdadaclibee 1or lax purooeses 1,081 (230)
Uniindsed residoal Cutent yoar lax .osses 600 655
Total ' S -

4 deferred tax asgse: of £2.877.000 (2022: 71.258,000), ca.cuiated wsing nc loracoming tax raze of 23%, has no® haen recognised in
resnec: of the Lnuiiised residua. currens year .0sses as i is not aniacipaed that sufiicien: residua. profits will oc generated in

Ll

Tme grandard raie of corporalon ax s current y 19% The
1 Apri 2023

sandard rate of corporaion tax increased 0 25% with offec: from

REI™ exemo: incore inc.udes property rena. Income (ad is exen:o: from JK Corporation Tax in accordance with Par: 12 of
Corporaton Tax Aa. 2010

D L SR ST S SR SR}

Larnings per snare (EPST anroonis are cacdlaed by dividing protit lor ine year atrioatan.o o Ordinary equtly nolders of the
Company by the weighied average namosr of Ordinary snarcs m 1ss.c during .he year.

7l

he calc._auon of basic and di. sied earnmings per snarc 15 bascd on the tol.owing:

For the Fon the

year ended vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
. o o L . . o o 75[1[1[1 f.0on

Calculation of earnings per share
cel profiz atroutabie o Ordinary snarcao dars 7CA0) 25472 44734
Weignted average nomoer ot Ordinary shares (exc:uding snarcs ao.d in ireas.ry) 608,552,681 518797942
Earnings per share — basic and diluted 4 1Sp 7.23D

L2074 SLNNOHDV ANV LHO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Dividend of 1 28750 for e 3 roning 0 3 Marca 2022
(1350¢p 3 months w0 31 Maren 202D

Dividend «f 1.4250p tor ine 3 mon:as o 30 June 2022
(13875p 3 mon:ins 10 30 June 2021)

Diwvidend of 142500 lor e 3 months o 30 Septemaear 2022
(138750 3 monias 1o 30 Seplember 2071

Dividend of 142500 tor tne 3 months ‘o 31 December 2022
(1.3875p 3 mon:hs o 31 Decomper 2021)

Forthe For the

yedr ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£00_ Faoo

8,474 8403
8,703 8.637
8.641 £353

8,641 8498

| 34459 34093

On 9 May 2023, tne Commpany announced a dividend o1 1425 gence per snare in respact of tne period 1 January 20623 o 31 Maren
2023 ona.ing £8.541.000. Tae dividond paymen: was made on 9 June 2023 o shareno.ders on the redgisier as a: 19 May 2023. The
financia: siatemenss do no: retec: this dividend. Tae dividend was pald as a REIT property income disiriosion (CPIDY)

Fot the Tor the

year ended year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

- _ _ _ - _ £'00u ,7’29“”

Ba.anae a: pegmmning of year 968,756 915589
Proocry acg. siions 543 33166

[ orovements Jo invesinien: properies 4944 5.818
1,264 tait

2.640 12269

Leasc incentives and ren” siraign .ine ad .sumen:s recognised
Cnange in fair va.ac

978.147 RN
(24,783) (2351

953364  9432%7

Vi..e advised oy e DIOOCY va, Lers

Lesg ease incentive asse
Total

Imorovemenss 1o invesimen: oroneries inc. .des capia. expendiiare incurred of £128.000 (2022 £14.0 of climaie

change iniatives

D.nng tne oroviows year tac Crowp acg.aired a proverty no.ding conoany rom lereva Properies Limved wnlen ne.d
assels totaing F8.AN1.C0C These are inc.udad wiiain Propery Acg.isiiions in ine notc aonove Hereva Froperiies limited is
a s.osichary of Spcciaas: Hea ncare Oopcrazions lamiied CSHOM Andrew Dawner and Tom Pridmors (potn direciors of 1ne
[nvesimen: Adviscr. arc 1439% snareno.dors in SHC Tasy are not directors ot SHO. and have no oneraliona. roc in iat
0.8iness SHO does not mee: nedetintion of a re ated pary cnder TA3 24

g e

In accordanas w1 TAS A Invosimen: Prooery’ [NC nves men: oroporsy nas noeen indonendsnty va ued a: famr va..e oy JLL.
an accrediied exicrna. va. .or wita recognised and re.evan: orofessiona. g.a iheations and recen. expernence of ae ocaion
and catcgory ol 212 INVesiran: proosny 0CINg va..ed, [lowever, t1e va. Latlons arc t1e L umale responsionity ol e Dircaiors.

=

TLL va .ed ng Ciwitas 3ocia. Hoosing PLC oroonery porfoio on e oasis of cacny indiwvidaa. prooary and 102 inoorsica. sa.o of
118 Dropcries WIlaoul (¢ oenel: of any coroorale wrapoer a1 £978147.000 as at 31 Maran 2025 /2022 73a8.735.000)

TLL qas orovided va. aton seraces w0 e Company wiin regards (o ne oroperies donng tac year JLI nas orovided addriona.
JAL.ation ser/Ices on 1ne acguaisiion ofinvesimen: oroperty oy (ne Contoany donng gy ae Direciors 1ave ens.ared

At JLL nas approoriate proced W J28 1IN D.Ace (0 engLre cre are no independaence confaa e services orovided 1o e
Corroany. 'n re aton 0 a0 year snded 31 Maren 2 Cme progorion of 1nz ola {res pavan.e oy e Comoeany @0 JLLs o tes
INCOe wWas 088 1aan 5% and 1s erefors mwiara, Addiiona.y JLL 1as a rolalion 9ody 1IN0 0 ate WSS oY T 1E SIINairTs an
I8 ya. Lauons roaic alar seven yoars




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Wiin tne exception of the acqusition detared in note 16 G, al. corporate acguisitions during the year and 1ne comparative year
nave peen reated as asset purchases rather than business combinatons becaJse fol.owing review of ine IFRS 3 concentralion
toni thew are consdidered (o b acguisiivns ul properdoy taner an Dusnesses (note 555

“he fojowing tadle provides (he lair vaiLe measdarement hierarcay tor invesimen: property:

Quoted prices i Significant Significant

active markels observabte unobservable

Total (Level 1) inputs {Level 2)  inputs {Leve| 3)
£000 £000 E'000 £'000

Investment properties measured at fair value:

31 Maran 2073 953,364 - lm - CEREES

31 Marchn 2C22 9452357 - 945.237

here have been no transfers peiween Tevel 1and Level 2 during any ot e years, nor have there been any ransfcrs betwocen

Level 2 and Lave. 3 d.ring any of the years.

The valuanons nave peen prepared in accordance wita the RICS Valuation  Professional Standards (incorporating the
Iniernationa. Va.sation Standards) oy JLL. one of e ieading professiona: lirms engaged in the social housing $ector.

As noted pravious'y al. of the Croup's Investmen:s are reporied as Leve' 3 in accordance wiin [FRS 13 whers inp s are not
pased on opsorvania market data and e va'uc is nased upon advice from ro.ovant <now.edgeanic oXpors.

In als instance, (na determinacion of inc fair va.Je of Invesmen: nroperty requires an cxamination ol 1ne specific merits of
eacn progeriy that are in urn considered periinen: to the vaiuation.

e incoude

i) ineregaaled 2ocial houssing scoor and demand for the faciities oftered by eacn 3501 propeny owned by the Cro.p:

ii) ne paricu.ar siraciure of Tae Crouo's transaciions whaere vendors. ak inslr own @xpense. moel thae ma oLy of ine
refurpisament cos:s of caca provery and ceriain purchase ¢osis

iii) detated tinancia, ana.yss with disCouan: raes supporiang e carrying va..e of 2acn property:

iv) a bl repainng and mms.nng jcase witn ann.a. indexation oased on CPEor CPI+1%.

The following descrintions and dethinitions reiaiing o va.uaiion ecanig.cs and <ey Jnonservap.e inpas nhade in délermining

tair va .es are as fol.ows

R N R S O N N P L

Fair va..e is delined as the orice (qat wond be recerved 1o se . an asse: or paid o ranster a daolily in an order’y ransariion
DCIWECON Marke: Darricipants a: 11e measaremen: dae (1L, an oxit price)

The valuation methodoogy ased by tne va Lers fouows (e income approach. Tals approact considers (e renial income
CLTen’ Iy payab el the next Lplift d.c on halincome on review: 1ac i<ednhood of @ coniluanon o tnal renta. Income. witn
grow.n in accordance wita tne eases - over A0 ramraining rerms: and ihen a ong-erm reversion which considers 1nc 1xe v
aolliy of :ne propories (o conlnug 0 genarate ren: Nrowgh sapporied howsing occuodilon, as distinc: from a reversion 1o
VACAT DOSEession va. ue.

Rigks are involved in bota asscssing tne val.e of ine imdexcd renta income over e remaimimng terms of the eases and ina so
predicung (nar income will condnue oeyond ine end of 1ne exising .eases Tms s a na'anced _udgmen. wnicn can oroper.y
oo rcf ecind in e exi yvieid agpied o he fina. years income and in e averall return 2o a parchassar

Aporooriale laxdailon cd.Cca.auons are adopied for every property gased on Ls valae and on the assampuon of 1ae 5a.¢ of
e oroperty assels dirce! y as opposad 1o $nares of a subsidiary company nolding e property and nave considered the
mdrvidaal cnaracicrisics of e properies.

Therg are 'wo maln Jnonservan.s INp.LIe mal doermine ne lar va e of e Graup's invesimen: propaory:

D Thorae ol 2% per annum has peen wsod for CPover (ng torm of tne senes propertes eascs 10 ne with inc Bans of
Eng.and's ong-arm inflation targets lor CPL I shou d oe noted mat al izases benalil from eitner CPLor CPHTindexalion

i) Tnecdiscouniraie app.icd o e renia fows
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Key factors in determining The discount rates appiied include
property owned by ne Group. cosis of acquisiion and relurbisnmen: of eacn property. (ne anticipated future underlying casn
f.ows for ca wropoery. bencamrar<ing of cacn undertying ren: for eacn oroperty (passing rend), impact of olimarte change. and
tne facl 1nar all of the oroveries wittun [ne GroLp's poridolio have tne penclit ot {1l repairing and insuring .eases eniered in:o
oy an Approved Provider.

ne regu.ated social nousing secior and demand for cacn SSH

Ag al ine pa.ance shee: dale, (ac lcase lengins witnin tho Grocp's porilo.do ranged from an effeciive 14 years 10 35 years (2022
15 years o 35 years) with a waighied average unexpired icase term of 215 years (2022 22 1. T1e greater the eng:n of ihe icase.
then. all otier Meires peing egwd.. (Ne greaer -ne va..e of ihe property.

Sl

i Ot e

b

e hienl ol sagmOoant gealiney gty o
As sel o within significan: acco.anting esdmares a: 31 anove Tne Group's properny Investimen! vaiuation Is open (o inaercn:

uneertainues in the inpuis tna: deermine tair va.ue. Managemen: nas re-considersed the sensilivity ranges and widened them
for the curren: year as a resu.: of macrocConommlc sncenainty. As a resull, "he lo.owing sensitiviiy analysis nas peen prepared

R I PR S YT S EPEN PON L NS B RS

The average discoun: rate used ny tne valsarin ine Group's property Porifolio Va'.ation is £.38% {2622: 5 5%) In seiing Tne
discoun: rates adowied In ae va.ualon. (ne va.uers have considered mar<s: standard and anticipated ret.ms o sct a
pencnmark for e porifolio as a who e Tney nave then considered the various characieristics of tne individua. proper:ies in
order to ad; a3 those rates for eacn property. JLL wil. £eep yie.ds, and nerefore discount raes. wnder rog. ar reviow.

Tne range of discountraies wsed oy e valier in tae Grouo's property Porifodo Va wauen is from 4.6% 10 11 7% (2C22: 4.6%

0 11.53%) In assessing e range of discount ¢ wva Ler considers the lizey netin vie'd wilon wold'd oc sosgh: by tne
mnvesimeant mar<e: and bulde addidona. discoun:s o refioct added rise into 1ac discouni rate of tae orm and, in gsomre ¢ases.
the discoun: rate for ihe reversion. For examp.e, wnore arger renia growtn is a..owed daring the .ease. an addiiona: discoan:
iz bultinio e reversion peca.wse of (ac greater risg of a fa.. m ine rent atl ine and of tno .case.

Simary addirional disco.unts arc considercd wnere properies arc in e oroc
considercd waere residentia. care assets are funded by nack-io-nack eases wit

35 of peing re-purposed and premiams are
n care providers,

TAC W@ e De.OW 1 LSTralos the cnange o ne valie of invesirant properies if 1ne discoant rat
Va 40N €A Cu AUoNS are cnanged

and CPl Lsed for the poritoao

10% 10 F10% 10
discounrrate discouns rate t0 5% CP) 0 5% in Pl
000 ££000 £.00g £ ong

71,929 (62.507) 56.676 (52.583)

31 Maren 202 73955 (51,020 38.13¢ (53.815
L5 D mitimat an i

31 March 2023 31 March 2o2?

L - R [ - - R . - . R Eoue gong

-Istion of sLosidhary companies (nc .ding intercompany .oan! - 7559

AL LSLION TOSTS _ 755

Transicr 1o invesimen: oroperTy - 11429

Sa.e oroceeds — {7.535)
Total i - | T ’ N o -

P.nng tac oreviows yoar e Crowo entered 1In0o a iransacion 1o acg.uirg (o freeno d orooeries operated oy CFIl Care Limied
Uoon tne acgaisiuon of Doe companies tor 13339000 o1 .s Tansacion cosis, e nrogerilos were ransfarrsd Into omnar gro.n
comedanies and (ac comoany acgaired. a. ong waita 138 assoclated overaions. was so.d o Envivo Corundorm Bideo Limied tor
772595000 Rnvivo Cor.nd.m Bideo Limiied 18 a suosidiary of Specia 1s: Healincare Operations Limiied C3HOD Andrew Dawoer
and Tom Pridmore (oo direciors of (e Inves n: Advis are 14.99% snaraao ders in SHO Thasy are not dirc rs of SHO,
and nave no ooneratnona, o.e SHGO does nolmeel (ne definnion of a re ated pary Znder [AS 24
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M arch NPT LAY R T B /i k]

_— - - _ _gos0  Fuou
Amounts falling due in less than one year
Trade receivabies 6.676 1,950
Less provision for impairment ot trade receivables (459) (239)
Accraed income 3.313 4987
Prepaymenis and oher rocevanics 1,730 3152
Total . o ) . o i Eﬁ - 12.865

Prepaymen:s and otaer regetvan.e amodnts Inclade prepaid egal and protessional fces of Ci (20220 [34.000) that nave been
incurred in connecuon with acguisitions yve! 1o be como.eied and £285.000 (2022: £1.046.000) in respect of ongoing worss on
‘ne proyerty pordolio

Acorued ineorme e Ates mAaInLy 0 rent accriaed for the year ot not ve: demandad.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

£000 oo
Amounts fal_li_ng due after mdfe than one fear ) S o
Sraight line ad;..simonss 2,639 20353
lease incenlives 22.144 21466
Total o S a T za783 3510

The aged ana_ysis of rade receivaoics was as {o__ows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

o N o £000 o0
Debtors past due
Curren: 2,518 1777
= 30 days 862 355
30-50 days 275 105
» 60 days 3,021 2723
o - S 6.676 4960
Debtors past due i -
Less provigion for impairmon: (459) (239)
Total - ' o ' 6,217 1721
Tne Direciors consider (ae tair va_oe of receivaples cguals tneir carrying amo.an:
Ciner catcgornes witain ‘rade and othar receivabies do no! inciade nmmpaired asse:s.
The provision tor impairment movenren. was as fo..ows:
B - ’ o - ) For tnsn’ - For the
year ended year ended
M March 2022 31 March _2022
. o L . . £oug £oun
Ba.ance a oeginning of year 239 FASES)
Imgalrmen: provision made 306 1c9
Aro.un: recovered (67) {126}
Amounts wrisen olt (19)
Balance at end of year 459 239
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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RS TR Bt -

o - o T i o i 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£ 000 £ 000

Casn ned oyrf:so ici:ors S S i 64 376
Ligu.idity funds 15,636 15,489
Casn e d ar bank 16.939 38.110
‘;}nres:m:ted cash and cash eqg.ivalents - T T - 32;6;559 48.9757
Resmrcied casn 2.949 4362
Totaa - B 35588 5@3?7

Lig aidity funds refor o moncy piaced in money mar<er funds These are highy (hguld funds wit accessioiiilty within 24 nours
and sun ect o ngignificant rig< of changesin vai.ae

Casn he.d by soiciiors is money heid in escrow tor expenses exgecied 10 be incarred in roation © inves maent nroperiies
pending completion. Thess funds are avallap.e immediae.y on demand

Resricied casn represents amown:s nad for specific comnritments, tenan: deposite and retention money held in re.aton

‘o deterred paymen:is subect (o achigvemen: of ceriain conditiions, other reteniions and casn segregated 1o find repair.
mainienanace and inTproventen: works 1o oring 21e properies oo 1o satusfaciory standards for jne Group and e lenanis

" Eoofar et st

T T 31 March

31 Match 2023 (Re-stated®)

R o . guud_ £.000

Deferred income 761 860

Acq.isition cosls aceraed 600 950

Finance costs 3,688 1.840

Dividend witano.ding tax oayan.e 940 15057
Accruas and oiner crediiors 773
Tonan: doposits 2,538

Total - 7 ezan

Acquisidion cosis acorsed a'so inc.de moenies retained atine pomns of acgasiion 1o oe paid at a
12022 £252.000)

cerdae t0ta. 1ng F383.000
* Compdlatves have been restaled o cortect the analygis of £1890 000 of 1enant deposits which had previously been included 1n arscquisiiion costs aaeryed

2D RBave and o
Ban«< oorrowings are secJrad oy gnargas over individ.a invesintent oroperies ae.d py ceriain asse-no.ding suosidiaries. 7o
pans<s a.so ao.d cnarges ovar e saarcs of cerrain swosidiaries and any intermediary so.ding companies of 1nac sLosidiaries.
ANy assoclaed {265 1 arranging (1< nan< o0rrowings Jnamorised as a:
2 faci ey ag AN iﬂ T an.e 020w

[R B SLE A A Y e

ac year end arc olls

gains: amro.nis drawn on

For the: For the

year ended year ended
31 Match 2023 31 March 2022

o _ . . e _ oo £ Noa £ N0

Bans oorrowings drawn a: siar of vear 357,050 3537.055

Ban< oorrowings advanced 70.875

Ban< norrowings repaid {60,000}

Bang¢ oorrowings drawn a: end of year 267,925 357.050

Jnamor:scd cos's a: g:ar of year (5.000) 49
Tess 0aniss.o cosig Iincarred (3,.544) $1.753)
Add Loan 1ss.e cosig amrorised wpon repayment of oan< oan 665 -
Add can 13s.e costs amorisanon 1.869 1.853
Tnim )r;E(:fi "Jssa énd of year S ' T (6.010) ’ -{-S_G

Atend of year ' i S 361,915




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Lean Balance®  Loan Balance! Loan Principal  Loan Proncipal
31March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 202X 31 March 2022

£'000 . l:‘lﬁ!llﬂr £iann £'000
Malurity of bank borrowings S T - o
Repavab.e within 1 year - -
Repdyap.e petween 1ia 2 years 59,600 158.746 60,000 160.0C0
Repayap.c porween 710 § years 302,315 59,365 307,925 650,000
Repayab.e atter 3 years - 133,939 - 137.05C
Total S = T 7 361915 352050 367925  357.05C

1 Loan balance net of unamortised cosrs

The Group has oeen vary 1o e fol.owing loan tacility agreements in the year:

Loan Principal

Facility £ 00y Expiry Dare Interest rate
éummary of Bo:z;;wag;-s_ T - T T
Scotush Widows Limited 10-year faoiity Term loan 52.500 02/11/2027 2.9936% tixed
Lioyds Bank o o Revo.ving credis faciny - SONTA + 167%
Dedische Bank AG Loan Noes 70875 03/C2/20z8 5.69% tixed
H3BC Ban< pic Rewvo ving credit fagiliy 100.0C0 281142025 SONTA + 2.15%
Natonal Wesiminsier Bans Plc 5-year faciiy Revo ving aredi: faciity 6C.000 14/08/2024 SONIA + 2.00%-
ME&G Invesimen: Management Limied 7-year faciiy Torm loan 84550  21/02/2038 3137 fixed

367,925

Barrowings are secured on investmeni properties to the value:

31 March 2023 F1March 2022

£'HIG
Seotish Widows Limited 10-year faci iy orincipa: £52.500.00C 173.510 175777
Deuiscne Bank AC Loan Nowes onincipa. £70.875.000 168,610
[13BC Ban< o ¢ taciliy drincipal T10G.000.000 231116 222745
Nationa: Westminsier Ban< P o S-year faciiy ornincipal £60.000.000 137,827 135530
ME&G Invesimen: Managemen: Limied 7-year fariiiy snnelpa. £84.550.000 o 230,279 - 230{;77
ALBL March 2623, tne Grogp I8 in contn.iance wiia all covenan:s
The covenants in p.ace gnder tqe tive agreemen:s are summarised 1n the taoe ocow
- - T Hls(oruz;l and projected ;emsl cover Loan to Va\ul—j{dtlo
Loan: T -
Scotisn Widows Limited i0-year laciiy A lcast 3257 M.is: noi exceed A0%
Delisene Bank AG Toan Noles AL oas 175% Mus: not exceed 30%
H5BC Ban< p'o facly AL eas: 750% Mus: no excecd 50%
Nazdona. Westiminsier Bang P ¢ S-year faciay Allcas: 250% M.s: not exceed 50%
ME&G Investmen: Managemeaen: Limriiad 7-year faciity AL weas 2B0% M.s: not exceed 557

1 Interest tate caps have been purchased w cap imtatest costs on this lacility as pen detals i notes 210 and 313
4 Dixedl by way of an interest rate swap as detarled in note 210

<
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=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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200 Inierenioate e Uaivae

Tne Group nas entered inio an interest rate swap wih Na:Wesr Marke:s in order 1o midigare ine risk of changes in interes: ra:es
on is ‘'van with Naiona” Westmins:er Ban< Pic under whicn £80 miaon is currenty drawn, 7heae swap has a notiona. va..e of
£

650.000,000 and fixes inieres: at 2.50% (ncluding (ac 2% margin on ine nans .oank
D.urng the year. the Group nas cntered Into three new INTeres: rate cap arrangemensts for a 1ota’ cog: of {8.841,0CC

AL IMieras: rate cap tnat capped the FAC.COC.00T Luoyds Ban p ¢ tachiy a: 3.92% {including the 1.57% margin on the loan
lacility) for :ne penod Irom 15 Sepember 2022 10 20 February 2023, Tais arrangenmen: was soid upon tne repayment of ine .oan
with procecds of £17.000.

An Interest raze cap Tha: capped the SONIA Interes: ratc on (e {1GCAOCC.CC0 HEBC Bank ple faciaty a: 2.60% for ine period trom
21 Septomper 2022 10 17 April 2023,

An inieres: rate cap ‘ransaction o mitigate e risk of 1ne SONIA interest rate exceeding 2457 p.a. on the principa. of
F150.000.00C FISBC Ban« p.c faciity for the period from 17 Apri 2023 10 28 Novemoer 2025, ThIS insirumant COVers "ne remaining
rernm of tne revo ving credn faciliny with HSBC Banx pic and iis ex:ansion (o Novemoer 2025,

For the ror e
year ended vear cnded
31 March 2023 A1 March 2022
. o . L - . o _ . E'UEJ/07 o o0
Interest rate derivative assets/(liabilities)
AT star: of year 2,131 {511)
[Nierest rae cap PremILrs pald 8,841
Disposa. proceeds a7 -
Realised os2 on disposa’ {187)
Change in fair va .o d.uring ne year (2,639) 2073
At end of year 8,129 2131
Tap.C 0e.0W snows 1O falr va.
Quote pHOes in Sigrificant Signihcant
Active Markels GObservable Unobservable
(Level 1) Inpuls (Level 2 Inputs (Level 3)
_ _ _ - R - _ ®O00  goo0  E0UG
- 8,129 -

3 darch 20

2131 -

Tne fair va .o of Crouy

‘Tanteres rate deorivaises is recordod in tne Growp Stazement of Financia Position and 1s detarmined
oY D1 respooive CoLNlerparies Tae Counternaries Lse a n.mper of assumpions in delermining ne fair vasies ine.uding
esimations over lulure iInteresi rates and fut.re cash Fows Lsing ooscrvac.e yic d ¢irves. 7 e falr va.ue Iedresents 118 net
oresont va..e of e difference oeiween ne casn Lows nroduced oy 1ne conracied rate and e val.alion rax. Thals val.aion
“coanid.ae fas g enian Lave. 2ol the far va. . Mararany as defined oy IFR3 13

Thgre navoe c TTere oocn any ransfers

ce11 MO Wransters oveiween Levs 1and Tave. 2 daring any of 712 penods, nor nave
oeween Level 7 and Love. 3danng any of 1ne periods

[
Snare caplia. represents

1w nomina va .o ot consideranon recerred oy ne Conreany for tae issue of Ordinary shares.

Forthe For the vear
year ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£ 00D £ 000
Share capital
A oeqinning and ond of ycar 6,225 58.2%5

Number of shares issued and fully paid Ordinary shares of £0.01 each

Al negnning and =nd ol year 622,461,380 577451380




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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During tne year. :1e Company ourchased 6.050.000 Crdinary snares (o ne ned in reasury at a cos: of £4.651L.000 (31 March 2022
10,025.00C Ordinary snares for £9,259.060).

During ne provious year. the Company reissucd 565,000 Ordinary shares held in ireasury tor £517.008. The cost ol purchasing
(nese shares into reasury of f484 CCC has neen cradized 1o the caplial redacuon reserve wiin (ne gain credited 1o the Sharc
premi.m reserve,

At 31 March 2023, ine Company ne.d 16,075.0C0 (31 March 2022: 10.025,C00) Ordinary shares in ireas.ry. 7Thc snarcs wi. contin.e
10 oe ne.dIn reasury untic either reissaed or cancelled.

ALB March 2023, inc numper of Ordinary shares used to ca.cuiaie (ne nel assel va.Le per snare is 406385380 (G1 Marcn 2022
512.436.380) wich exeludes 1ne snares heid intreasury.

TR RP e PR el 2 ey 1t
The snare premilm reserve rearesents 1he amoums swoscrioed for Ordinary share caprial in excess of nominal va Le less
assnciasod issue oosis ol nae sunscriptions.

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 Match 2024 31 March 2022
. - - A - O 1), o111
Al peginning ol year 292.626 792453

. - 163
292,626 292.528

PromiaIr arising on snars

At end of year

For moventen:s in 1ne year. please sec delais in nowe 22.0

Tne capiial reduciion reserve is a disiriputan e rogorve (o wnlen e valse of ine cancel ed share premi.m was ransferred
P.rsdan: o Aruce 3 of The Companies (Red uction of Share Capiia ) Order 2008, (ne pa.ance hed in the capra. redaclion
reserve is 1o oe reaiad for the purooses of Par: 23 of e Companics At 2005 as a realised profit and (nerefore avallap.e tor
disrin:zion in accordance with section 830 of tne Companies Act. The Company nag wsed this reserve for the cosis of buying
pacg siares (o be ned in reas.ry and paymen: of dividends

For the ror the

year ended yeatr ended

31March 2023 31 March 2022

_ _ o e - . . £000 FIEJIHI

A peginning of year 322,365 331140
Saares reissued from reasdary - 484
Snares pougn: back into treasary (4,651) (9.259)
317,714 322.365

At end of year
Far movemen:s in e year p.ease see delalis 1 nowe 22.0.

I
fo.

TS reserve represenis e profrs and Losses of e Grow o

For the For the

year ended yeat ended

31 March 2023 §1 Mareh 2622

. . . L _ . . 7&(} [AEIH
AT peginning of year 54,331 A3.570
Profi: for e year 25472 44,754
Divdends pawd (34,459) (%4.097%)
At end of year 45,344 543351
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

EAYEAR IR TUE SURTPRETS

Basic WAV per ¢nare is calculaied by dividing net asseis in ©ne Consolidated Statement of Financia. Position atirin.itao.e 1o
Ordinary 2g.ny ao.ders of 1me naren: oy tne nuntper of Ordinary shares outstanding at the end of tne year.

Net asse: va.aes nave peen ca.cu.ated as fol.ows:

Mot asses (£'000)

Number of Ordinary snares in issue a: end ol year

Number ol Ordinary shares hed n treasury

Number of Qrdinary sha.:;es excluding treas_ury shares hfigiaiy the Cor[lpa.ny

NAV per share — basic and diluted

Ar peginning of year
Cash flows from financing activities
Loan iss.e ¢osis paid

Inieres: rae denvailve premiams paid
Proceeds from ‘ne sa e ol Interes: rae denvaiives
Banx norrowings advanced

Bane< oorrowings rcoaid

Non cash movements

Loan iss.e fees aceraed

Amroarisauon of .oan iss.c cos:s

Unamortised .oan arrangemen: fecs wriscn off
Cnange in fair va..e ol Ineres: rawc darivanves
At end of year )

AT neginning ol year
Cash flows from financing activities
Loan draw down

Non cash movements
Loan 1gs.e feas nayao.e

Amrorisation of can1ss.e ooss

Coangon farr va.o.e of e

A; end oﬁf)ieiarr

e3lrate denvanyos

St March 2023_

661,909

622,461,380

(16.075.000)

any " 606,386,380
 10906p
Inlerestrate Bank
e T

" (2131) 352,050

- (3,148}

(8,841) -

17 -

- 70.875

~ (60,000}

- (396)

- 1.869

- 665

2.826 -

T 8129) 361915

Interest tate Bank

detivauves

Looe

514

borrowings

352120

A E:Tecy

£2 030001

31March 2027
675547
522461380
(10.625.000)
512436380
110 300

For the

year ended
31 March 2023
£'000

3439919
(3.148)
(8,841)

17
70,875
(60.000)

(396)

1,869

665

2,826
" 353786
bor the

year ended

31 March 2022
[a3 (5] 8]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

TNt g il

Tae GroLp 1s party ;0 a nuirber of operaiing ‘eases on its invesimen: properties wiin Approved Providers The fuire minimum
LCass DAaymenss Ander non-cancellab.e operaling .cascs rececivan.a by the Grouy are as todows.

3 March 2023 31 March 2022
£an0 £000

Arnounts receivanic

< 1yrar 57.262 5282
1-7 years 57.352 53.879
2-S years 172,536 151,91C
= 5 years 958,286 928 .21C

1.245,436 1187.85C

Atend of year

Leases are direci-ler agreemenis witn Approvad Providers lor a term ogiween 20-4C years wiih indexed linted annua. ren:
reviews. Al CLrTeni .cases are tu', repairing and insuring leases; ihe tenants are tnerefore on.iged o repair mamnain and
rensw [ne properties bacx o tho origina. conditions.

Tne following an.c gives detais of percentage of annua. rentat income per Aporoved Provider:

J1March 2023 31 March 2022
%

%
Anvkiand Homee Sofu.ions and Gua iag {L’)Lsing 7 T  zam ua4
Fa.con TIousing Associaton CIC 191 187
Besno<e S.oporiive Tenancics 12.5 12.6
Inc asion Howsing CIC 9.4 93
Wosimore and S.oported Housing Limized 5.6 5.9
Encirce Hoosing Limied 5.2 59
Trinty [Housing Assacianon Limited 5.2 5.1
Pivora. Housing Associaton 4.0 38
Carysails supporied Associauon Limied 37 36
Moew Wa < Propery Managemen: CIC 2.7 28
Harpodr Light Assis:ed Living CIC 2.3 35
My Space Housing 3o .tions 1.3 1.3
Fysi.m Hea theare Limied 11

[KE S.opored Housing limied 1.0 11
Hilda.e Housing Association Limied 1.0 10
Wingdr.sh Allance JECIC 07 27
Li.y Rose Supporsed Haousing 0.2 21
B.uc Sjaare Residenaa: Lid 01 1
ﬁﬁl T - - T 100.67 - 1000

Avccand Home So.uions and Qualnas Housing are oo mempers of ine Socta. Howsing Famiy CIC and sapcct o common
con:rol Thzir annLat ren: figures nave tacrefore ooen aggregated m e tab.e apove. Tho percontage re.aing o Adc<iand
Home So..010ns and Qualdias Howsing was 18 3% and 84% (2022: 16 3% and 8 1% respecively, Tne ann.aa. ren. d: 31 Maren 2023 for
Anccand Home Sorwiions and Quatias HoLsing was £9.265.000 and £4.730.000 2022 F8.479.000 and £4334.000) respaciive v

The Growp 1§ .50 narty (0 an.moer of operaung .eases on iis.ong cascho.d properiics. The gro.nd rant saymen:
commEments GJrder Thase 0peraung .cases are neg-igib.e so e fuiare mimm .m ease paynien.s ander
ocen disciosed in &

L0800 edses nave noi

e linancia. s'a.emen:s.

€207 SLNLLODDV ANV LE0dd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

G oo
As at 31 Marca 2023, there ig no L.iimaie CONTo.Ing pary.

~

Hivg practaes

T Wervied pacty, el

A st of a. soosidiary wnderiagings ine’ Lding ine address of the registered office is detat’'ed in note 8 C .o tne Company
accoawns on pages 1150 118

5000 T .
The Direcors are rem.nerated for neir services at sucnrate as :nc Direciors saal from e to time determine. The aggregaie
rem.neralilon and oenefits in <ind of the Direclors of the Company (in cach case. solely in their capacity as suca) inrespect of
ne year ended 31 Marcn 2023 pavaole out of tne asseis of ine Company 1s no: cxpected to excacd £230.000

[SRSTRNNENO S SF IV Yo

Foes of £194.000 (20722: F190.000) were incurred and paid to (ne Directors.
As a: 31 March 2023 and 2027, the Direciors he.d tae {o..owing namoer ot shares

31March 2023 31 March 2022

Ordinary Ordiary
shares shates
Director B o T T
Michae. Wrone. Shalrpran 200,000 120.598
Alas:air Moss Direcior 11,766 11756
A:ison Hadden Dirccror 31937 -
Caraine G iver Audii and Managemen: Engagemen: Commitees Chair £8.832

Pater Baxer

Dirccior B SZ‘QGS

ne Invesimen: Adviser nas revicweod 1ts rent L neration policies and procedores 1o cnsure inconiivas are aligned wiin ine
reqairenenis ol AIFMD @ inci.des meas.res (o avoid conf icis of interes: s.on as providing staff wita a fixed moniny

sa ary and delormining dizscrelionary paymen:s oy nc performance of tne Inves:imen: Adviser as a whole and no: in<ed
10 any ong AIF in particu.ar The Invesimen: Adviser and 1s siaff receve no rem.neratuon inrewgn protic snhare, carned
iniersg, co-inveslimen: or oer senomes refaiad (o tne Company's performance.

ERT R TS B P e T S A N T T

On 1 Novemrper 2818, Civitas Inves:imen: Managemen: Liniied {"CIM™ was appoinied as 1ae Invesiment Adviser of e Company.
I:s address 1s snown on pago 131 10 he Repor.

FB.208.000 (Z022: TRIZANCH) weare incurred and oard o CIM In addition T11L.0CC 2072 Fnit diso.rsements were paid in

iona. tees incorred. Talg amo.un:

ren: Adviser agreed o conininaie . (2022 £100.000) -owards (cga. and profe
was offsct agams: .cga. and profcssiona: fees in noe 9.0

e

(2022: £1531.C001 was duce from CIM. whicn nas since neen recelved

As a3 March 2025 a netamro.n of F48.0

A3 al Bl Marca 2035 CTM ne d 15878

) Ordinary snarcen e Company



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

L I U N L A I R A TS |

o e I S TR

The GronLp’s principa. financial asscs and Jlaopisties are (hose inar arige directly rom its operations irade and oher
receivab.es, rade and other payapies and casna and cash ogavaleons The Group's other principal inancia. aabililies are pang
borrowings. e main purpose ot which s 1o finance 1ne acq.aisinon and deve.opment of the Group's Investmen: prooerty
vordfolio. and interes: rate derivatives as detaled mnoies 200 and 21.0.

AL hinancial iiabiaties are measared a: amorised cost. oxcept interest rate derivatives, wnich are measured at fair vaiue Al
financia! iInstramenis were designated in itheir curren: categorics upon initial recognition.

Selout below is a companson by ¢.ass of the carrying amoun's and (air valuc of tne Group’s inancial instrumentyg (nat are
carried in the financiai stalemen:s:

Book value Fair value Rock value Fair value

FlMarch 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
I Eona o gooo foew £y
Financial assets - S
Interast ratc derivatives 8.129 8,129 %131 2131
“rade and oier regeivab es! 34,949 34,949 343580 34580
Cash and cash edqiiva.onts 35,588 35,588 33337 55,;’;;'?
Financial liabilities
Trade and oinar dayap.eg’ 7.599 8.632

Banc< bomraowings ) ) 3571,7_9]5 Z52.050 §£-495

1 Excludes prepayments
4 Excludes deterred inaome and dividend withholding tax payable

Tae Cro 1p 1as five pank Ioans as detai.ed in note 20.0 Tne fair value of the tixed rate loan is determined oy comparing (he
discooniad lLiare casn flows,

L T S e LR N

Tha Gro.n 18 eX00sed 10 marke: ris<, interes: rate risg. crodil rig< and ag.adiny ris< in e carrent and Laodre years, The Board ol
Dircciors ovorsees (e managemen: of (nese ris<s. Tae Board of Direciors reviews and agress policies for managing eacn of

Hese rs<s thal arc summarised nelow,

e O

“ae GroLo's acuvites wi exoose 1 orimarl.y 1o the marke: ns«<s assectaied wiin cnanges in property vasdes and changes in

inicres: rates.

Invesiment N progery s s.o'ec: 10 varying degrees of risk Some faciars that affec: the va Le of ine invesiront in property
inc. .de

e hanges in e gonera economic camaioe.

e compeliuon [or avaiab.c prooertios:

®  O0SeSCONIe and

e Jovornmen reg cations incoading p.anning, environmen:al and @ax .aws

Variadions in e apove factors can atfeo the va.cauon of asseis he d oy the Groap and ag a res.2 can inbuence e finanaial
oerformancea of ne Group

TOH YIS




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

EERNE

P L B o - P

Tne Croup ho.ds positons in two AAA rated .quidhty funds tha: invest in a diversified range of governmen: and
NoN-gavernmen: moncy mar<e! secarities. wailch are sub ec: 1o varying degrecs of ris<. Some faciors
Thetiqaidity funds inc.ude:

a: affcct tie valuc of

e he performance of the under ying government and non-government nioney mar<et securitics: and

. n-eres’ raes.

Vanasions In e anove factors can affec: the vaiuauon of asse's nerd by the Growp and as a resu.t can inflience the financial
ocrformance of ine Group

Iolnterest are sk

[nterest raze risk is tne ris< “ha: the talr va..e or fuature casn fows of a financial insiramen: wi.. f. ctuare necaase of changes in
marce! interes: raas

AL3 Marcn 2023 4. .ong-letm borrowings are either a: ixed raie or 1ave aninteres: 1ate cap or interes: rate swap in place

wihicn has mrigaied (he 11s< of rising meeres: rate Interes: raie derivailve INSITLMENS are N fg.ace 1o 1 Joan maillrity dae on
LAC Vanaon ¢ rale joans

TNe :abie pe.ow shows the pank oans. denvaive insiromens and meres raes

Maxinum
Loan Principai Denvatve tnstrument  INMEICSE rate

summary of Botrowings £006 __Expury Date Intetest rate B . m place payibls

Scoinsn Widows Lim

ad 10-year faci ity 52500 Gl

) 29935% fixed 299%
Deliscne Bans AG 70,875  C3%/02/72028 5.69% nxed 559%
HSEC Bank n o 106.000 28/11/2025 SONIA + 215%  Inierest ra:o cao 475%
Natlona Wesiminsier Ban< Pic S-year facilly 60,000 14/08/2024  SONIA + 200% Inicres: ra‘e swap 280%

ME&C [Invesiren: Managemen: Linied 7-

car faclity 84,550 24/02/2028 3.137% fixed 314%

367.925

1 Maximum interest rqte teduces 1o 4 6% trom 18 Apnil 2023

The expos.are of e Grosp to vanaos.c rae

solinteres: s considered _pon drawing of any new oan faci in2s, 70 cnsure 1nat tae
Cro.wo's exposare to interes; rate f.cloalions is witiin accepian.e eves.

Tne Invesimen: Adviser monizors 1N Grouors eXgosare 1o any changes in nercs: raic on an ongoing nasis. wiin tne Board
wopdated on a g.anerly vagis ol 11e correns oxoosare of e Crowp's .oan laciies,

As ar 31 Marcn 2023, f interes: rates nad pocen 100 pasis poin:s aignaer/fowern) wiin a. olner vartan.os nc.d constan; ;e impac:
on orotits afer taxanon for 1ne year wol d o€ as oe.ow Tae Invesimen: Adviser anicipacs 1ese evels are reasonan.y
oosginle vased on 1ne ooservalion of corren: mar<el condlilons |

it

natINEres: rales Would nol [LLCTLde more an 1%

31 March 2023 31 March 2
£ 000 £ 000

Increase/(decrease) in profits due to interest rates
125 oasts points nigacr 256 :
100 masis pomss ows (210) 1.57Z

P -

r.oments at 31 Marca 2523 and 2022 wero as fo_ows:

e gverage cifective interes: razes of financia

31 March 2022 11 March 2022
%

Ban« porrowings -

drae ' . 2.65 294
Bans oorrowings - /arian.e rao 6.07

Casn and casn cqatv/a.ents 0.82

1 ¥aniable tale boltowings are $Ubiect 1o 4 maximam interest are ol 4 7%% dus 1o 4an 1Interest rate cap The maxmum inmeeest raie reduces 1o 4 6% lrom 18 Apnlb 2043
I 2



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

P RS SN
Credi risx is tne s (ha: a counterpary wil. not meet ity ovligaions Jnder a financial INSIrumen: o CLSIOmear Contracs,
!

jcading so ntinansia ass The Glroaw ts oxposed o credil nsis rom oot ils leasig acdvldes and finanomg acuvities,
including deposits with nan<s and financia institations

Deoors and aceraed income represen: ren: doc or accrued These antodnts due are diversified opetween a number of ditferen:
Approved Providers of diftering financial sirength, see note 28 G for detans of tne different counterparties. None of (ac
Approved Providers nave a credit rating. nowever. Ihe diversified nature of this asse: suppors the credit qla.ily

e Crowp nas poltcies In place 1o ensurc hatl rental contracts are ontered inio ony with lessees with an appropria.e credi:
and operationa. nistory, and ImM1ts cXposure 1o any one tenant. The crediz ris< s considered 1o be further reduced as the
source of the rents recaived by the Croug is ulima‘c'y provided oy the Covernment, oy way of noLsing benelit and cara
provisicn. via a diverse range of ioca. aulnoriies,

For detaiis of provisions lor impairmen: please refor (o note 17.0

One of :he orincipa. credi: ns<s of the Group wi. arise wita 1a¢ pan<s and linancia, nsiitations. Tac Board of Direciors helieves
rna: he credit risk on shor-term deposis and CUIren: accoLnl casn ba.ances is imited because 1ne couniernarties are nanks
considered 10 o¢ of good crodr qua.ity. In the case of cash depaosiis neld witn .awyers. 1ne aredil nisk 18 imited becaase e
cash s 1ed oy the lawyers wiinil clicn: accounts al ban<s with high aradi qualny.

The credl ralings for panks where pa.ances are he.d oy the Group are as follows:

Lioyds Bank ol A+/Fl
HSBC Banx« pic AN-/Fl1
RBS Inzcrnationa Limited ASFL
Naziona Wes:iminser Banc pc A+fFL

Raungs advised oy Fiicn

Ho balances arg held with Deutsehe Bank AG

T Group manages s q.adity and funding risks oy considenng cash f.ow forecasis and ensuring sufficien: cash oa.ances
are ne'd wihin the Gro.o o mee: [Li.re needs. Pruden: lig.:idry As< managemens: irrp ies nrain:aining s.fficien: cash and
mar<eiab.e secorizes, the avaiaotiy of tinancing through aporopriate and adequaare credis lines. and e aoliy of customers

to seie ooliganons witiin normal terms of credit. The Group ensares, mroJgh forecasiing of capiiat reguiremernis. thae

adequatc ¢as) is avaranie
Thefo.owing tan'e delals ine Group's mal.riy prolee n respect of 1ts inancial insiramen: dabilines oased on conractug.
«ndisaoaned paymoen:s:

an demand <iyear 1-5 yrats > Syears Fotal

- - . _ _ fpoo koo _ _kowo £ _ waoy
31 March 2023
Trade and other pavabies 7.599 - - - 7,599
Ran< oorowings - 14,482 407,770 - 422,252
I - T 7598 14482 407770 - 429851
31 March 2022
Trade and o:hcr pavan.cs 8632 8.637
Ban< oomowings 9.336 245974 144.602 339912

T - T T eam 9336 745974 M4.502 408544

The profi.c above shows e maariy orefie al 31 Mareh 2023 and incoaded wiiin e conraced gaymen:s is 154.327.000
172027 FA2.862.000) of .oan Iniercs. payao e .o 1o ne point of mat.rity

(NV LHOdSH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

PR PR RS S AP R TS D FINERE AN
A3l March 2023, the Company nad {f.nds commited totaling £Nil (2022: £92.000 concerning capiia. expenditure 101 a property
N Surrey).

A5 T Poast

. U
HERS PR

Omn 9 May 2023. the Company anno.nced a dividend of 1425 pence per share in resoect of (e period 1jan.ary 2023 o
21 March 2023 totaliing £8.641,0CC. Tne dividend oaymen: was made on 9 June 2025 10 sharenolders on the regisior as
a- 19 May 2023 The financia: stalements do no: refiect this dividend. Tne dividend was paid as a RLIT propery income
distnoution ("PID7).

. .
d

On 1 Decemper 2022, the Company signad a facility with an imstitutiona. .ender. 3uosequen: 1o this. on 21 June 2023, the

Company received credit aporoved terms for an addiziona £61C miion lixed faciity oased on a 3-year SONTA ratc at the

dae of draw down +1950ps margin with a mad.rity daze of 3 Aug.s 2026 The evential drawdown on the faciiy 18 sublec o

cortain ssandard c.osing condilons,

e s

R PR e R L S SRR ST S TR B SO I
an 9 May 2 an announcemeni was made 10 the marke: tor an all-casn offer of Civitas S3ocia. Housing PLC (Civitas) from

Weness Unity Limized. & who y owned indmrect sunsidiary of CKA Asset Holdings Linrized (CKA).
per

e offer o1 80 ponee

are teceived va .es 1ae entirte isyued share capita. (exc uding rreasary saares) of CSH ar approximate.y £485 milion.

ag renresents a 4 4% oramium 0 tne share orice of 354 pence por share on 5 May 2023 (ine .as' rading day prior ©o
anno.ncemen: of the offer). and Z287% discown: 10 31 March 2023 NAV of 108.15p. This orovidey shareholdaers 71 opRoriunity 1o
oxit in f.. and in cash a+ a significan: premram o (ne c.urrens saare price. The offer wi. oc imop.emenied oy way of a taxeover
offer wiihin tne meaning ot Par: 28 of “he Companigs Ac:

Cn 22 May 2023, ine Offer Documan: was made avalaole. Tag olter pecame Lnconditiona. on 23 June 2623 Paymen: of
consideralion due o snareno.ders wno nave suoinised vaid acceplances val pe made no later tnan 14 ca.endar days
af*cr sne daic 1ne Offer Decomes oris dec.ared sneonditiona., or i re.auon o va.ld acceotances recerved atier s.on dae.
wiinin 14 ca.endar days of receip: of 1hat acceplance. According 0 :ac Offer Documen ginicnded 1nar Civitas Inves:
Managemen: Lirriiad ( CIM ) is mainzained as ine Invesimen: Adviser o Civitas so ina: 1ne day-to-day managermen: of
e Civitas pordolio wi. conunisc wunterr.pied. and Civiias pe re-regisiercd as a orivate imred company as s0on as
vracucab ¢ folowing Lne cancelalion of e asting and rading of Civias shares A e od.ance steadae CKA as an indiree:
inves:or in CIM, was nol a re aled pary 10 tne Gro.p as per 1AS 24 On 23 Tune 2023 when ne oller occame wnceondiiona..

CKA 8Unsed.cnt ¥ 9ecame 1¢ L. Umate contro.ang pary of 1ne Connany. and a re.ated party under [AS 24

" AND ACCDUNTS 2043

VITAS SOCLAL HOUSING PR
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Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2023

31March 2023 31Maich 2022

_ S o e e e e Note & N £o0y
Assets

Fixed assets

nvesiment in subsidiaries 7.0 794,733 793 284
Current assets

Trade and other receivanles 9.0 2,593 4310
Cash and cast equivalents 1.0 . 26193 23,438
- T - —TJS?_ 27748
Total assets 7 o 7 @23525.  AAL0%7

Liabilities
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year Lo
ne (318,414) (274C20)

T ewa Grem)

Trade and oher payaoles

Total liabili_l_‘.ies_ (318.414)  (274.C20)

505,111 547.C12

T_otal net assets

Equity

Snare capi:a! 12.0 6,225 5.225
Share premidm resorve 130 292,626 292.525
Caplta. reduction reserve 14.C 317,714 322385
Accumuiaed osses 15.0 {111,454) (74.204)

Total equity 7 505,111 “)47£l7 )

Tae Company nas @xen advanage of (ne provisions of Conpanies Ac: 2065 8408 and doey not disc.ose he Company's
individua. profit and Joss account Lass tor 1he year was F2791,000 (2022 orofii £21.352.000)

Tae Company lnancla, staioments an pages 111 70 120 were aporoved oy (e Board of Diractors of Civiias Socia. [o.sing PLC
and a.thorised loriss.c and signed on its pehall by:

f\\jlt’h’u L)

Michael Wrobel

Charrman and Independent Non-Exea.ive Direcior
28 Tune 2023

Company bo: 1G4C235328
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Shate capuat

Share premiun reduction Accummulated Totat

“aa i ova P i
Balance at 1 April 2021 T o T 6225 2924562 331140 {5147% 568354
Proflr and ‘oia. comprenensive income for ing year - - 21352 21362
Smares reigsued from reas.ry 164 484 048
Snares DOLEN: DAcK INiO reas.ary 9.259) (9.259)
Dividends paid - B ) 134.083) (34,093)
Balance at 31 March 2022 o 5225 392626 322355 (74204) 547012
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - - - (2.791) (2,791)
Snares reissued from reasury - -~ - - -
Snares oough! DACK INTO reagury - - {4,651) - (4.651)
Dividends paid - - - (34,459) (34,459)
Balance at 31 March 2023 T "7 B225 292626 317714 (111.454) 50511

The Companys dismniiuiable regerves comprise rezammed earnings/accumalazad losses) and “he capizal reduction
reserve These n aggregate had sufficient realised disinbuable reserves 1o suppor: dividends pald to date.

The nolzson padas N2 0 127 are an ntegra gart of tnese inancla. slaemens.

112



Notes to the Company Financial Statements
As at 31 March 2023

Dol a3t e PRI Tk e

Civitas Socia. Housing PLC {ne Company ™) was incorporated in Cngland and Wa.cs under the Companies Aci 2006 as a pubuc
copdany ied oy shares on 29 Sepromoer 2615 with company numopar 103402528 under the name Civiias REIT PLC whien was
subsequeniy changed 1o the existing name on 3 Ocioner 2016.

The address of tne registered office 1s 6h Floor, 65 Gresham Sirect, Londaon LCAV TNQ. The Company is regisiered as

an invesimen: company under sgction 833 of tne Companies Act 2006 m England and Wales and is domici.ed inthe

United Kingdom.

The Company did no: pegin trading unii. 18 Novemner 2015 when the shares were admitted (o trading on the London Stock
Exchange ("LSE™).

The Company's Ordinary gnares nave peen admizted o the Official Lis: of the Financia. Conduct Autnaority ("FOA), and are
raded on the LaE

The princival activity ol the Company is 1o ac: as the s.umaie parent company of I's subsidiaries (the "Crowe” and (o provide
saarenoders witn an allracuve ave. of Income, togeer with 1ae potental for capita’ growlih from investing in a porfo o of
social nomes.

Co

Tne financia: siatemen:s have pecn oreparcd on a his:orica. cos: basis and in accordance wita Financiai Reporting 3:andard
1801 Reduced Disclosare Framework {'FRS 1017 and the Companics Act 2005 as app.icabie (0 contpanies Jasing FRS 101

PRib el veckepds Diadt

In preparing tncse financiai statcmenss. he Company apo.des the recogniion, measuremeni and disclosure reqdirements of
International Financia. Reporiing S:andards (Adop:od TFRSs™. 0.l magkes amendiments wnere necessary in order o comply
with 1ne Companies Act 2006 and nas set ou: oc.ow wacre advantage of the FRE 101 disc.osare exemptions nas been ta<en
In preparing shese financiai s:aterrents the Company nas laxen advaniage of all disc.osdre cxemoions conferred oy FRS 101
Theretora tiese financia. statemen's do not inclado

& corain comparative informauon as oinerwise required oy [IFRS:

¢ certamn disc.osures regarding tae Company’'s capiial managaement:

e cerain disciosures in relanon o [FRS 1S Revenwe Contracs witn Cusomers:

e asglalemen: of cash fLows:

e he oHeolof huture accoaniing slandards not yer adoped:

e ne discosors of e remuneralion of <ey management parsonne.: and

e discosure of re ated pary wransaciions with oner wholdy ownad mremoers of Civitas Sodia. Housing PLC.

In addition. and in accordance wih FRS 101 [uriner disc.osure cxemotions have neen adooted necause equivalent disc.os.res
arc incl.ded in tae Company's conso idated financia. statemems. Tnese finencia. statomen:s do not ine ade coriain
disc.os.res in respect of

& [inancia. insiromenss: and
e lair va_se nreasdremeant oiaer caan cerain discosures required as a resuit of recording linancias insiramen's ai fair va'ue

The Company nas taxen advan:age of 1ne exempion in secion 468 of the Companites Ac 2068 not 10 prosent is own income

Slaiemeni orslaiemen: 0 CompNrenensive INCome,

Beo R AR SRR RS EA R T S A R S L P

Afcrarevicw of now acco.wnting standards wnicn are now efteciive, none are re.evan: (o be adopioed in ne preparation of the
Company's financia. stazemoents for ine year ended 31 Maren 2023,

Tae hnancia galenroniy nave geen prepared on a golng concorn 0asis

As discassed in ine Group flinancia. s:atemenss anove. ine undertying assets of e Campany benclis from a socure incoma siroam.

"o Company financia. S anmens 10w an aco.ama.ated ogs nowaver (nsas dae 10 a lme-.ag on orofiis from s.osidiary
companics being moved up “ne strucinre in e lorm of dividends

e Conrpany has ne: curren: aapidiies of £289,622.000 (Z2077: F2A6 72772.000). s baance arses dac o nointcreompany
pa.ances ota.ng L316128.00C (2822 £271,832.000) with the Comoany's s, osidiary cormpanics. 710 amoun s orinaipa v re ate 1o
pang oans drawn in e Company's s.osidiary companios in order 1o inance ae parchase of now acguiisitions in accordance
witn e Group's nosiness model. Tao dircciors of e suosidiary companies have provided 4 etter of comfor: that tey wild no:
seeg ropayment of aese balances witnin 12 ntonihg from e date ol approva ol ine Connany's tinancia, slatements

TV UINY LaOddd
V1008 SVLIAID

z
b
Z

0L SLNNO
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

The Company's ariic.es ot asgoclation mcuade a requiremen: for the Board to proposc an ardinary reso’uiion at ihe annual
gencral meeling fo.owing ae fifth anmiversary from Dhe incial pablic offering of tne Company for ine Company o conlinue
in 1ts current form {21e Continuation Reso.aiion). Thus vole was passed in Sep.ember 2022 so the Company wi.. COninJe 1's
pLSINESs as present.y cons:iused and wil. Proposc na same resoluion at ine AGM in September 2027 and every [ilin ann..a

gencra. meeling ereafer

On 9 May 2023, an anno. ncemen: was made to :he marce: for an a_-cash offer ot Civias Social Housing PLC {CSH) from
Wel.ness niy Limited. a who iy owned indirec: subsidiary of CK Assets Toldings Limited (CKA). The offer became
sncondizional on 23 June 2023 The Group's cxis:ing commuiied debt faclities contain a standard change of coniro! clause nas
now peen triggered due (o the offer becoming wheondittonal. Tais could resuitin nc oxis:ing commited dep: faciitlies neing
withdrawn. Furinern:ore, ;e Directors do not nave visiblLity of the post compleinon finding for the Group and Company a:
inis time The Direclors hote Thc detailed imendons statemen: inc.uded witnin tne annauncement on 9 May 2023, walcn siates
cna: CKA does not envisage ma<ing any ©ianhges (o (e managemen: leam nor any disr.plion 1o any counierparlies or o

tne Wnderiying :onants However, The conditions outiined apove indicaie 4 matena. snceriainty which may cas: significan:
do.ot pon the Group's and Company's ani.iiy 1o coninue as a going concern ~he Independent A.dilers Repornt inciuded
winin 1ne Annua. Repor: and Accouanis 1or ine year ended 31 March 2023 a.s0 agalighis this matenal wnceriainty. Tnersfore,
nowitastanding ne materia. ncernainty arsing trom e offer from CKA, the Directors are satistied that ?he going concern
oasis rerrains anproprig:c for (e preparation of (ne financia. statemen’s, The financia. statemen:s do noi inciude o
acllusiments 1na wouid resu.if ine Groupe and the Company were unab.¢ 1o Conunue as a gomg concern

Frroanc gdageringe T L gt L ] LR .
Tao key sowrce of esimation Lnceriainiy relates 10 (e Company's inves men: in Cro.wp companies, andas stated in ne
Comuopany's separa:c financia. s:a‘emen:s a: cos: ‘¢ss impairmen: .osses, it any Impairment .osses are delermined wiin
rcference o the Ivesimens's lair va: a0 Loss esimated cosig of disposa Tnvesimen: croocriics naed oy ing sapsidiary
companics are s.oporied py Independen: va_Lation Judgeman:s and assumpions associaed wii C properiy va..es of the
inresiroen:ts Ne.d py 1ne supsigiary companies are detal.ed in ine Groop Imancial s mens.

SO Al

The tinancia. staiements of tne Company foow ¢ acco.ning oo.dcies laid ol in ne Group g conso idated financial
stalements al0Ng Wi ue 1o OwiIng accouniIng nolicies walsn nave neen eongisienty agoaod:

IR AUPRTLS S FY LU RIS TS S DU 5 o= -

TAe invesirents In suosidiary companies arc inc.oded in e Company's 3:atemant of Financia. Position at cos! .ess provision
for imparmen:. hinpairmen: osses are delermined wity relerence 1o e inves ments lair va Lo oss estintaled seling costs On
disoosa.. o dilterence oeiween tac not disposa. groceeds and its carrying amoonising sdad in Uie INCOme s1aenan,

Taginvesimeniin a sichiary Ccompany may Inc. .de 0ol 1he puIcnase ol snares and an Iniercon pany .oan whicn 1s
Jpgegaeniy caplialited inrelam for shares in e soosidiary company. T e iniercompany oan capinased s diseosed in
~

S84
noe 7.0 as a ranster peiween (ne shares and .oan co.amns

Torapr Lo sansinhidnie

Loans made (o suosidiary companies waica arise as parn: of e rransacuans lar Jne acqaisiion of inves:enis and are
$.0SCWCNLY Capiiadsed oy tne 15s.e of snares are recognised as invesinen: in supsidiaries at cosl Al ine point ine oan s
caplia.sed. tais ransaciion is recognised as a iransfer witan iacan cin nowe 7o

R T S R L T I LTS TSN PPN

Ba.ances ansing wi.d s.opstchary comoanics of a romoorary nat.re areiniia 7 recognised atfair va we and s.oseqaeniy
~red a amrorised ons.

Torrrdee g
Dividends are inc..ded 1n ;ac finangia. staements I :0e year m ~1c) 1Ay are paid Delars of drndends oawd and prooosed
are Inc..ded in noe MG of e Gro.p e conso daed financia. sta'cmen’s.

N A L

Detals of Direcors ram unaraion are ing..ded in no
om0 ayees dornng 1oy

A0 of e consnidaled tinancla. slacmenis. Tne Company nad no
Qar {222 ni .

oAt

Audir fecsinreaton 0 ne
noe9

eed

oy
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

Fui e

Shaies 1 Luans ‘o ve ar eided

subsiciancs TiMari 2025
Year ended 31 Md:chw_ o . _ o _ . L o AR [ANAV
Ba.ancc at the nedginnmg of the year 768,075 793,284
Increase in investmenss 1,080 1.650
T.oans transferred 7,727 -
Impairmen: o (241 - (241)
At the end of the__ year i 776,651 18,082 794,733
7 B i ) ) T T T For [h(‘r;‘-ﬂ-r

Shares in Loans tu ended

subsidianies subsidiaries 31 March 2022

Year ended 31 Maich 2022 . . . . o 3 . o £000 £'00n0 . VE'LIUU
Balance a: e nadinning of the year 703435 17483 70918
Increage in investmen's 4117 31,013 72,728

Loans Tansicrred SRIR7 (23287

Impairoen: {359} {359
At the end of the year 768075 25209 793284

FoLowing a review companng cos: of invesimenis o “he Lnderlying nel assets of supsidiary companies. an impairmaent
provision nas peen made of 241003 (2072 £359.000).

2 R E L I

Tne Company has provided a gaarantee wnder s479C ol e Companies Act 2006 in respect of (e financia. year ended

31 Marcn 2023 for a number of its s.osidiary comoanies (ag indicated in e lap.e on the [ollowing gages) Tne guarantee is
over al” ousianding aoiines .o whica Ine supsidiary companies are subject at 31 Maren 2023 ontil they are satistied infu.
The Growp consis's of a paren: company. Civizas 3oca Housing PLC. incorporaied in Eng.and and Wa es (company n.mocr
104075728) and a namboer of soosidiaries hewd direciy oy Civitas Soctai Housing PLC, which operate and arc incornoraed in
Eng.and and Wa.es or Jersey.

The Gro.p owns 1G0Y equiry snares of all s.osidianes isied pelow and 1as ine power 10 appoin: and remove e maoriy ol
tae noard of direciors of (a0se s.nsidlaries Tae re.cvani acuviles of The oe_ow sunsidianes are dewormined oy tne Board of

Direciors pased on e purpose of eacn company

Taersfore. the Dirceiors conce wded that the Gro.p aas control over ali these nies and al these eniiies nave oeen
consoddated wiinig the consolidated tinancla. statiements.

A st of al. rerated Lnderadangs inc.aded within these consoiidaed financia siatemeonis are noed pe.ow Indirecty he d
st.bsidiary eormrpanies are mar<ed by an indentation in the ab.e boow:

ntry of incorporation

Name - R ‘“‘;d_““'“b‘ﬂ 1 actrnty .
tas fooa Howsing IMance Coﬂt ; Tw] [oited” 103977G7 I"nanze cov pany Eng.and & Wa'es
Cuvitas Sowia Housing Jersev 1 Lot led 124129 Ho.d:ng conpany lersey
Crvitas SEVI L. ted” 10318724 Property nvesiTent Lag.and & ‘Waes
Clvtas SPV2 Loliteds 10114751 Froperty nvestrent England & Wa.e=
Civitas 3PV L 1lited™ 1346749 Froperty westreant Lag.and & Wa.es
Cositas SPVIS Lomaed® CY/rIER0 Praperty nvestmrent Lagiand % Wa.es
1vitas SPV2S Lintitedr 107391173 Froperty nvestaent Eag ond & Waes
Cwtas SPV2Y Loraeds 1088512 Froperty nvesinment Lngiand & Wa.es
Civitas SPVS3 Lt teds 10346407 Property Zwvestrent Eag and &% Wa =%
Crvtas SPYED Lintaed® 10388550 Fromerty “vestmiant Eagiand & Wa.es =0
Cov.tas sFV38 Loned® 107358418 Fraperty avestmenl Eag.and & Wa es é §
Cratas STVES Limited: 16347333 Froperty vesiment Foagoand & Wa.es R
O tas STVAC Lo 10738510 Propetty vestment bagland & Wales E 5
Civitas SP7U Lo 1074585342 Property nvestrsnl Lag.and & 'Wa es 5 E
v otas aPV50 Lomiteq 187775419 Promersty avestme:nt Frigland & Wales 2 g
o nanes Comooanyy A limited” 15997635 Fance company Fgrand Sowales ::; §
v las 8e : ceraey 2 Linnited 174876 Ho.d ng comopany Lersey % ;
Civtas SPVES L deds 1015652 3 yoilvestenl Fgand % Males oa

115



Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

Name

Registeied number

Chyras SFVY Lorited”

Crvitas SPVS Limited®

Clvitas SPVE Limited®

Clyilas SPVY Limited”

Chvitas SPVIC Lintited®
Ciyitas SFV12 Laited™
Civitas SEV1Y Lontited”
Clvitas SPV1S Limted-
Clvitas SPVI9 Linmited™
Civ tas SPV20 Linited”
Ciytas SPVZ2 Lo ted”
Clvitas SFv24 Lim.red”
Covitas 8PV26 Lim
Cllas SPV29 Lomited™
Civilas SPV3C Limtted”
Civ:tas SPV3] Lomited®
Cryitas SEVEZ Limlted”
Civitas SEV3EA Limated®
Cortas SPVS6 Lonvired®
Clvitas SPVAR | amitedt
Svitas SFVA3 Lo

O

ad*

Covias SPv4s Lumited™
Cov 1as SPV46 Loted”
Covntas SPVAY Lo ted®
Clvitas SEVAB Lorsted”
C
C

sitas SEYE1 Loted®

as SPEV32 Lo ted”
tas SEVES Lo ted”
BN
Covtas SEVYG Lo tad”
ookas SPVA L ted”
s tas SPVTE Limied®
Svitas SPLV7Y Lomited”
Totas SPVTS Lirted®
“tas SFYBC Loy ted™
Cretas SPVISS Lo ded”
CvrasSoyza HouwsngF
A Lovitedt

VAE T tedr

O]

OIS

Cotas SPVAD Lor e it
Crrtas SEVal Lo red”
O ostas SEVAS L tedt
Covtas 30y Lo ded
Cositas SPV78 Lorted®
tas SFV73 Lo

tas 5EVael Lorrer

Cooras SFVRR Lorded

Z a3 5FVES Lovasdt

tas 3F97 [Lorted”

OOyt SEVICE Lo terd”

ance Coroany 3L oreds

10433744
1G-4/9104
10674433
10536388
10533243
10346753
10479036
10546631
10348932
10588735
10743958
10751512
15864356
16911365
69560623
16974889
TS
C738381
10438792

10544877
1871834
10871915

LBIEZ/C
10R73295
1C826693

168270086

16770201
16588633
15938022

161853
1CR1834
NCC1228
14327873
1033711

10893228
11821625
HO35453

110334441

1A
NECa184
N447330

60742

Principal actwvity B
Property investnant
Froperty nvestment
Froperty investment
Property nvestment
Property nvesiment
Property .vestment
Property investment
Property imvestmenl
Property investrnent
Property nvestment
Frooeny aveastment
Frooe-y nvestment
Froperty rvestment
Froperty :nvestment
Property wvestment
Property nvestrent

iy nvestre !
Fropeny nyvestn et
P

P’OE)E?IV restm

ety investrent
ot

serty tvestment
Frooerty wvesirent
Fro

Froperty nvestment

Derly nvestment

Fronsrty svestrent
Pronerty srsestrant
Pranerty nvestment
Proverty investment
Property Investmen!
Froperty avestaent
Froperty avestrent
st ent

ety vestrent

ent

yerty wveshm
Fraperly nyvestrant
"mance Comoany

Lreestyent

Fronerty avestnent
Pronerty oastor @t

cauerty orrestrent

stent

st

perty nvestrent

Froogery mrestohent

Country of iIncot poration

Lngland & Wa.es
Lng.and & Wales
Fag.and & Wales
Lngland & Wales
Engand & Wa.es
Lngland & Wales
England & Wales
Lngland & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Engand & Wa.es
Eng.and & 'WNa.es
Lngland & Wales
Fngland & Wa.es
Eng and & Wa.es
Eag.and & Naies
Lng and & wales
Lagiand & Wales
England & Wales
Lngland & ‘Wa.es
Lag.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Waes
Eng.and & Wa es
Engand & WNa.es
g and & 'Wa.es
Eng.and % Wa.es
Eagland & Wa.es
Lag.and & 'Vaes
Fng.and & 'Na.es
Engand & Wa es
Eagangd & MNa.es
Frgand & Ma es
Eng and & Va.es
Lag.and & Wa.es
Lhg.and & Wa.es
Lng.and & ~Va es
Figand & 2
Fagand & -
Eagand &
Lngand &°

w2

Lag.and
Frgand

el

3

t.aganid

bag.and %
Lngand &
Lag.end

Fagand

P

Eng.and

gl

Eng.and

w3

Eagand
£ and
Eng.and
g and
Ertyg and

Eng and & vaes

W

W

el

Lag.and % Vaes



Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

Name -
Civitas SPVICS Limated”
Chwitas SPVIGH Limited*
Cavitas SPVICT Linvited”
Civ_las SPV16 Limired®
Clvitas SPVII7 Limuted®

Clvitas Sooia’ Housag Fonance Company 4 Umored?®
Crvitas SPV235 Limited®
Clvilas SPV5SA Limited*

Civilas SPV5SS Limrited*®
Civitas SPV69 Limted™
Clv'tas SPVUS Limied®
Civitas SPV84 Limited*
Clvltas SPV3E6 Limited®
Civ.tas SPVEY Lim.ted”
Civitas SPVEE L ded”
Clvitas SPVYC Limiled™
Cryltas SPVIL Limted:
CRylras SPVI2 Limited®
Cosllas SPVI3 Limited®
Crvllas SOV Lreds
Clv.tas SPV9s Limled®
Clvitas SPVICO Limited®
Chvitas SPVICL Lomuted®
Cw'ras SPVICZ Lorited®
Clvllas SPYIGT Linmvred®
Crvllas SPVN2 Lo red”
Civitas SPVI4 Lomsted®
Cry'tas 3PV Lo ted”
Chyltas SPVIE Linitedt
Crvalas SPVI21 Limtted®
Civ.las SPVIZ2 Linmtad*
Crvltas SPYI26 Limred”
Ciyltas SPVI12Y Lonited®
Citas SFV129 Limeited®
Cryalas SPVI0 L ted”
Cratas SPY13L Limaited®
Crvitas SPVI13Z Lo ded”
Cryitas SEVIS Limited”

SEVIBZ Limn‘ted {previously eldbay Lo ted;”

Crvas SPV148 L ted”
Civitas SFV49 Lo 1ed®
Crvitas SPVI50 Limted®
FPICO 524 ad*

Covtes Socia! Hous™g Finanee Combany 5 Lavted”
Civilas SPV7 Lomaited”

Civitas SFVI3 Lnried®
Crsitas SPY37 Lm.ted”
Crsitas SPV4d Lerited®
Crwitas SPVA9 Lirlted”
Civ tas SPVE6 Lo tecd®
Cosdas SFVO2 Limledt
Clvitas SFVAS Limted™

Civtas SPVS7 LorTie dr
Crvtas SPVAS Lomrited®
Cov tas SFV98 Lintted®

Reqistered number

11832177
11934144
11532182
113043499
11504445
11306660
10746881
11039750
11111912
11142372
10839075
11381455
114184132
10888903
10939044
109359131
10941377
11449913
1043111
12GH10E
11270786
11082703
3978282
11821553
11532120
11579780
11579433
11322178
11411438
1699917
11482646
11459821
10941401
11664994
N7G5074
11875132
11473733
11842506
3219012
11632633
11462691
115355019
15083077
10356508
09517892
10758150
1053867873
11631343
11836465
10947528
10938467
10977929
1097382689

1478693

Frnincaipal activily
Property investment
troperty investmrent
Froperty investment
Froperty :nvestment
Property investment
Fnance Company
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property .nvestmeant
Property investmenl
Property invesiment
Property investment
Property nvestment
Property .nvestment
Properny investrant
P-operty investmenl
Property mnvestman
Property ‘nvestmenl
[roperty nvestmenl
Property investment
Property nvestTent
246
Property investTeat

oerly nvestrent

P:operty Investment
Property ‘nvestment
Propenty weastmeant
Propenty nvestrant
Frovernty nvestr ent
Property svestmenl
Property vestment
Pronesty nvestment
Prone-ty nvestaent
F-one-ty nvestrent
Property nvestmient
Property nvestment
Proverty nvestment
Holding company

Property nvestme:n
Property nvestmenl
Fronesty vestmenl
Prooerty investmant
Property nvestorent
I''n

nce Comnany

Froperly nvestoranl
'roperty rrestrenl
Pronerty nvestment
Froperty nvestmenl
Frope-ty Investmanl
PFroperty nvestmanl
Pronerty nvestmen
Property mrvestmen
Frooerty wvesiment
Prooerty nvestmient
Pronerty nvestorennt

Countty of Lot poration

England & Wa'es
bagland & Wa.es
Fnagland & Wa.es
England & Wa es
Lagland & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
England & Wa'es
England & Wa'es
Engiand & Wa.es
England & Waes
England & Waes
England & Wa.es
Eagland & Wa.es
Engiand & Wa'es
Engiand & Wa.es
Fagland & Wa.es
Fnagland & Wa.es
Eagland & Wa'es
Lag.and % ‘Waes
Lag.and & Wa.es
England & Wa es
Lnagiand & Wa.es
Fagland & 'Wales
Engand & Wa.es
Fagand & Wa.es
Lagland & Wa.es
Engiand & Wa.es
Lnagland & Wa s
FEagland & Wa.es
Frhg.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa'es
Lagland & Wa es
Lagland & 'Wa es
Fngand & Wales
Eng and & Wales
England & Wales
Lagland & Wa es
Fagland & Wa es
England & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Waes
Lag.and & Waes
Eagland & 'Wa es
[ngiand & Wa es
Eagiand & Wa es
Eng and & Wa.es
Fagand & Wales
Laglanid & Wa es
Eagland & Wa es
Engand & Wa es
Lagiand & Wases
Eag'and & Waes
Eagiand & Wales
England & Waes

=~
Z4
==
53
= in
=
z 2
ERS
==
32
83
=
Az
PO
S =
ey
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

Reqgistered numbet Principal acuvity

Name: o o . Counuyofuworporation
-__-:_L_t;a_%_SPVgé- Lﬂiited‘ 11478707 Property mmvestmant tgland & Wales
Tvitas SFV1C4 Lo ted® N5321/4 nvestmeant Eng.and & Wa'es
Chvitas SPVICS Lomrited® 11832135 _vestaient Eng.and & Wa.es
Civitas SEVI3E Lintited® 11380068 nvestment Eng.and & Wales
Civitas SPV123 Limr ‘ted® (8253452 Investment Lng.and & Wales
Crv.tas §PV133 L'rlited* 1638372 Proverty investment Lhgland & Wa.es
Civitas SPV134 Limruesdt 116834561 Froverty nvestment Eng.and & Wa.es
Crvitas SPVI35 Limted* 11573938C Froperty .avestment England & Wa.es
Crvitas SFV136 Limited® 11579760 Froperty .nvestment Eng.and & Wales
Civitas SPViLS Limuded® 115468038 Property :nvestment England & Wa. es
Civ.tas SPVid4 Limited™ 11346636 Froperty nvestment Eng.and & Wa.es
Crvitas SPVIL6 Lintted® N&61300 Ho.ding Company Eng.and & WVa.es
Bryn Eithin (2013 Limited™ 11844898 Property investment bngland & Wa.es
Civitas SPVI47 Limited™ 11861974 Hod'ng Company England & Wa.es
Mynydd Mawr 2C19) Limted* 1844317 Property nvestmeni England & Wa.es
Cowitas SPVIBZ L red® 1193519 Froperty nvestment Eng.and & Wa.es
Clv tas SPVIAESE Limited® 12044281 Property mvastment Lngiand & Wales
Covidas SPVI36 Lo ted™ 1208109% vestrent England & ‘Va.es
Covitas SPV1SY Lot ted™ 1218861C Froserly nvestnisnl ngand & Wa.es
Coantas SPVISA L teddt 12202674 Froperty wvestrant Engiand & Wa.es
Covas SFV1ISC Linuted™ 12272806 Pronenty vvestmenl Engand & Wa.es
Bad*ord SV Lo ted” FProperty investrent Lngland & VMa.es
Br:dge Froverty [Herts Limited® Prooerty .vestment Eng.and & "‘Va.es
Bridge Fropeo Limited” 124453439 vestent Lngland & Wa.es
FFI Co 294 Lid® 11319226 vestaient England & Wa.es
Cxotas 3PV Linated= 154730414 Prosasiy nvestient England % Va.es
Cowibias 5PV HE Lid = 12784833 Froperty nvestiret Fng and % ‘Va.es

v tas SPVES i ted”

Froperty weastire Engand & Vaes
Prooerty veastrent Frgland & Wa es
Fr

Ho.ding Company Lngland & ‘Vaes

SETIY LvaEstTent Lagiand & Wa.es

* These enutes ate cxempl irom the requiremenis of the Companies Act 2006 1elatng 10 rthe audn of indivicdual hinancai statements by virtue of Sechen 4794 ot that
Act These are all entities that have a year end ol 31 March 2023

Tne regigiered addresses for The supsidiarics arc consisien: nased on tagir couniry of incoroporation and are as fo..ows:

¢ England & Wales entities: .in< Company Maers Limited. 5.0 Fioor 45 Crosnam Siree London RE2V 70

= Jersey entities: 17 Cas: ¢ 5ract, 5t He ier Jersey [E2

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

£ 000 £ U0

van os ST 1544 115¢
yrrents and olner reeeivan.es 420 1.8352
Acoraad ncone 635 1758
Total o ) - 2599 1318

Prenaymen:s and ooior recaivao © amo.ns ingc..de prepaid .ega. and orofessiona. focs of £ (20 (30 inal nave pesn
Inc.rred 1N connooion Wil acqLsiions Yoo o 0oc comn eed and FA84 000 (25273 FLEA3.NC0 n res

0O e proper.y Dordo.o

(]

cof Lncomro oled wor<s




Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

B it i v PR e 3T
o ' T T MR AT B Mareh N

£'o00 £ono

Cas"] ﬂe,‘a ‘rf,’ soriciors - ) o T o Vﬁa - 3':’5
Liguidiiy funds 15.636 10,489
Casn aeld ar pank 10,239 12,258
Casn and casn equiva.en:s T o - - S "25.939 - 2":1?3
Resrictied cash 254 35
Total cash held at bank N ’ h T T 26193 23438

Liquidiiy tunds refer 1o money placed |n money narxe: tunds. 'hese are g’y iguid funds with accessibility within 24 hours
and supjea 1o insignitican: risk of chnanges in value,

Cash ne'd oy solicitors 1s moncy ncld in escrow for exponses expecied 1o oe incarred inrelauon o investnent properties
pending compielion These funds are availab o immediacy on demand.

Resiricted cash reoresents amo.unts ne d for specific commiiments. 1enan: deposiis and retention money held oy .awyers in

relation o deferred payments sub ect o achicverren: of ceriain condrions, eihcr reientions and casn segregated (o fund repair

maintendnce and improvemen: wor<s 1o oring the oroperties up 1o satistaciory standards for the Group and the lenanis

B 3 * EEFE SN i B b -
31 March 2022
31 March 2023 Restated
. . [ o - __ gwoo  F00n
Releniions’ 20 Sy
Aceraas 745 G855
Dividend wiiino.ding tax payan.c 940 1057
cferred incomae 374 358
Amounts due o swosidiary conipanies 316,128 5
Tenan: deposiss neld* 207 2
Total 318,414 274,020
*Comnpdldiives have been e analysed to cotrect the analysis of £228 000 of tenant depaosits which hacd previeusly been included in retennians
5nare capiian represcnis (e nomina va.de ol consideraion recewed by e Company for the iss.e of Ordinary sharoes.
For the Lot the
year ended yedr ended
31 Match 2023 31 March 2022
£ 000 £'000

Share capital

Al peginning and end of ycar 6,225 B8.225
For the For the
year endod yoear ended

- - .. . _ _ S1March 2023 31 Marel 2022
Ordinary shares of £0.01 each

/\:___o_(:gmmng dl_n_{_i_ ond o_I__ycar ~ 622:461,380_ 622.4&3&?

Danng e year e Company purenased 5050.000 Ordimary shares 1o pe ne.d in rcas.ry ata cost of f4551.000 {31 March 2022
160.025.000 Ordinary snares for £9759.0000

Dining 1ne groviows year. e Company reissaed 555000 Ordinary enares he.d in treasury tor £647.00C. The cost of purenasing
these shares 0o rzasary of £484.000 has neen credized 1o e caoita. red icnon reserve with the gam credized to the share
Oremiun reserve

AL 31 March 2023, ive Company ne.d 15,075,500 (31 Marcn 2022: 10.025.000) Crdinary snares 11 sreas.ry Tag snares wi. contin. e
wybe edan reasary oni enner remsoed or cancelcd

A3 Maren 2073, 01e nunroer of Crdinary gnares wsed 10 cales aie tig nel asse: va Lo par saare i3 606385380 (31 Marcn 20272
512,430 380) waicihi oxc.wdes tne snares e d Inireasary

=
g
=
-
z
e
Z

OH IVIDON SYLIALD
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

TR IS SOV IR R I,
The share promi.n reserve represents the amounis supscariped for Ordinary share capita in excess ol nomina. val.e icss
aggociated issoe cosis of 1ac soDsCripuons

Forthe For the

year ended year ended

31 March 2023 31 Maich 2022

. R - o £000 R £'Igo

AT beginming of yeart 252,626 292452
Fremium arising on shares reissucd from - 164

Atend of year 292626 292625

For movements In Tne year, please see detals in note 12.0.

R R L E L S TR =
The capital reducion reserve s a disTibuiacio reserve 0 whieh the va. e of the cancelled snarc premi.m was ransterred
Pursuan: :0 Artic.e 3 of The Companies (Red.ciion of Sare Capiia) Order 2008, the balanca neld in tne capra. redacuon
reserve is o0 be irea.ed tor the purposes of Par: 23 of tne Companies Act 2005 as a reaased orofit and rnerefore avalabie for
distripuzion 1n accordance wi:n section 83C ot ine Companies Ac: “"hoe Company nas csed nis reserve for the cos:s of nuying
oack snares 1o oe fzld Inreas.ry

o

For the For the

year ended yeat ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ol R o . L7000
Al neginning of year 322,365
Snares ress.ed trom reas.ry -

Snharcs poug:

0acK ino reas.ry ] N (4,651)

At end of year 317,714
For movenanis in ae year 0.ease seg delaisin noe 120
R S N I B R A A UL
This reserve reoresen:s e profits and Losscs of tnc Company
] oo Forthe  Forthe
year ended yeat ended
StMarch 2023 31 March 022
A- ocginning of year (74.204) (51173)
(Lossi/orofis tor tne year 2,791) 21382
Dividends paid (34.459) (34.09%3)
At end of year (111,454) (74.2C4}

IR ST N

As a: 31 Marca TIATC 1S NIO LUMale CONIG . ng party

LTl T, Ta

ma<e refersnee o notes 301 and 35 2 of
werents and ano.n s due o supsidiary companies innose 10 anave

Fora 1o atcd parsy ransacions and ransacions Wit e Invesimen: Advisar o as
e Groao's consotdated tinancia

Vst s —

P.ease refer .o noe 330 of tne Cro.o Consnidaod inanoa sialenenis on page Ho.
Since ne year 2nd, Civitas 3ocia. Housing Jersey 1 Limiied and Civitas Socia. Housing Jersey 2 Limed nave iss.ed dividends 1o

ne Company (0 a.ang FlC215.000
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other
alternative performance measures

Tne Group has chosen o adop: EPRA pes: praciice gurdelines tor caicUlatling ey aemaive performance measures Nowes 1.0
0 7.0 suppor: i:ne EPRA metrics disc.osed on pages 28 and 29 of the Repor: wnerg the definition and nurpose of each me:ric
are ouiined.

SO EPRA Farciinegs

For the yeat For the year
ended ended
. 3 March 2023 31 March 2022

Earnings from operational activities

Profit afier taxation (£'000) 25,472 44.754
Change in fair vai.e of derivadive financia, insirumen s (FCCO) 2826 {2.675)
Changes in va..e of invesimen: properijes (£'CC0) (2.640) {12.269})
Cos:s of early repayment of 'ﬁem (E OCG) 1,271
EPRA Earnings (£000) - eem23 9810
Nﬂ eigne dmr)l-VOl’ng numoer af sgd—rcqi—l_nr Ig8.d0 (eldTJR ed I')r wares nel d m reaur/) - 6&55/2687 318797942
EPRA Larnings per sharc (E)Pq) pasic & )dl_;gd L S 743&37 o 4‘840
I R IR T S

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T kaner | eRANer | erRAner

Reinstaement Tangible Disposal

Value Assets value

31 March 2023

Mot asses (ECGE) 661,909 661,909 661,909
Fair va ue of derivaive financia’ ins:iruments (FGCC)Y (8.129) (8.129) -
Ad, <SIrCn: 1o fair v e for Jdn( o')rr')wmgs (7 th ) - - Rin 736
P\A"fr”""f""\ i B N o o o 653780 o 653 780 - 673 645
Nomper of shares inisg.e (ad Lsied tor gaared he d inoreas.aryl 606,386,380 606.386,380 606.386,380
NAV pershare S o 107.82p 107.82p 111.08p
T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T Tka ke mwama mmaner
Retnstatement Tangtble Disposal
o o ~ o o . o o . o _Vilur- _ o Assers _\iﬂill(‘"

31 qarcrﬁ 2@

Wer assois (£200) 575547 375.547 573.347
Farwr va..c of denvalve financia. insiroments (000 2131 (2131

Ad. ~Siment o fa;r Va. .o Ior oan( QOITOWINGS {F FOG0) - - 2 644
NAY (G o amais ATsAs a7aam

Fumoar ot snarcs inss so (ad .sted for sharad neld in reasaryy 517425380

NAY per snare llﬂ ”‘m
[ S S AT SR N
i -0 - - - - o o o T rewme sorte
year ended year ended

— - - _ - — e — . = . ___FMarchas 31 March 2022 I

frwc men: progerty TG00 978,147 958 755
59,973 35412

Cross .o <,Jn~_ e T - 1038120 1075158 i
Arm—da,rsrtd?@i renisff -3" ! ‘ R o - - -7 2-57_?5-47 - 34_“;91
Aid nationa. ren: cxpiranon of ren: [ g 7 -
’)*\')Pfi-.,:\ ne: ann .a. !s“d rent LG _F o ) 7 S o T?SS? o
LRRA NTY o o - ~ 558%
EPRA Topoed- .o KIY 5.55%




Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other

alternative performance measures

Continued
I N
- - T/ e e e h 0 rerme
year cndoed
e e e —— — - . . B .. 3iMarchavzs
Esimated Mar<o: Rental Vaiue (ERV) of vacant spaces (T0G0) 10
Esiimazed Mar<e: Rental Value (ERV) of who e portfolio °000) 57,654
[CPRA Vacancy Raic 0.02%
(A N SO N 3ty
S - T T e o I‘orithc

yedr ended

£000
Tozal é&nﬁimsﬁraﬁlVé a;d;)oeirafimg e;;)e?sg S 7771]7521
Direc: properiy cxpenses 1.941
Less property expenges recoversd 1aroagn ren's (1,512)
EPRA Costs (including direct vacancy costs) 12250

Direc: vacanay costy -

EPRA Costs (excluding direct ;faca.néyicoe;ts)i 12,250
Renta! income 54,607
lessiocbargoan c costsreceived (as12)
Gross rental income - 53.095
EPRA Cost Ralio (including direct vacancy costsy = _ _ _ 23.07%
EPRA Cost Ratio (excluding direct vacancy costs) 23.07%

Tae Group aas nol ncearrad any ditect vacanoy aosis

31 March 2023

£000
NetDebt
Borrowings from financia. insiiatons (7000) 367,925
Cas’t and cash equiva anis (K000 (35,588)
e 332,337
Total Praperty Value
nvesuren: properies at {alr va.we (E000) 953,364
Nerecevab.as (Mooo) 26,743
o - - - -0 0000 T T 7 T 77 7 " gsonaor

EPRA LTV 33.91%

31 Mal(;huzgﬁg
Net receivables c?or;iprises o
Oner receivan os 24,783
Trade and oier recevan es 11,260
Less rade and oincr pavaoies (9,300
Total 26743

For the
Year endea
1 March 2022

Yor the

year ended
31 March 2022
£0ono

16.247
378

20.20%

20 20%

31 March 2022
_ EuLew

31 March 222
rona

(SRS RN o]

g
g
g
8
:
2
-}
2
:
2

CEO0Z SLNNODOV NV 11041
N INISCEOH TVI0D0N SVLIATD

123



Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other

alternative performance measures
Continued

Components of Net Assets used in EPRA LTV calculation -
Investiren: properties at fair va.ic
Net receivaples
Casn and cash equivalents
Les_s porrowings (rom finanaal insitations -
Net assets used in the EFRA LTV calculation T -
Less amoun:s exciuded {rom ne calcu'aion

Inicres: rate derivatves

Y:_J_r_la rr.or:i,_;_gd -oan _iifsue costs _ .
Netassets o

v Tan AN [EREEY

Acg.astions inc.eding incidenta. cosis of purenasc o
Deve.onment
Investment properties

Incromenia) ollan.e spaces

Enhancing ‘ctan.e space

Tenant Inceniives

Otner matena. non-a. ocaed wyoos of exoondi Lre
Capla.dsed inieres:
Total Capital i;;pend.in'.lreii T

Conversion tom acor .a.8 .0 ¢asn pasis
Total Capital Expenditure on a cash basis

The Groun nas no capliassed any overncad ar operaing cxvensas

T - - - _Zl.Ma(ChZOZEV ?Ma_rcn Z(lzé-
L o X _Euwn
953364 945737

26743 26.892

35,588 53337

(367,925)  (357.050)

647,770 568415

8.129 2131

- 00 5500
- 661,909 675547
o ) o - - - - - For lh_E:/ - For d[;f
year ended yenar ended

31 Maich 2623 31 March 2ti22

- _ _ T g T oo

543 33455

4944 5818

1.700 1514

T T T T T T ey anaes
G 13

6.590 12212

Te Growo aas no foint Veniures so nere 15 no ot veniure oroperty o disc ose in e anove tan.e



Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other
alternative performance measures

Continued

: S S b

Ordinary snareholdéers.

Thus is the annua! growth raie, pased on growih 1N net asset va. .2 per share since 'a.ncn and dividends paid o

31 March 2023

S1Match 2022

NAV per share 109.1600p  110.30C0p
31 May 2017 Interimr dividend 0.7500p C.75C0p
31 Asgus: 2017 Inierim dividend 0.7500p C.75C0p
30 Novembper 2017 Inierim dividend 0.7500p G.7500p
9 March 2018 Interim dividend 0.7500p 0.750Cp
8 une 2018 Tnzerim dividend 1.2500p 1Z50Cp
7 Seprember 2018 Inrerim dividend 1.2500p 1.250C0pn
30 Novemher 2018 Intrerm dividend 1.2500p 1.25C0p
N January 2019 Interim dividend 1.1100p 11180p
28 Feorsary 2019 Inicnm dividend 0.1400p C.1400p
7 lane 2019 In:erm dividend 13250p 13250p
6 Bcpcmoer 2019 Inzerim dividend 1.3250p 1.3250D
Z9 Noverr ner 2019 Inwerim dividend 13250p 1.32258p
28 Fepr.ary 2020 Interim dividend 1.3250p 1.3250D
172 Junc 2020 Inzerim dividend 1.3250p 1.3250p
7 bepiemoper 2020 Interim dividend 1.3500p 133C0p
1 Decembper 2020 Inierim dividend 1.3500p 13300p
1 Marcn 2021 inernm dividend 1.3500p 133Cop
11 Jane 2621 In:erim dividend 1.3500p 135CCp
1C Scpremaocr 2021 [nierim dividend 1.3375p 1.3875p
13 December 2041 In:crim dividend 1.3875p 13875p
11 Marcn 2027 Interim dividend 1.3875p 138750
28 Tune 2027 Inierim dividond 1.3875p -
3 Sepienber 2027 Irierim dividend 1.4250p
9 December 2622 [n:zrim dividend 1.4250p
N Mareih 2G23 In:crim dividend 1.4250p

135.0100p 13418750
NAV per share ar a.ncih 98.0000p 980CCCo
levered IRR 6.29% 5.03%

g
b=}
3
z
»
-
Z
g
L]
-
]
z

£2UZ SLNMOQDDY ANV LHOdIH
ONISTTOH IV SVLIALY
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Five Year Financial Results

Revenue
Renla. income
Less direc: property expenses
Net rental income

Directors’ renineration

Invesiment advisory iees

Genera. and adminisralive exponses
'I?tal?xpeh;esr o o

Cnange in fair va..e of inves:men: properieas

Operating Profit
Finance income

Finance axpenses  re.aling o oang oorrowings
Finance expenses - relating 1o C share amorisaiion
C‘,mge iﬂ_lair_va.ﬁ olr)n:eris_i ra.e ds:ﬂ_v’:a:g.‘s
Profit before tax ) ' '
Taxauon

Profit bei;l_g total éo_mp;éhen—sive—i-ncoxge

Earnings per share — basic
Earnings per share — diluted
Dividend declared (per share}

Fot the

year ended
31 March 2023
£non

54,607
(1.941)
52666

11
(6,217)

(1,821
2,640

148
(15.335)

__ese)

man
4.19p
4.19p

_ 570

(3393)

25472

For the

year ended
31 March 2022
E000

51635
978)
5C.658

83
{97,

(206}
(6132)
(3.909)
10.247)

52680
;
(16.508)

2878

4734

lof the
vear ended
31 March 2021
£aou

49.02C
(1475)
17.845

(198)
GBI
(3.183)

T (9.498)

ho)

35075

5,800
58ce

5400

For the
veat @nded
31 March 2020

_tvon__

]

{93.850)

9.389
45.4%5
1ua

(7.342)

478)

T ms

For the

year ended
31 March 2019
£0u0

35738

(a3
{6457
(3.G27)

19.512)

3.032

29748

491
3.975)
(6A00)

13854




Five Year Financial Results

Continued
Gt T g A

T T T .Sl -l:'l-;:rch 2023 Sl Marchz2ozz  31Marct 2021 3 Muaé[;zirai 3 Maﬂrrr,h QK
- o . . . o _ ol 000 1y FILITA Ly
Assets
Non-current assets
Invesimen: property 953,364 945,237 893584 8675848 820.094
Otaer receivanles 24,783 23519 21,905 10,755 5.824
Inierest raze derivatives 8,129 2131 - -

986,276 970887 915589 878743 825918

Non-current assets
Trade and other receivao.cs 11,260 12.865 12.821 15.838 5723
3

Casn and casn equivalents . 35,588 53337 107.697 58.374 54.347

53207 119,918 #9212 an oo

4
T 71033124 1037089 1035507 947955 BA5.G88

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Tradc and olaer pavanles (9.300) {9.192) (9.343) (7,743} {15324
Ban<and .oan norrowings - - (59.937) {39.730)

' . (9300) 949z (09282 (67473 (15324)
Non-current liabilities

Ban<and .0an porrowings (361,915) {3572.050) (292.183; {(209,440) (205155
Tieres rae derivatives - - (544 (A78)

(361,915) (357050} )09 )
; (277791 (220L480)

@218 Gesa

)
(Z92777) 209.918) {205.155)
Total liabilities )

Total net assets 661,909 575.317 675498 670554 555,508
Assels s
$narc capiia. 6,225 5,225 5225 5.223 5225 g
Snare premi.m reserve 292,626 292.625 292,453 292405 292405 o
Capital reduction reserve 317.714 322.365 I3LI45 330.925 331625 §
E_(t_?:_algcd oﬁnjir_lg_s_“ L ~ - 45,344 54331 743.6?(3 41,008_ 3_5.2.53_ §
Total equity 661,909 575.547 575498 570564 656.508 3
. - 2 Rttt el g
Net assets per share — basic 109.16p 110300 12830n 107.87p 107 08o S
Net assets per share - diluted 109.16p 110 300 1083Co 157 870 107 080 g
Share price 53.70p 87100 137.8Cn 96 4Cn 96000
Total shareholder return {on a NAV basis) 41.84% 37 253 79 56% 23 91% 17.45%
Leverage 35.61% 34.13% 34.48% 26 90% 2200%
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Shareholder Information

Share Information

The Company's Ordinary shares of \p each are quoted

on the Official “us: of the “CA and raded on the premium
segment of the Main Varke: of the London 3tock kxchange

(LS=)

SEDOL number 338=3D5$

ISIN G300BDBH3DI B
Ticker/TIDM Csd ) ) L
LEI 213800 7G3GBABGY. 695

Frequency of NAV Publication

The Company's MAY 12 releazed o the UL on a quanerly
Lasis and published on the Company's websiie:
www.civiiassocralhousing.com.

Sources of Further Information

Coples of the Company's Annual and Half-Vearly Repor:s,
Srock zxchange announcements and farther information
on “he Company can be obiained from iis website:
www. crvizassoclalhousing.com.

Share Register Enquiries

The registar for the Company's Ordinary shares 1
mairn:ained by Lnk Group. ‘n the even: of quernes
regarding your holdimg, please consac: the Reqgisirar

on G377 664 0300 {calls are charged a: the standard
geagraphic raze and will vary by provider, calls outside
“he U will be charged a: the applicable inzernational
ratel. Lines are open between 9.00am and 5.30pm.
Vvonday o Tnday. exclading pablic hohdays in “ngland
and Wales. You can also emall enguunes@hnkgroup.couk,

Changes of name and/or address mus: he notafied i
wring to the Requstrar Link Group. Cencral Square,
29 Welling:on Sireer, Leeds 15400

Key Dates
j;g WW‘W AhﬂLl;}l Iesl]f:amlrgﬁ o

7 o )_ :"a*;mgé;_gf four:L_m;enm dligi}-md L
September Companys half-yearend

Annual (Eeral meeng "

:f - '-’a'ym_nt of f]rSETI{%eTEYTJ@en d
December _;—_'a]f-vezﬁ ré‘:sulia_n_po;mced;_

_”_77_7 ga';mer}ii second 1r1trer|m'__('_i1*1gend :
February “aymen: of “hurd interim dividend
March Company's year end -

Association of Investment Companies

The Company 1g a member of the AIC, which

publishes sranstical informanon in respec: of

membper companies. The A'C can be conracied on

G20 72872 65555, enguimes@theaic.co.uk or visit the websie:
wwwrTheatc.cosak.

Electronic Communications from

the Company

Shareholders now have the oppormnrty 0 be notufied by
emall when the Company's Annual Zepor:, Half-Yearly
Repor: and other formal communicasions are avalable
on “he Company's websiie, instead of recewng printed
copies by post This has environmen:al benefizs in the
reducion of paper, priniing. energy and water usage, as
well as reducing costs ta the Company.

fyou have not already elecied to receive elecironic
communicatons from the Company and wish 0 do so.
vlease coniact “he Reqisirar,



Glossary

AIFM means the Alzernatave Investmen: fund Manager.

AIFMD means the Aliernative invesiment Jund Managers
Regulations 2015 {as amended by The Alternative
‘nvesrment Tund Managers (Amendmen: etc) (52U Exi)
2egulations 2019) and the ‘nvestmen: "unds Sourcebook
forming part of the "CA Handbaook.

ALMO means an arm’s leng:h management organisaion,
a not-for-prefiz company that provides housing services
on behalf of a local authonty

Alternative Performance Measures {APMs) means a
financmal measure of historical financial performance,
financial posiion, or cash flows, other than a financial
measure defined or specified in “he apphcable financal
reporing framework.

Annual contracted rent roll means ‘he annual
contractaal renzal income curren:ly receivable on a
property as a: the 3alance Sheet date

Approved Provider m=ans Approved Providers, lucal
adthorities, ALMOs, Communuy nteras: Companies,
Regisrered Chanues and other regulated organisaions
directly or indwrectlv in receip: of paymen: from local or
cantral governmen: including the N=8

Care Provider mecang a provider of care services "o “he
occapants of Specialist Suppored Roasing, registered
with the Care Quahity Comrmission.

CIM means Civitas nvesimen: Managemen: Jimited or
CIM {formerly known as Civizag Zousing Adwisors Limited
antil s change of name on 7 VMay 2020

Community Interest Company or CIC means a
company approved by the Office of the Regulator of
Community interest COmpanies as a Commuanlly mieres:
company and regisiered as such with Compames Eouse

Company means Civizas Social Housing 2LC, a company
incorporated in sngland and Wales with company
number 10402528

CMA Order means “he Statutory Audis Services Order
2074 1ssued by the Compennon and Varke:s Aachornty

Current Leverage means “he percenzage saken as :otal
rank borrowings drawn over total assets.

Dividend Yield means the raio of toral annual dividends
declared for *he financial year aver marke: price per
share.

EPRA means “he Suropean 2ubho Real —s1ate Assooiation

EPRA EPS s the =224 earnings chivided by the weighrad
average number of shares inssue n the penod,

EPRA LTV 15 the E2RA loan 0 value rauo calculated as
debt net of cagh balances divided by the market value
of property {(including net receivables) as defined in the
SPRA 3est Prachice Guidehnes,

EPRA Net Initial Yield (“EPRA NIY") 1s calculazed as
the annualised renzal income based on the cash renss
passing at the balance sheet date less non-recoverable
propery operating expenses, divided by the gross
market value of the property.

EPRA Net Reinstatement Value (“EPRA NRV") 1s an
=PRA NAV metrnic which assumes that entities never sell
asse's and aims o represen: the value requnred to rebuild
‘he entty.

EPRA Net Tangible Assets (“EPRA NTA”) 1s an 524
NAY menc which assumes that enties buy and sell
assets, thereby crystalhging cerrain levels of unavoidable
deferred ax.

EPRA Net Disposal Value (“EPRA NDV™) 15 an =PRA

NAV metnc which represents the shareholders’ value
ander a disposal scenario, where deferred ax, finanaial
mstrumensts and certain osher adjus:menss are calculazed
<o the full exten: of thetr habih:y, net of any resuliing tax.

Gross Asset Value means total asses
Group means the Company and 13¢ subsidianes.

Housing Association or HA means an imdependen:
socleTy. body of trustees or company estabhished for
“he purmose of providing low-cos: sociail housing for
people n housing need generally on a non-profi:
making kasis. Any trading surplus s typically used o
maintain existing homes and o help finance new ones.
=ousing Associations are regulated by the Regulator of
Social Fousing.

Investment Adviser means Civitas [nvestmen:
Managemen: Limited ((CIVT, a company mcorparated in
=ngland and Wales with company nurmber 0278444 1n 178
capacly as invesiment adwviser to the Campany.

IPO means nizial >ubhec Offering
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IRR means imernal rate of return

Levered IRR means “he internal rare of rerurn mcluding
“he impact of deb:

Local Authority or LA means the admingiranve bodies
for the local governmen: in Sngland compnsing 526
authoriies (including 32 ".ondon baroughss,
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Glossary
Continued

Net Asset Value or NAV means the net asset value of the
Group on the relevant date, prepared in accordance with
RS accounang principles.

Net Initial Yield means the rano of ne: renzal income
and gross purchase price of a property.

NHS means the publicly funded healthcare system of
‘he Unized Xingdom comprising The Natuonal Health
Service in England, NHS Scotland, NHS Wales and Zealth
and Social Care 1n Northern reland. including. for the
avoldance of doubt MES Tras's.

NHS Trust means a legal enary, setup by order of the
Secrerary of State under secnon 25 of, and Schedule 4 10,
rhe National Health Service Act 2006, 1o provide goods
and services for the purposes of the health service

Ongoing Charges means the igure puablished annually
>y the Company which shows the drag on performance
causaed by operanonal expenses. More specifically s
she annual percentage reduciion in shareholder retums
as a result of recurning operanonal expensag assuiming
marke:s remain s:auc and the portfolio s no: raded
Alrhough the Ongoing Charges figure 15 bazed on
higzorical informauon, 12 provides shareholders with an
indication of the hkely level of cosis thar will be incurred
N managing the Company in the fature

Portfolio means the Group's parifolio of asses.

Portfolio Valuation means an independen: valuation of
“he Porfolio by Jones Lang _aSalle umized or siich other
property adviser ag the Direcrors may selec: from ume

o ume. based upon the 2orfolio being held, directly or
indirectly. within a corporate vehicle or equivalen: enniry
which 18 a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
orhervnise prepared in accordance with 2.Cs "Red Jook”
guidelines.

REIT means a qualifying real estate inves mer: tnistin
accordance with the L 22T egime iroduced by the
U¥ Mnance Act 2006 and zubsequently re-wren o
Pars 2 of the Corporanon Tax Act 2020,

RICS means 2oyal nsiration of Charered surveyors,

RSH means the Regulator of Social Zousing, the
execuanve non-deparimen:al pubiic body sponsored
by the Minwswy of Housing. Communmes and Local
Governmen:, which 15 the regularor for Social Fomes
providers in wngland and wales.

Social homes or social housing means social rened
homes and other accommodanon that are offered at
rents subsidised below marke: level or are cons:uen's
of other appropnare ren: regimes such as exemp: ren:s
or are subject 10 bespoke agreement with entzies such as
N=8 Trusts and are provided by Approved Providers.

Specialist Supported Housing or 88H means social
housing which incorporates some form of care or other
ancilary service on *he premises.

SPV means special purpose vehicle, a corporate vehicle
in which the Group's properies are held.

Target Return means *he arge: return on imvesimen:.

Total Return means Net Toral Return, being the change
n NAV over the relevan: period plus dividend paid.

Total Shareholder Return means a measiure of the
rerdarn based upon share price movemen: over the penod
rlus dividend paud.

Valuation meang an independen: valuanion of the
Porfolio by Jones Lang Ladalle _imited or such other
property adviser as the 2ireciors may select from
ame o ume, prepared in accordance with 3708 "Red
3ock” guidelines and based apon a valuaton of each
Jnderlying invesimen: property rather than the value
azcrnbed o the porifolio and on the assumpriion of

a theorencal sale of each propery rather than the
corporate entuies in which all of -he Company's
Inves:men: properies are held.

WAULT or “Weighted Average Unexpired Lease Term”
1g The product of annual contracied rent rall a: period end
and “he ume in years 0 when ‘he lease expires for each
qiven lease, sammed across leases, and “hen divided by
‘he otal annual contracied rens: roll of the porrfolio The
rezil- s expressed in years. WAL T8 a key measure of
‘he guahiy of the Company's porifolio. ong lease terms
Jnderpin the security of the Company's income gream
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